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THNOTICE OF 50  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

thNOTICE is hereby given that the 50  Annual General Meeting of the members of “U. P. Asbestos Limited” is scheduled to be 
rdheld on Monday, the 23  day of September, 2024 at 11:00 AM at Registered office of the Company at P.O. Mohanlalganj, 

Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh – 226301 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. Consideration and Adoption of the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon:
To Consider and if thought fit to give assent/dissent to the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the Members, be considered and adopted.”

2. Re-appointment of Shri Amitabh Tayal (Managing Director, DIN: 00556569), as a Director liable to retire by 
rotation:
To Consider and if thought fit to give assent/dissent to the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the approval of members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to reappoint Shri Amitabh Tayal 
(DIN: 00556569) as a director, who is liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

3. Approval of transaction under section 180(1)(a) of Companies Act, 2013.
To Consider and if thought fit to give assent/dissent to the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

th“RESOLVED THAT in continuation of special resolution passed through postal ballot On 16  Day of December 
2021, and to ensure continued compliance with updated regulatory requirements, pursuant to provisions of 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 
2014, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act 2013, 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approvals, consents, permissions and 
sanctions as may be necessary from the concerned statutory and regulatory authorities and subject to such other 
terms and conditions as may be imposed by them, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded, including confirmation/ratification of actions taken hitherto, to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(“the Board” which expression shall also include a committee of Directors constituted for this purpose) to transfer, 
sell, lease, demerge and / or otherwise dispose off the Lucknow unit of the Company situated at P.O. Mohanlalganj, 
Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh including its land and all other assets (the “said Assets”) to such person(s) as the Board 
may determine on such terms and conditions as may be finalized/negotiated by the Managing Director of the 
Company in the interest of the Company.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the transfer, sale, lease, demerger of or otherwise disposing-off the Lucknow unit 
and/or all agreement(s)/ documents executed/to be executed and all acts done in terms of the above resolution by 
and with the authority of the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby approved, confirmed and 
ratified.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do and perform all such acts, matters, 
deeds and things, as may be necessary, without further referring to the members of the Company, including 
finalizing the terms and conditions, and finalizing and executing necessary documents including schemes, 
memorandum of understanding, agreements, deeds of assignment/conveyance and such other documents as 
may be necessary or expedient in its own discretion and in the best interest of the Company, in relation to the above 
matters and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, 
applications, documents and writings that may be required to give effect to this Resolution."
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein 
conferred in such manner as deemed fit and at their discretion to utilize the proceeds received from the 
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aforementioned action for the purpose of the business of the Company.”

 4. Ratification of Cost Auditor’s remuneration for F.Y. 2024-25.
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Company hereby ratifies the 
remuneration of Rs.10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses, payable to M/s Shishir Jaiswal & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 102450), 
who is re-appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors, to conduct the audit of the cost 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to give effect to 
this resolution.”

Date: 13/08/2024              For and on behalf of 
Place: Lucknow                                             U.P. Asbestos Ltd.

                         Amitabh Tayal
          Managing Director

    DIN: 00556569



Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead 
of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. The proxy in order to be effective must be 
deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person 
shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The copy of annual report, notice of general meeting, notice of e-voting, etc. are being sent to the members through 
e-mail who have registered their email ids with their depository participant (DPs) / Company's Registrar and 
Transfer Agent (RTA). Members are requested to update their preferred e-mail ids with the Company / DPs /RTA, 
which will be used for the purpose of future communications. Members whose e-mail id is not registered with the 
Company will be sent physical copies of Annual Report, notice of e-voting etc. at their registered address through 
permitted mode. 

4. Annual Reports will also be available in the Investors section on the website of the Company at www.upal.in

5. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Ordinary/ 
Special Business set out in Item Nos. 3 and 4 of the accompanying notice is annexed hereto. Explanatory 
Statement for Item nos. 3 & 4 include relevant particulars as required under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/RTA.

7. Shareholders are requested to provide their E-mail address, telephone numbers and quote their Folio numbers / 
DP ID & Client ID in all correspondences to facilitate prompt response.

8. E-VOTING:  The Company is pleased to provide e-voting facility to the shareholders of the Company to enable 
them to cast their votes electronically on the items mentioned in the notice. A separate communication / Notice is 
being sent to all the shareholders to enable them to cast their votes through e-voting. 

9. Members attending the meeting are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report, as extra copies will not be 
supplied.

10. Members who are holding physical shares in identical names in more than one folio are requested to write to the 
Company/Share Transfer Agent to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings in one folio. Further, members 
are also requested to immediately notify to the Company/Share Transfer Agent any change in their address with the 
postal area pin code number quoting their folio number.

11. Pursuant to rule 5(4) of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016, the company had transferred dividend (if any) remaining unclaimed for a period of seven 
years from the date it first became due for payment, to The Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 
constituted by the Central Government and no claim shall lie against the IEPF or the company in respect of 
individual amount(s) so credited to the IEPF. Further, no amount of dividend etc. is due to be transferred to IEPF 
during the current year.

12. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') had notified the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
th(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 effective from 7  September, 2016 ('IEPF Rules 2016'). 

Amongst other things, the Rules provides for the manner of transfer of the unpaid and unclaimed dividends to the 
IEPF and the manner of transfer of shares in case any dividend has not been encashed by the shareholders on 
such shares during the last seven years to the designated Suspense Account as prescribed by the IEPF Authority.

th 13. Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, the 17 September, 2024 to Monday, the 
rd23  September 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

14. Relevant documents referred to in this Notice are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
during business hours from 10:00 am to 5:30 pm on any working day up to the date of the AGM and will also be 
available at the meeting venue on the date of meeting.

15. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
addresses for receiving all communications including Annual Report, Notices, Circular, etc. from the 
Company in electronic mode.

16. Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted under 
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to fill up the prescribed form and send the same to the 
Company.

17. The e-voting shall remain open from 9:00 am on 19.09.2024 upto 5:00 pm on 22.09.2024.
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18. The instructions for e-voting sent separately through permitted mode shall form part of notice.

19. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Statement are open for inspection by the 
members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and public 
holidays during business hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

20. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

21. The Register of Contracts or Arrangement in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

22. The Chairman shall, at the AGM at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of "Polling Paper" for all those members who are present at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting facility.

23. The board of directors have appointed Mr. Aditya Agrawal, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 
8780 & CP No. 16366) as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote E-voting process before the AGM as well as 
“Polling Paper” process during the AGM fairly and transparently. 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT,  2013  (THE 'ACT')

Item No. 3 
Approval of transaction under section 180(1)(a) of Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is at present having two units – One at Lucknow & another at Dadri, respectively. Members are informed that in 
the current scenario of competitive business environment, it has become imperative for the Company to reorganize and 
restructure its business with a view to ensure long term viability. On 16.12.2021, a resolution was passed through postal 
ballot granting authorization to the Board of Directors to transfer, sell, lease, demerge, or otherwise dispose of the Lucknow 
unit of the Company, situated at P.O. Mohanlalganj, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh. However, the Board has determined that a fresh 
resolution is necessary to ensure continued compliance with updated regulatory requirements and to address certain new 
developments and strategic needs of the Company. 

The Members of the Company are aware that, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and other applicable legal and regulatory provisions, the Board of Directors requires the approval of the Members to 
authorize the Board of Directors to transfer, sell, lease, demerge, or otherwise dispose of the Lucknow unit of the Company, 
situated at P.O. Mohanlalganj, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh. This unit includes the associated land and assets (referred to as “the 
said Assets”). The proposal is being proposed in alignment with the Company's strategic goals and operational efficiencies.

This proposal recognizes the needs of the Company's current and future business and is also in alignment with the 
Company's overall strategy. These initiatives of Company will enable the Company to carry out business restructuring to 
improve its financial position, earning capacities, the net worth and result in enhancement of overall shareholders' values. It 
will enable the Company to exploit growth opportunities effectively and optimise returns. The improved earnings shall be 
available for developing other more profitable opportunities.

The funds generated from the said proposal will be strategically used to enhance the Company's core operations by 
upgrading facilities, technology, and infrastructure to drive growth and productivity. They will also contribute to debt 
reduction, improving financial health and reducing interest obligations. Additionally, the funds will support strategic 
acquisitions to align with the Company's growth strategy and market expansion. Resources will be allocated to research and 
development to innovate and improve products and services, ensuring long-term competitiveness. These initiatives will 
enable effective business restructuring, boosting the Company's financial position, earning capacity, and shareholder value 
while optimizing returns and funding future profitable opportunities including diversification.

The resolution also seeks to confirm and ratify/approve, all previous actions taken/ actions to be taken by the Board in relation 
to the transfer, sale, lease, or demerger of the Lucknow unit, and to authorize the Board to finalize the terms and conditions, 
and execute all necessary agreements and documents related to this matter.

Under the provisions of Section 110 of the Companies Act 2013, and provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act 
2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any of the 
Companies Act 2013, and as per SEBI LODR regulations, a Company cannot transfer, sell, lease, demerge and / or 
otherwise dispose off its business undertaking(s) unless it is authorized by a special resolution to be passed by of the 
members of the Company. Therefore, approval of the members is sought for passing of special resolution in terms of the 
provisions as above.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the said 
resolution. The resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice is accordingly recommended for your approval.

Furthermore, the resolution authorizes the Board to delegate its powers as deemed appropriate and utilize the proceeds from 
the disposal of the said Assets for the aforementioned purposes.

The approval of this resolution is essential for ensuring that the Company can effectively manage its assets and resources in 
alignment with its strategic objectives. 



Item No. 4 

Ratification of Cost Auditor’s remuneration for F.Y. 2024-25.

As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”), 
as amended from time to time, the Company is required to have an audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in 
practice for products covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. The Board, based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the re-appointment of & Co., Cost Accountants, M/s Shishir Jaiswal 
(Firm Registration Number: 102450), as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2025, at a remuneration of Rs.10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand) plus applicable taxes and 
reimbursement of reasonable out- of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with Section 148(3) of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, is required to 
be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary 
Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors, for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2025.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the said 
resolution. The resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice is accordingly recommended for your approval.

Date : 13.08.2024              
Place: Lucknow       

Amitabh Tayal
Managing Director

DIN: 00556569

For and on behalf of 
U.P. Asbestos Ltd.



 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 19th September 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 22nd September 
2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date 
(cut-off date) i.e. 16th September 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders 
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date, being 16th September 2024. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 1below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you 
are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 
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Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option will 
be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested 
to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing 
my easi username & password. 
 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able 
to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system 
of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the 
e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 
login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 
option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 
- 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 

in           demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 

or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 130085 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you 
from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf 
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com


6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

csmanishaditya@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 

other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 

Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-

Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 

reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 

on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Kaushal Kumar at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@upasbestos.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@upasbestos.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you 
are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 
for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id 
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

th50 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

#Folio No./DP ID& Client No.................................................................................................

#No. of equity shares held....................................................................................................

Name and Address of the Member.......................................................................................

(in block letters)....................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................

thI/We hereby record my/our presence at the 50 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 

rdMonday, the 23   day of September, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at its Registered Office at P.O. Mohanlalganj, Distt. 

Lucknow U.P.- 226301.

Note: 

 1. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the meeting.

2. Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting 

Hall.

3. Those members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this 

Attendance Slip.

..............................................................

Name of the Attended Member/Proxy

# As per Records of the Company

..............................................................

Signature of the Attended Member/Proxy
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Tel.: +91 7897885557/58, E-mail: , Web: upasbestos@upasbestos.com www.upal.in

PROXY FORM
{Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

Name and Address of the Shareholder(s)............................................................................................. 

E-mail id : ....................................................... Folio No./ DP Id & Client Id : ........................................

I/We being the member(s) of ................................................ Shares of U. P. Asbestos Limited, hereby appoint.

1. Name : ..................................................................Email-id.....................................................

       Address :..................................................................................................................................

       Signature : ............................................

 Or failing him

2. Name : ..................................................................Email-id.....................................................

       Address :..................................................................................................................................

       Signature : ............................................

 Or failing him

3. Name : ..................................................................Email-id.....................................................

       Address :..................................................................................................................................

       Signature : ............................................

 Or failing him

thAs my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us on my/our behalf at the 50  Annual General Meeting of the 

Company at Registered Office situated at P.O. Mohanlalganj, Dist. Lucknow U.P. – 226301, AT 11.00 A.M. on Monday, 
rdthe 23   September, 2024 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon (as ordinary resolution).

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Amitabh Tayal as Director who retires by rotation and is being eligible offer himself for 

reappointment (as ordinary resolution).

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

      3.  Approval of transaction under section 180(1)(a) of Companies Act, 2013 (as Special Resolution)

4. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditor for 2024-2025 (as Ordinary Resolution).

Signed this .....................................................day of ................................. 2024

Signature of Shareholder....................................Signature of Proxy holder(s)..........................................

NOTES: This form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office
of the company at P.O.  not less than 48 hours before the Mohanlalganj, Dist. Lucknow-226301
commencement of the meeting.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To,
The Members,

thYour Directors have pleasure in presenting their 50 Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the accounts 
stfor the Financial Year ended March 31 , 2024.

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company
The Board's Report shall be prepared based on the Standalone and Consolidated financial statements of the company.

1

Particulars  
Standalone  Consolidated

  
Revenue From operations    

Other Income    
Profit / (Loss) Before Interest, Depreciation and 
Exceptional Items

 
  

Finance Charges
   

Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation and Tax
   Provision for Depreciation

   Exceptional Item/Extraordinary Items
   Profit / (Loss) Before Tax

   Profit / (Net Loss) After Tax (including Deferred Tax) 

2023-24

19692.38

554.68

2143.76

1017.23
1136.24
476.35

Nil
659.89

547.59
 

2022-23

19,403.69

479.58

2127.38

1154.38
1,013.19

410.37
Nil

602.82

445.17
 

2023-24  

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

20590.06

531.29

2166.03

1035.89
1148.51
484.62

Nil
663.89

587.48
 

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIR
Our company at present has two units-one at Lucknow and other at Dadri. The company had undergone restructuring and 
to enhance its financial positions and overall shareholders' value, the company has given its Dadri unit and Lucknow unit 
on lease. The aggregate lease rentals are shown as lease rentals.

During the financial year under review, your Company's Standalone revenue from operations has been Rs.19,692.38/- (in 
Lakhs) as compared to Rs.19,403.69/- (in Lakhs) last year. The company's Standalone revenue has increased by 1.49% in 
comparison to last year; the company had a Standalone Profit before tax of Rs.659.89/- (in Lakhs) as compared to 
Standalone profit before tax of Rs.602.82/- (in Lakhs) last year, Standalone Profit after tax has been Rs.547.59/- (in Lakhs) 
compared to a profit after tax Rs.445.17/- (in Lakhs) in last year.

During the financial year under review, your Company achieved Consolidated revenue from operations amounting to 
Rs.20,590.06/- (in Lakhs), with a Profit before tax of Rs. 663.89/- (in Lakhs) and Consolidated Profit after tax of Rs. 587.48/- 
(in Lakhs). It's noteworthy that no comparison with the previous year is available due to the acquisition of the Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary on 02nd of September 2023.

Highlights of the performance of the company had been discussed in detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
report attached as Annexure III.

3. DIVIDEND
To conserve the resources, the Board recommends no dividend during the year under report.

4. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audited consolidated financial statements incorporating the duly audited financial statements of the subsidiaries, as 
prepared in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), Listing Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 along with all relevant documents and the Independent Auditors' Report thereon forms part of this 
Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 129(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the statement 
containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company's subsidiaries for the financial year ended on 31 
March 2024 in Form AOC-1 forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure II

Further, in terms of the provisions of section 136 of the Act, a copy of the audited financial statements for the financial year 
st ended on 31 March 2024 of the subsidiary companies will be made available by email to members of the Company, 

seeking such information. The members can send an email to . These financial statements shall also cs@upasbestos.com
be kept open for inspection by any member at the registered office of the Company during business hours. The financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are also placed on the Company's website at https://www.upal.in

5. SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE/JOINT VENTURES
To enter into the retail & Wholesale market of tiles, refractories, china wares, sanitary materials, pipes, tubes, tubular 
structures, cement, paints, adhesive, sheets, roofing, glass, furniture, fittings, textiles, electrical goods, building materials 

(Rupees in Lacs)

mailto:cs@upasbestos.com
https://www.upal.in
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ndetc. U.P. Asbestos Limited acquired 100% shares of Ubuild Better Private Limited on 02  September 2023 making it a 
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company. 

Ubuild Better Private Limited already had a wholly owned Subsidiary in the name Ubuild Better Distribution Private 
Limited which is a Step down subsidiary of UPAL. The Balance Sheet of the Subsidiaries are placed on the Company's 
website at  "https://www.upal.in"

6. CREDIT RATING
The Company has neither issued any debt instruments nor undertaken any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal involving mobilisation of funds, whether in India or abroad. However, during the financial year 2023-24, India 
Ratings & Research has reaffirmed Long-Term Issuer Rating at 'IND BB+'and its instrument-wise rating actions i.e. Fund-
based limit- IND BB+/Stable, Non-fund-based Limit (Sub-limit of term loan, which is currently unutilised as non-fund-based 
limit) - IND A4+ and Term loan - IND BB+/Stable 

7. RESERVES
No amount is proposed to be transferred to the reserves during the year under report.

8. DEPOSITS
We have not accepted any fixed deposits, including from the public, and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was 
outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date. 

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year, there were changes in the Board of Directors. Mrs. Mala Agarwal resigned from the position of 
Independent Woman Director , and Mrs. Sushma Seth was appointed as the Independent Woman Director of the 
Company. The Board does not have any regular Chairman.

 10. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of compliance 
certificate received from the executives of the Company and subject to disclosures in financial statements, as also on the 
basis of the discussion with the Statutory Auditors of the Company from time to time and to the best of their knowledge and 
information furnished, the Board of Directors state that:

I. In preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, all the applicable Accounting 
Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Companies Act, 2013 have been 
followed and there were no material departures.

II. They have adopted such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end 
of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

III. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

IV. The Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

V. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that, to the best of their 
knowledge, examination and analysis, such internal financial controls have been adequate and were operating 
effectively and

VI. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that, to the 
best of their knowledge, such systems were adequate and were operating effectively.

11. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in Form MGT-7 as a part of this Annual Report has been uploaded 
on website of the Company  under investor section.www.upal.in

12. MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR
stThe Board met Six times during the financial year ending on 31  March, 2024.The intervening gap between any two 

meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”). 
For further details in respect of Composition, number and attendance of each director in various Committees of Board as 
required in accordance with Secretarial Standard-1 on Board Meetings and Listing Regulations, please refer Corporate 
Governance Report annexed herewith as ANNEXURE I.
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13. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE 
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT
No such fraud has been reported under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

14. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Pursuant to the Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, statement of 
particulars of employees is annexed as ANNEXURE VI

15. BOARD EVALUATION
Regulation 10(19) (4) and 20(4) of LODR Regulations of the Listing Agreement mandates that the Board shall monitor and 
review the board evaluation framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states that an annual evaluation needs to be made by 
the board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors, Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 
2013 states that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the director being evaluated.

The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by 
the Board. The said criteria also contemplate evaluation of the directors based on their performance as director apart from 
their specific role as independent, non-executive and executive directors as mentioned below: -

Executive Director, being evaluated as directors as mentioned above, will also be evaluated on basis of targets/criteria 
given to them by board from time to time as well as their terms of appointment.
Independent Director, as director will be evaluated on meeting their obligations connected with their independence criteria 
as well as adherence with the requirements of professional conduct, roles, etc. applicable to independent directors as 
described in the Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.
None of the Independent Directors are due for retirement.

BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES
During the financial year under review the Board and its committees was constituted in the following manner :-

*NED -  Non-Executive Director
**ED- Executive Director

Sr. 

No.  

Name of 

Committee  

Members  

1. Audit Committee  Shri Paras Nath Singh  Chairman  

Smt. Mala Agarwal  Chairperson (till 02.09.2023)  

Shri Qamar Syed Wajahat  Member  /NED * 

Smt. Sushma Seth  Member/NED * (from 02.09.2023 onwards)  

Ms. Sakshi Pandey  Secretary to the Committee  

2. Nomination and 

Remuneration 

Committee  

 

Shri Paras Nath Singh  Chairperson  

Shri Qamar Syed Wajahat  Member  /NED * 

Smt. Mala Agarwal  Chairperson (till 02.09.2023)  

Smt. Sushma Seth  Member/NED * (from 02.09.2023 onwards)  

Ms. Sakshi Pandey Secretary to the Committee

3. Stakeholders’ 
Relationship
Committee  

Shri Paras Nath Singh  Chairperson  

  

Smt. Mala Agarwal  Chairperson (til l 02.09.2023)  

Smt. Sushma Seth  Member/NED * (from 02.09.2023 onwards)  

Shri Amitabh Tayal  Member  /ED ** 

Ms. Sakshi Pandey  Secretary to the Committee    
4. Share Transfer 

Committee  
Shri Amitabh Tayal  Chairperson  (ED )** 

Smt. Mala Agarwal  Member  /NED * (till 02.09.2023)  

Smt. Sushma Seth  Member/NED * (from 02.09.2023 onwards)  

Ms. Sakshi Pandey  Secretary to the Committee  

5. Internal Audit 

Committee  
Shri Amitabh Tayal  Chairperson  (ED )** 

Shri Priyank Tayal  Member ( ED )** 

Smt. Shailly Tayal  Member   

Ms. Sakshi Pandey  Secretary to the Committee  
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The Board has accepted all recommendations made by the Audit Committee from time to time.
 
16. DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) AND REAPPOINTMENT, IF ANY

The company has received declaration from all the Independent Director(s) under section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 that he/she meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Listing Guidelines.

17. DETAILS OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS, ESOP'S & SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights, ESOP's & Sweat Equity.

18. AUDITORS

A. STATUTORY AUDITOR: 
The Auditors, Jain Kapoor & Co., Chartered Accountants have resigned due to health issues in the family of one of their 
senior partners who was looking after the Statutory Audit of the Company. M/s S.N. Kapur & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants has been appointed as the new Statutory Auditor of the company for a term of 5 years, replacing the resigning 
Auditor.

The Auditors in their Report to the members as attached herewith have given 1 qualified opinion on both Standalone and 
Consolidated Financials and the response of your directors with respect to it is as follows: -

Auditors have expressed inability to comment on the Short provision on account of bad and doubtful debts in respect of 
outstanding of trade receivable exceeding one year. 

Response to Point 1.

The Company has changed its business line from manufacturing to leasing in FY 2021-22. Outstanding more than one 
year pertains to those parties who had business transactions with the Company before change of business. For FY 2022-
23, The Company has recovered Rs. 1800.08 lacs out of these parties from the total outstanding debtors relating to 

stmanufacturing activity of Rs. 2516.48 lacs as on 31  March 2022. The outstanding balance pertains to these parties is 
stRs.650.51 lacs as on 31  March 2024. The Company is hopeful of recovering bulk of the balance amount in due course of 

time.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, M/s. Aditya & Associates, Practicing 

stCompany Secretary had been appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending on 31  
March, 2024. The Secretarial Audit report for the F.Y. 2023-24 is attached as ANNEXURE IX to this report. There were no 

stqualification/reservation or adverse remarks provided by the Secretarial Auditor in their report for the year ended 31  
March, 2024.

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR:
M/s M. Rishabh & Associates have resigned from their post-audit duties effective until 31.10.2023 due to their Personal 
pre-occupancy. Subsequently, M/s Deepak Shukla & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have been appointed as the new 
Internal Auditors. During the year, the Company implemented their suggestions and recommendations to improve the 
control environment. Their scope of work includes review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review 
of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. 
Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the process owners and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions 
of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

D. COST AUDITOR:
M/s SHISHIR JAISWAL & CO., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 102450) were appointed as the “Cost Auditors” of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, for all the applicable products, pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. The Company has prepared and 
maintained cost accounts and records for the Financial Year 2023-24, as per sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014. 

19. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRING 
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT
The company has signed a lease agreement for vacant land located at P.O. Mohanlalganj, Lucknow, intended for the 
construction of a warehouse. The effective rental Per Annum would be 34.18 lakhs which would amount to 30.76 Crore for 
90 Years.

20. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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The company has adequate internal financial control with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls 
were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

21. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE: 
No such order has been passed against the Company.

22. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:
The company has extended loans and investments in compliance with the limits specified under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and its corresponding rules, as detailed in Note 52 of the Standalone Balance Sheet and Note 53 of 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Loans made are detailed as under :-

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso 
thereto shall be disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 as ANNEXURE VII.

The policy on materiality of and dealing with related party transactions is available on the Company's website at 
www.upal.in

24. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
In terms of regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board of your Company has adopted a Risk Management 
Policy, which inter alia, provides for framework for identification of internal and external risks faced by the Company, 
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability, information, cyber security, strategic or any other risk as may be 
determined by the Board and the measures for risk mitigation, reporting of critical risks within the Company and business 
continuity plan.

Further it is specified that the company is not part of the top 1000 listed entities or a 'high value debt listed entity” and hence 
the Company is exempt from formation of the Risk Management Committee.

25. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, 2015, a detailed report on the Corporate Governance, has been included in this Annual 
Report along with the reports on Management Discussion and Analysis and General Shareholder Information.

All the Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for directors 
and senior management of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024. A declaration to this effect signed by the 
Managing Director and CFO of the Company is contained in this Annual Report and is attached as ANNEXURE -V.

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements 
and other matters as required under regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, 2015, a certificate from the Secretarial auditor of the Company regarding compliance 
of conditions of corporate governance are annexed herewith as ANNEXURE IV. A Managing Director and CFO certification 
is attached herewith as ANNEXURE X.

26. VIGIL MECHANISM
In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and 
employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the 
website of the Company at www.upal.in under investors/policy documents/Vigil Mechanism Policy link.

27. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

th(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9  December, 2013. Under the said Act every 
company is required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at 
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SL Details of Parties  Loan/Invest
ment/Guar

-antee  

Amount (in 
Lakhs)  

Purpose of  
loan/investment/
Guarantee   for 
the recipient

 

Date of SR
(if reqd)

ROI (%)

1. Ubuild Better Private Limited
 (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

 

Loan 
 

327.34
 
Business 
Operation

 

24.09.2020 10.50

2. Ubuild Better Private Limited
 (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

Guarantee
 
300

 
Business 
Operation

17.08.2023 NA
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work place of any women employee. The members of the Committee are Mrs. Shailly Tayal, Mrs. Sushma Seth, Ms. Sakshi 
Pandey and Mr. Anup Srivastava.
Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has set up Committee for 
implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not received any complaint of harassment. 

28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
A statement giving details of conserving of energy, technology absorption, foreign earnings and outgo in accordance with 
Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to 
the Directors Report as ANNEXURE-VIII.

29. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
During the Financial Year 2023-24, your Company was required to spend Rs. 12.44 Lacs towards CSR Activities in terms of 
the mandatory provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, while the actual CSR spending for the year was Rs. 13.55 Lacs/-. Thus, the mandatory amount for the 
Financial Year 2023-24 has been fully spent by the Company. Therefore, the company disbursed this amount in 
installments, part directly and part through Madhayam Samajik Sanstha. 
Further CSR contribution is less than Rs.50,00,000/- and hence the Company is exempt from formation of CSR Committee 
under Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013. All the function related to CSR shall be performed by the Board of 
Directors itself. The report on CSR is attached as ANNEXURE-XI.

30. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES 
The Company was earlier listed with Delhi Stock Exchange Limited and UP Stock Exchange Limited. However, with de-
recognition of Delhi Stock Exchange and UP Stock Exchange, the company got its shares listed with Metropolitan Stock 
Exchange of India Ltd. w.e.f. 08.02.2016. The Company has made payment of all dues to the Stock Exchanges.

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI
The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of 
Directors (SS–1) and General Meetings (SS–2).

32. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, 2015
The annexed financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
section 133 of the Act, the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

33. OTHER DISCLOSURES AND AFFIRMATIONS 
Pursuant to the provisions of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company affirms that for the year ended on March 
31, 2024: 

a. There were no proceedings, either filed by the Company or against the Company, pending under the  Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the National Company Law Tribunal or any other court. 

b. There was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution.
c. There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during F.Y.2024.
d. The Managing Director and the Whole-time director(s) of the Company, as per the terms of appointment, do not 

draw any commission or remuneration from subsidiary companies. Hence, no disclosure as required under 
section 197(14) of the Act has been made.

e.  A cash flow statement for FY2024 is attached to the Balance Sheet.
f. The securities of the Company were not suspended from trading during the year under review on account of 

corporate actions or otherwise.
g. There was no revision to the financial statements and Directors' Report of the Company during the year under 

review.
h. Details as prescribed under section 134 of the Act and Rules made thereunder, applicable to the Company, have 

been specifically given in this Report, wherever applicable.

19. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
An acknowledgement to all with whose help, cooperation and hard work the Company is able to achieve the results.

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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Annexure- I
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance is about promoting fairness, transparency, accountability, commitment to values, ethical business conduct 
and considering the interest of all stakeholders while conducting business.

In accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereto ('the Listing Regulations, 2015'), given below are the corporate governance policies 
and practices of U.P. Asbestos Ltd. ('the Company', 'UPAL') for the year 2023-24 (or 'FY2024').

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company firmly believes in practicing good and effective Corporate Governance and endeavors to improve on these aspects on 
an ongoing basis. These must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate within accepted norms of propriety, 
equity, fair play and sense of justice. Accountability improves decision-making and transparency helps to explain the rationale behind 
decisions, and thereby builds shareholders and other stakeholders' confidence.
In keeping with the essence and philosophy of Corporate Governance, the Company has adopted a frame-work governed by values 
of quality, customer orientation, commitment, discipline, integrity, transparency, teamwork and trust. The Company is making all 
efforts to imbibe high standards of corporate governance.

UPAL's philosophy of corporate governance is based upon commitment of the Board of Directors and the senior officers of the 
company in managing the company in a transparent manner for maximizing long term shareholder value. Adequate control systems 
exist to enable the Board to effectively discharge its responsibilities in making fair and transparent decisions.

THE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
UPAL's governance framework integrates the Board, its committees, and Executive Management. The Board provides 
comprehensive strategic oversight, setting goals, defining reporting mechanisms, and guiding decision-making processes to 
safeguard stakeholders' interests and drive value creation. Board Committees specialize in distinct governance aspects, while the 
Executive Management, led by the Managing Director, oversees daily operations, business strategies, project and product 
development, financial management, HR, and policy implementation.

1.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board
The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which stipulates that if the 
Chairman is a non-executive Director, at least one-third of the Board should comprise of Independent Directors. The appointments 
made during the year are on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee after considering the 
qualifications, positive attributes.
Further the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during FY2024 are mentioned in the Directors' Report and herein 
below. 

stAs on 31  March 2024, 
(i) Composition & Category of Directors

Particulars  Number of Directors  Percentage of composition
Executive Director  2  40%  
Non-executive Directors 

 
3

 
60%

 
Total 5 100%

Total non-executive directors are 3 out of whom 3 directors are non-executive independent directors.   

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under 
review are as under:

The Board at its meeting held on 02 September 2023, on basis of the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee had approved the appointment of Smt. Sushma Seth (holding DIN: 10293874) as Non-Executive, Independent (Woman) 

nd thDirector of the Company for a period of five years with effect from 02  September 2024. The members at the 49  AGM of the 
thCompany held on 29   September 2023 had approved the said appointment.

Mrs. Mala Agarwal (DIN:07134639) tendered her resignation due to pre-occupancy from the position of Non-Executive Independent 
(Woman) Director and as a member of various committees of the company. The Board accepted her resignation during the meeting 
held on September 2, 2024. She has also confirmed that there are no other material reasons for her departure beyond those stated.

(ii) Director's Attendance Record, Directorship held and Status
th th th  During the year under review, 06 Board meetings were held and conducted on 24 May, 2023; 18  July, 2023; 11 August 2023; 

nd th th02  September, 2023; 07  November 2023 and 08  February, 2024. The composition of Board of Directors, attendance of 
directors at the board meetings and Annual General Meeting and also the number of other directorships in Indian Public Limited 
Companies and memberships of the committees of the Board of such companies are as follows:
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Name of the 
Director  

Category 
of 
Director  

Attendance 
at last AGM  

No. of 
Board 
meetings 
attended  

No. of other 
Directorships 
in Public Ltd. 
Companies  

No. of 
meetings 
eligible 
to attend  

Other Board’s  
Committees  

Chairman  Member
Shri Qamar  Syed 
Wajahat  

*NED  No  04  NIL  06  NIL  02  

Smt. Mala Agarwal  
(***up till w.e.f. 02.09.2023)

   

*NED  NA  03  NIL  04  ***03  ***01  

Shri Priyank Tayal
  

**ED
 

Yes
 

06
 

2
 

06
 

NIL
 

01
 

Shri Amitabh Tayal
  

**
 

ED
 

Yes
 

06
 

1
 

06
 

02
 

01
 

Shri Paras Nath Singh
(****w.e.f. 02.09.2023)

 

*NED
 

Yes
 

06
 

NIL
 

06
 

****03
 

00
 

Smt. Sushma Seth 
(w.e.f. 02.09.2023)

 

*NED
 

No
 

02
 

NIL
 

02
 

NIL
 

04
 

* Non Executive Independent Director & **ED-Exécutive Director

(iii) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

Name of the Director  Designation of Director  Relationships Inter-se  
Shri Paras Nath Singh  
(DIN: 08470004)  

Non-executive Independent Director  No Relationship Inter se  

Shri Qamar Syed Wajahat  
(DIN:  01692185)  

Non-executive Independent Director  No Relationship Inter se  

Smt. Mala Agarwal  
( DIN:

 
07134639)

 
(till

 
02.09.2023)

 

Non-executive Independent Director  No Relationship Inter se  

Shri Priyank Tayal
 (DIN: 00556534)

 

Whole-time Director
 

Son of  Shri Amitabh Tayal, who is a 
Managing Director of the Company

Shri Amitabh Tayal
 (DIN: 00556569)

 

Managing Director
 

Father of  Shri Priyank Tayal, who is 
a Whole-time Director of the 
Company

 Smt. Sushma Seth
 ( DIN: 10293874) (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)

Non-executive Independent Director
 

No Relationship Inter se
 

Notes: None of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alternate director, in more than twenty companies at the same 
time. None of them has directorships in more than ten public companies. For reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships of 
private companies that are either holding or subsidiary company of a public company are included; for reckoning the limit of private 
and public companies, directorships in dormant companies and companies under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 
are excluded.
As per the declarations received, none of the directors serve as an independent director in more than seven equity listed companies 
or in more than three equity listed companies in case he or she is a whole-time director/managing director in any listed company.

Further, the Managing Director of UPAL does not serve as an independent director in any equity listed company.
For the purpose of considering the limit of the committees in which a director can serve, all public limited companies, whether listed or 
not, have been included and all other companies including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under 
section 8 of the Act have been excluded.

None of the directors was a member in more than ten committees nor a chairperson in more than five committees across all 
companies in which he/she was a director. Only audit committees and stakeholders' relationship committees are considered for the 
purpose of reckoning committee positions.

Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as has been highlighted herein, the outstanding attendance record and participation of 
the directors in Board and Committee meetings indicate their commitment and ability to devote adequate time to their responsibilities 
as the Company's fiduciaries.

(iv) Key Skills, Expertise and Competencies of the Board of Directors:
The Board of the Company is adequately structured to ensure a high degree of diversity by age, education/qualifications, 
professional background, sector expertise, special skills and geography. The Board of Directors has, based on the 
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, identified the following core skills/expertise/competencies as 
required in the context of the businesses and sectors of the Company for its effective functioning and the same is mapped against 
each of the Directors:
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(v) Board Procedures
To ensure maximum Director attendance, Board Meeting dates are set in advance, considering individual availability. Agenda 
papers are circulated on time or tabled at meetings if needed, enabling informed decisions. The Board regularly reviews routine 
business items, including financial results, operational performance, and compliance reports, etc. as per SEBI Listing Regulations. 
Important decisions are communicated to the relevant departments for action.

(vi) Opinion of the Board
The Board confirms that, in its opinion, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations, 2015 and 
the Act and are independent of the management.

(vii) Certificate from Practising Company Secretary
The Company has received a certificate from Aditya Agarwal, Practising Company Secretary to the effect that none of the directors 
on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority. The certificate is attached as Annexure-XII.

(viii) INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETINGS
The Composition of the Board is in conformity with point no. VII. of Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013.The independent directors of 
the company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of 
management, the meeting was held on November 07, 2023. All the independent directors of the company were present at such 
meeting.

Core skills/expertise /
competencies  
Governance and 
Board service  
Business 
understanding  
Risk/Legal/Regulatory 
compliance

 
Information 
Technology/

 Accounting/Financial 
experience

 Industry/Sector 
Knowledge

 Strategy development 
and

 implementation
 Human Resource

 

 Shri Amitabh 
Tayal  

Shri Priyank 
Tayal  

Shri Qamar 
Syed Wajahat  

Shri Paras 
Nath Singh  

Smt. Sushma 
Seth  

YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  

YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  

YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES
 

YES

 
YES

 
YES

 
YES

 
YES

 

Name of the Director  

Shri Qamar Syed Wajahat
 

Shri Paras Nath Singh 
 Smt. Sushma Seth

 
No. of Meetings  No. of Meetings 

entitled to 
attend

Held  Attended  

 
01

 
01

 
1

 
01

 
01

 
1

01 01 1

2.  AUDIT COMMITTEE
The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and under Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. All the members of the committee are financially literate. There were 7 (Seven) Meetings of the Audit 
Committee held during the Financial Year 2023-24, (i.e., April 11, 2023; May 24, 2023; July 18, 2023; August 11, 2023; September 2, 
2023; November 07, 2023 and February 08, 2024). The particulars of the meeting attended by the members and changes in 
composition during the year are as follows: -

Name of the Director  Position  
No. of Meetings  No. of Meetings 

entitled to 
attend  Held  Attended  

Smt. Mala Agarwal  (up till 02.09.2023)  Chairperson  07  04  05  
Mr. Paras Nath Singh (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)  Chairperson  07  07  07  
Shri Qamar Syed Wajahat  Member  07  05  07  
Smt. Sushma Seth (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)  Member  07  02  02  
Ms. Sakshi Pandey 

 
Secretary to the Committee

 
07
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Name of the Director  Position  
No. of Meetings  No. of Meetings 

entitled to attend  Held  Attended  
Smt. Mala Agarwal  (up till 02.09.2023)  Chairperson  04  02  02  
Shri Amitabh Tayal  Member  04  04  04  
Shri Paras Nath Singh  (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)  Chairperson  04  04  04  
Smt. Sushma Seth (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)  Member  04  02  02  
Ms. Sakshi Pandey  Secretary to the Committee   

(Compliance officer)
 

04   

Terms of Reference 
The Audit Committee's terms of reference are defined by Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Committee oversees the Company's financial reporting processes, ensuring accurate and transparent 
disclosures. It recommends the appointment, remuneration, and terms for auditors, approves payments for non-audit services, and 
reviews annual financial statements and auditors' reports. This includes assessing changes in accounting policies, major accounting 
entries, and compliance with legal requirements, as well as reviewing related party transactions. The Committee also monitors 
quarterly financial results, auditor independence, and performance, scrutinizes inter-corporate loans and investments, and 
evaluates internal controls and risk management. It reviews internal audit functions, significant findings, and the effectiveness of the 
Whistleblower mechanism, and oversees the utilization of significant loans and advances involving subsidiaries. Additionally, the 
Committee addresses other matters as required by statutory authorities or referred by the Board, ensuring robust oversight and 
control.

3.  STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
(Earlier Known as Shareholders' Grievance Committee)
The Composition of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is in conformity with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and under 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer. There were 4 (Four) Meetings of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee held during the Financial Year 2023-2024, (i.e., May 24, 2023, August 11, 2023, November 
07, 2023 and February 08, 2024). The particulars of the meeting attended be the members and changes in composition during the 
year are as follows: -

Terms of Reference 
The Committee's terms of reference include resolving grievances of security holders, such as issues related to share transfers, non-
receipt of annual reports, and the issuance of new or duplicate certificates. It also reviews measures for effective shareholder voting, 
adherence to service standards by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, and ensure timely delivery of annual reports, and statutory 
notices. Additionally, the Committee handles other matters required by statutory or regulatory authorities and any other issues 
referred by the Board.

Details of investors' complaints received and redressed

Investors’ complaints
  

Attended/resolved during the year

Pending at the beginning of the year -
 

NIL

 Received during the year 

 

11

 Disposed of during the year 

 

11

 
Pending at the end of the year NIL

4.  NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
(Earlier Known as Remuneration Committee)
The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in conformity with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and under 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer. There were 5 (Five) Meetings of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee held during the Financial Year 2023-2024, (i.e., May 24, 2023, August 11 2023, September 
02 2023, November 07, 2023 and February 08, 2024). The particulars of the meeting attended by the members and changes in 
composition during the year are as follows: -

 
Name of the Director  
 

 
Position  

 
No. of Meetings  

 
No. of Meetings 
entitled to attend

Held  Attended  
Smt Mala Agarwal (till 02.09.2023)  Chairperson  05  02  03  
Shri Qamar Syed Wajahat  Member  05  04  05  
Shri Paras Nath Singh (w.e.f. 
02.09.2023)

 

Chairperson  05  05  05  

Smt. Sushma Seth (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)
 

Member
 

05
 

02
 

02
 Ms. Sakshi Pandey Secretary to the Committee 05
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Name  Designation  Changes  

Amitabh Tayal  Managing Director  A special resolution was passed at the AGM on 
29.09.2023 to continue him  as Managing 
Director at 70 years of age.  

Priyank Tayal  Whole Time Director  -  

Gaurav Arora  Chief Financi al Officer  -  

Sakshi Pandey  Company Secretary and  
Compliance Officer  

-  

Anup Srivastava  Head –  HR & Legal  -  

Terms of Reference
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) operates under the terms set forth in the Listing Regulations and Companies 
Act, 2013. Its key responsibilities include identifying and recommending candidates for Board and senior management roles, 
evaluating Directors' performance, and formulating criteria for Director qualifications and remuneration policies. The NRC also 
reviews compensation packages for Managing/Whole Time Directors, devises Board diversity policies, determines annual 
increments and incentives. Additionally, it may delegate functions to Senior Management and address any matters referred by the 
Board or required by regulatory authorities.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA
The Board follows a formal evaluation process, as required by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, to assess its 
own performance, individual Directors, and the functioning of its Committees (Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders' 
Relationship, etc.). The evaluation is conducted using structured forms recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, covering aspects like Board composition, culture, duties, and governance. These forms are circulated to Board 
members along with agenda papers. Each Director's performance is evaluated by their peers, with results submitted to the Company 
Secretary or Chairman of the meeting. The Board discusses these evaluations, formulates a collective assessment, and provides 
individual feedback to Directors for improvement.

Senior Management

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration  Name of MD/WTD/ Manager  Total Amount  

    Priyank Tayal  
WTD  

Amitabh Tayal  
MD  

1 Gross salary      
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income -tax Act, 1961  27,00,000.00  19,20,000.00  46,20,000.00  
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income -
tax Act, 1961  

42,867.00  3,64,346.00  4,07,213.00  
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-  tax Act, 1961  -  -  -  

2 Stock Option  
   

3 Sweat Equity  

   
4

 
Commission

 
specify…

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
5

 
Others, please specify (Emplo yers 
Contribution to PF)

 
 

21,600.00
 

-
 

21,600.00
 

  
Total (A)

 27,64,467.00
 

22,84,346.00
 

50,48,813.00
 

Remuneration to other directors: NIL
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REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/ WTD

S.No.
 

Particulars of Remuneration
 

Key Managerial Personnel
 

    Sakshi Pandey 
(CS)  

Gaurav Arora  
 CFO  

Total  

1 Gross salary      

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income -tax Act, 1961  

5,64,192.00  15,40,600.00  21,04,792.00  

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961  

3,861.00  1,57,104.00 1,60,965.00  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income -tax Act, 1961  -  -  -  

2 Stock Option  -  -  -  
3 Sweat Equity  -  -  -  
4 Commission  -  -  -  

  -  as % of profit  -  -  -  

   others, specify…  -  -  -  
5 Others,  please specify(Employers 

Contribution to PF)  

21,600.00 
 

21,600.00  43,200.00  
 

  Total  5,89,653.00  17,19,304.00  23,08,957.00  

5. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE
The Board has re-constituted the Share Transfer Committee comprising of following persons to enable it to accord its approval on the 
request for transfer of physical shares of the company lodged from time to time. There was 1(one) Meeting of the Share Transfer 
Committee held during the Financial Year 2023-2024, (i.e., November 07, 2023). The particulars of the meeting attended by the 
members and changes in composition during the year are as follows :-

Name of the Director  Position  
No. of Meetings  No. of Meetings 

entitled to attend
Held  Attended  

Shri Amitabh Tayal  Chairperson  01  01  01  
Smt. Sushma Seth (w.e.f. 02.09.2023)

 
Member

 
01

 
01

 
01

       Ms. Sakshi Pandey Secretary to the Committee 01

6. INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Composition of Internal Audit Committee is in conformity with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013.. 
There were 02 (Two) Meeting of the Internal Audit Committee held during the Financial Year 2023-2024, (i.e. May 02, 2023 and 
December 11, 2023). The particulars of the meeting attended by the members and changes in composition during the year are as 
follows: -

 
Name of the Director  
 

 
Position  

 
No. of Meetings  

 

No. of Meetings 
entitled to attend

Held  Attended  
Shri Amitabh Tayal

 
Chairman

 
02

 
02

 
02

 
Shri Priyank Tayal

 
Member

 
02

 
02

 
02

 Smt. Shailly Tayal
 

Member 
 

02
 

02
 

02
 Ms. Sakshi Pandey Secretary to the Committee 02

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
Not applicable on the Company as CSR contribution is less than Rs.50,00,000/-

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
TH rd50 Annual General Meeting would be held on 23  day of September, 2024 i.e. on Monday at 11:00 A:M.

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting Held during the year:

Financial 
Year

Date Time Venue 
No.  of Special  

Resolutions considered

2023-24 17.08.2023 11.00 A.M. Mohanlalganj, Lucknow-226301  02  
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Details of last three Annual General Meetings are as follows -

Financial Year  Date  Time  Venue  
No. of Special  
Resolutions considered

2021-22  27.09.2021  11.00 A.M.  Mohanlalganj, Lucknow-226301  05  

2022-23
 

27.09.2022
 

11.00 A.M.
 

Mohanlalganj, Lucknow-226301
 

00
 

2023-24
 

29.09.2023
 

11.00 A.M.
 

Mohanlalganj, Lucknow-226301
 

04
 

No business requiring approval by way of Postal Ballot is proposed to be transacted at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURES 

i. Related Party Transaction and their basis
 There were no materially significant transactions of the company with the Directors or the Management or their relatives 

etc. that may have any potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large and all related party transactions made 
during the year are as per statutory compliance of the relevant statute in this regard.

ii. Details of capital market non-compliance, if any
 There was no non-compliance of any legal requirements; nor has there been any penalty or stricture imposed on the Company 

by stock exchange, SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

iii. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
The financial statements are prepared under the historic cost convention and statements have been prepared in accordance 
with applicable mandatory accounting standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India & relevant 
presentational requirement of the Companies Act, 2013.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
Information to Stock Exchanges and Newspaper publicity-
The Company has always promptly reported dates of its various Board Meetings, General Meetings, Book Closures / Record Date to 
Stock Exchanges and also published information pertaining thereto in reputed newspapers for information of shareholders.
Quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results and other public notices issued for the shareholders are published in the 
newspapers in compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 or and also on the website of the Company . www.upal.in

During the year under review, the Company sent documents, such as notice calling the general meeting, audited financial 
statements, directors' report, auditors' report, etc. in electronic form at the email addresses provided by the shareholders and in 
physical forms whose email address are not updated. The same was made available by them to the Company through the 
depositories. Shareholders having shares in demat form and desiring to receive the said documents in printed form continue to get 
the same upon request.

All financial and other vital official news releases and documents under the Listing Regulations, 2015 are also communicated to the 
concerned stock exchanges, besides being placed on the Company's website.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
rdAnnual General Meeting  Date:  23  September, 2024

    Time:  11:00 AM
    Venue:  P.O. Mohanlalganj, Lucknow – 226301  
      
Dates of Book Closures from 17.09.2024 to 23.09.2024 both days inclusive

st stFinancial Year of the Company starts from 1  April of a year and ends on 31  March of the subsequent following year.

Listing on Stock 
Exchanges  

METROPOLITAN STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LTD.  

ISIN NO.  INE181C01016  

Stock/Scrip Code  UPAL  

Share Transfer Agent  KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED.  
“Selenium Tower B”, Plot No. 31 & 32  
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Seriligampally  
Hyderabad – 500032, Telangana

13

http://www.upal.in


DIRECTORS' REPORT 

  

Share Transfer System
 

SEBI’s amended regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, prohibits the transfer of 
securities (except transmission or transposition of shares) in physical form from 1 April 2019. 
Accordingly, the Company has sent letters to members holding shares in physical form 
advising them to dematerialize their holdings.

  
SEBI vide its circulars dated 25 January 2022 and 25 May 2022 has provided the guidelines 
to issue the securities in dematerialized form by issuing a ‘Letter of Confirmation’ in lieu of 
physical securities, certificates to the securities holder/Claimant within 30 days of its receipt 
of such request after removing objections, if any.

 

 Share transfers received by the share transfer agent/Company are registered within 15 
days from the date of receipt, provided the documents are complete in all respects. Such 
details were placed before the Board on a quarterly basis.  

 Annual Listing Fee The annual listing fee to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd. was paid on time.

11. Distribution Schedule as on 31.03.2024 is follows –

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31/03/2024  

Sl.  Category  Cases  % of Cases  Amount  % Amount 

1 1-5000  896  77.77  19,18,460.00  2.11  
2 5001-  10000  109  9.46  7,36,000.00  0.81  
3

 
10001-

 
20000

 
69

 
6.00

 
9,83,750.00

 
1.08

 
4

 
20001-

 
30000

 
25

 
2.17

 
6,45,000.00

 
0.71

 
5

 
30001-

 
40000

 
7

 
0.61

 
2,30,000.00

 
0.25

 
6

 
40001-

 
50000

 
5

 
0.43

 
2,37,000.00

 
0.26

 
7

 
50001-

 
100000

 
4

 
0.35

 
2,16,000.00

 
0.23

 8
 

100001& Above
 

37
 

3.21
 

8,61,05,720.00
 
94.55

 

  
Total

 
1151

 
100.00

 
9,10,71,930.00

 
100.00

 
12. Dematerialization of Shares
The trading of Company's equity shares falls under the category of compulsory delivery in dematerialized mode in respect of all 
categories of investors. The members are encouraged to go in for dematerialization of their shareholding to derive benefits of scrip 

st less trading. As on 31 March 2024, the position of NSDL & CDSL was as under -

Category  2023-2024  2022-2023  
No. of Shares  (%)  No. of Shares  (%)

A. DEMAT      
NSDL

 
68,99,531

 
75.76

 
68,85,531

 
75.61

CDSL
 

6,29,441
 

6.91
 

6,29,091
 
6.91

B.
 

PHYSICAL
 

15,78,221
 

17.33
 

15,92,571
 
17.48

TOTAL [A+B] 91,07,193 100.00 91,07,193 100.00

13. ADDRESSES:

Registered Office  P.O. Mohanlalganj,  
Distt. Lucknow (U. P.) –  226 301  

Tel. No.: +91 7897885557-58

Corporate Office
 

Mahmoodabad Estate Bldg.,
 15-Hazratganj, 

 Lucknow – 226001

Tel. No.: 0522-2622905-6, 

 

PLANT LOCATIONS:

Plants: 1 –  3  P.O. Mohanlalganj,  
Distt. Lucknow (U. P.) –  226 301  

Tel. No.: +91 7897885557-58

Plant: 4
 

PO. Bishara,
 Tehsil –

 
Dadri, Distt. Gautam Budh Nagar, (U. P.) -

 
203 007

 

Tel. No.: +91 8750315566
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14. Credit Ratings
The Company has neither issued any debt instruments nor undertaken any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal 
involving mobilisation of funds, whether in India or abroad. However, for the financial year 2023-24, India Ratings and Research (Ind-
Ra) has affirmed U.P. Asbestos Limited's (UPAL) Long-Term Issuer Rating at 'IND BB+'. The Outlook is Stable.

15. Other Disclosure:
(i) The company has adopted various policies as applicable under SEBI (LODR), 2015 guidelines available on the website of 

the Company .www.upal.in
List of key policies of UPAL and Information on the Company's website, regarding key policies, codes and charters, adopted by the 
Company:

S. 
No.

 Name of Policy
 

Website Link
 

1
 

Whistle Blower Policy
 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1537010653_WHISTLEBLOWERPOL
ICY.PDF

  

2
 

Remuneration Policy
 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1537010404_NOMINATIONANDREM
UNERATIONPOLICY.PDF

  

3
 

Policy of materiality and dealing
 

with related party transactions 
http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/382_1691753172_RPTPOLICY.PDF

 

4 Policy for determining Material 

Subsidiaries 
http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/356_1685633059_MATERIALSUBSIDI
ARYPOLICY.PDF  

5 Policy on determination of 

materiality for disclosure of 

events or information 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1650865924__1537010466_POLICY
FORDISCLOSUREOFEVENTSINFORMATIONANDDETERMINATIONOFTHEM
ATERIALITYPREAMBLE.PDF    

6 Policy On Independent Director 
Familiarization & Continuing 
Education 

Programme Purpose And 
Objective Of The Policy 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/65_1537010900_POLICYONINDEPEN
DENTDIRECTORS.PDF  

7 Insider Trading Policy http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1537790848_INSIDERTRADINGPOLI
CY.PDF  

8 Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/286_1666941444_CSRPOLICY.PDF  

9 Code of Conduct for Directors 
and Members of Senior 
Management. 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/302_1675308312_CODEOFCONDUC
TFORBOARDMEMBERSANDSENIORMANAGEMENT.PDF  

 1 0 Vigil Mechanism Policy   http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1537010632_VIGILMECHANI

SMPOLICY.PDF
 

11 Risk Management Policy upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1537010616_RISKMANAGEMENTPOLICY.PDF  

12 Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (POSH) Policy 

upal.in/assets/uploads/content/_1693822804_POLICYONPREVENTIONOFSEXU
ALHARASSMENTOFWOMENATWOKPLACEPOSH.PDF  

13 Preservation of Documents  
Policy 

upal.in/assets/uploads/content/66_1538653396_POLICYONPRESEVATIONOFD
OCUMENTS.PDF 

14 Internal Control Policy http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/269_1655641217_INTERNALCONTR
OLPOLICYUPAL.PDF  

15
 

Criteria for Payment to Non-
Executive Directors

 

upal.in/assets/uploads/content/300_1675308108_CRITERIAFORMAKINGPAYM
ENTTONON-EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS.PDF

 

16
 

Terms and Conditions of 
Independent Directors

 

http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/301_1675308197_TERMSCONDITION
SOFINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS.PDF

  

15
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(ii) Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures:
 The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and Statutory Authority on all matters 

related to capital markets. During the last three years, no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by 
these authorities. None of the Company's listed securities is suspended from trading.

(iii) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:
 In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion, the Company is committed to the high standards of 

corporate governance and stakeholder responsibility. In line with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and of 
Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy has been formulated for Directors and 
employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company's Code of 
Conduct etc. The said Policy provides for adequate safeguard against victimization of Directors/employees who avail of 
such mechanism and provides access to the Chairman of Audit Committee in exceptional cases. It is affirmed that no 
person has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy has been placed on website of the 
company.

(iv) Familiarisation programme
 To familiarize Independent Directors, the Company conducts periodic presentations led by the Managing Director, 

covering strategy, operations, and various business functions. New directors receive the latest Annual Report, Codes of 
Conduct, and meeting schedules, along with a detailed Appointment Letter outlining their roles and responsibilities. Board 
meetings feature updates on safety, risk management, company policies, and regulatory changes. Additionally, quarterly 
presentations provide insights into business performance, market share, and financials, while quarterly results and press 
releases are also sent to the directors.

(v) Prevention of Insider Trading:
 Compliances regarding Insider Trading Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

('SEBI PIT Regulations') the Company has a Board approved code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by 
insiders ('Code of Conduct') and a code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive 
information ('Code of Fair Disclosure').

 By frequent communication, the Company makes designated employees conversant of the obligations under the SEBI PIT 
Regulations.

 The Audit Committee and the Board had reviewed the compliance in terms regulation 9A(4) of the SEBI PIT Regulations 
and confirmed that the systems for internal control with respect to the SEBI PIT Regulations are adequate and are 
operating effectively.

(vi) Statutory Auditors
 Total fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis to the auditors including all entities in their 

network firm/entity of which they are a part is given below:

( ₹ in Lacs.)

Sr. No.   Particulars     Statutory Audit Fee  Other Services

1.    U.P. Asbestos Limited    3.25    0.74  
2.  

  
Ubuild Better Pvt. Ltd.

   
0.25

   
-

 
3.  

  
Ubuild Better Distribution Pvt. Ltd.

 
0.20

   
-

 
(vii) Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, 
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.
The details of the number of cases filed under sexual harassment and their disposal, during the financial year 2023-24 is as 
under:

Number of cases pending  as on the beginning of 
the financial year  

Nil  
 

Number of complaints  
filed during the financial year  

Nil  
 

Number of cases pending
 as on the end of the financial year

 

Nil
 

 Number of workshops
 or awareness programs against sexual 

harassment carried out
 

The  Company  regularly  conducts  necessary 
awareness programs for its employees and all 
employees are provided detailed education during the 
induction. 
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For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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(viii) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms / companies in which Directors are interested
 The Company has not given any loans/Guarantee or advances to any firm/company in which its Directors are  

interested except to its wholly-owned subsidiary company.
(ix) Material Subsidiary
 There was no material subsidiary in the F.Y. 2023-24.
(x) Declaration signed by the chief executive officer stating that the members of board of directors and senior 

management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior 
management. 
A Managing Director and CFO certification is attached herewith as ANNEXURE X.

(xi)  Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance:
  The Company has adhered to the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with Para C and D of 

Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations as applicable with regard to  
Corporate Governance. A certificate from M/s. ADITYA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 forms part of this 
report as Annexure IV.

(xii)  Mandatory Requirements:
  The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations relating to Corporate 

Governance.
(xiii)  Report on corporate governance
  This chapter, read together with the information given in the Directors' Report and the chapters on Management 

Discussion and Analysis and General Shareholder Information, constitute the compliance report on corporate 
governance during FY2024. The Company has been regularly forwarding the quarterly compliance report to the stock 
exchanges as required under regulation 27(2) of the Listing Regulations, 2015. During the year, no cyber security 
incidents or breaches or loss of data or documents were observed in quarterly compliance report.

(xiv)  UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS/DEPOSITS & INTEREST
  The amount of dividend/deposits or interest thereon remain un-claimed for a period of 7 years, is transferred to the 

credit of Investors Education & Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions of section 124(5) & (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(xv)  DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 
There are no shares transferred in this account till March 31, 2024.

(xvi) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):
SEBI vide Circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated 31 July, 2023 (updated as on August 4, 
2023) has specified that a shareholder shall first take up his/her/their grievance with the listed entity by lodging a 
complaint directly with the concerned listed entity and if the grievance is not redressed satisfactorily, the shareholder 
may, in accordance with the SCORES guidelines, escalate the same through the SCORES Portal in accordance with 
the process laid out therein. Only after exhausting all available options for resolution of the grievance, if the 
shareholder is not satisfied with the outcome, he/she/they can initiate dispute resolution through the Online Dispute 
Resolution (“ODR”) Portal. Shareholders are requested to take note of the same. 
Members are hereby notified that our RTA , KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private 
Limited), basis the SEBI Circular (SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/72 ) dated June 08, 2023, have 
launched an online application which can be accessed at   > Investor Services > https://ris.kfintech.com/default.aspx#
Investor Support.
Members are requested to register / signup, using the Name , PAN , Mobile and email ID. Post registration, user can 
login via OTP and execute activities like, raising Service Request , Query, , Complaints , check for status, KYC details, 
Dividend , Interest , Redemptions, e-Meeting and e-Voting details.
Quick link to access the signup page : https://kprism.kfintech.com/signup

(xvii) NOMINATION FACILITIES
Shareholders who hold shares in the physical form and wish to make/change a nomination in respect of their 
shareholding in the Company, as permitted under section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, may submit to the Registrar 
and Transfer Agent/Company.
As per the SEBI Circular (SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37) dated 16.03.2023, we kindly request all 
our valued investors to promptly update their KYC, Signature, and Nomination details. To facilitate this process, 
please visit the provided link: http://www.upal.in/home/investors and download the necessary forms from the 'Forms' 
section. 

https://ris.kfintech.com/default.aspx
https://kprism.kfintech.com/signup
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Annexure II

Report on Subsidiaries & Joint Ventures

FORM AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to Section 129(3) read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries:

(₹ in Lacs)

Name of the subsidiary  Ubuild Better Private 
Limited  

Ubuild Better 
Distribution Private 
Limited 

S.No  Particulars  Subsidiary  Step Down Subsidiary  
1.  Reporting period for the subsidiary 

concerned, if  different from the holding 
company’s repor ting period  

02.09.2023 to 
31.03.2024  

02.09.2023 to 31.03.2024  

2.  Share capital  201.00 1 

3.  Reserves & surplus  -87.68   

4.  Total assets  875.85   

5.  Total liabilities  762.53   

6.  Investments    

7.  Turnover  922.01  21.87 

8.  Profit before  
Taxation  

4.00  

9.  Provision for  

Taxation  
-35.89   

10.  Profit after taxation  39.89   

11.  % of shareholding  100% Held  by U.P. 
Asbestos Ltd.  

100% Held  by Ubuild 
Better Private Limited  

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: MLG Warehousing & Industrial Park Pvt. Ltd. was 

th thincorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary on 12  day of May 2023 but later it was sold on 28  Day of June 2023                                           

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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0.83

19.58

17.75

-

1.31

-

1.02

1



DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Annexure III

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Your company is engaged in the business manufacturing and marketing of fibre and cement sheets under the brand name “UPAL”. 
The Company has made a strategic shift to play it safer and increase the profitability and has given both the units on fixed long term 
lease at attractive lease amounts. Management Discussion and Analysis is provided hereunder:

Industry Structure and Development 
The roofing industry includes materials such as Asbestos Cement Sheets (ACS), non-ACS options for residential, commercial, and 
industrial use. The India Fiber Cement Roofing Market, valued at INR 6200 crore in 2024, is projected to grow to INR 7200 crore by 
2029 at a 3.0% CAGR. This growth is driven by rising demand for affordable housing, with cement roofing sheets being favored for 
their durability, ease of installation, and cost-effectiveness. Rural and urban growth is expected to boost demand for both cement and 
non-asbestos roofing sheets.

For fiscal year 2025, the Government of India has increased the rural development budget to ₹1.77 lakh crore, up ~13% from the 
previous year. Initiatives such as increased funding for Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana Gramin (PMAYG) and Deendayal Antyodaya 
Yojana-National Rural Livelihoods Mission (DAY-NRLM) are anticipated to benefit the roofing industry. With above-normal monsoon 
forecasts and expected rural economic revival, the Company's roofing business is likely to see positive growth.

In its most recent World Economic Outlook update, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has raised its growth projection for India, 
citing the country's domestic demand showing greater resilience than anticipated. The IMF projections indicate the economy 
expanded by 6.7% in the FY 2023-24 in India up from its previous forecast of 6.3% made in the October 2023 update. Looking ahead, 
the IMF projects India's GDP growth to remain stable at 6.5% for FY 2024-25 and FY 2025-26.

Opportunities for A.C. Sheets
AC Roofing Sheets are being used in large scale for roofing purposes, cattle sheds, godowns, etc. besides commercial use of this 
product. The Indian population consists of 60% of rural sector and with increased focus of government to develop the infrastructure 
and housing facility in the rural sector the cement asbestos sector is likely to grow.

The abnormal hike in the cost of building material such as Cement, Steel, etc. besides the increased cost of labour and in comparison 
to GI Sheet, A.C. Sheet is found to be much cheaper and durable. This factor led the users to switch over to A.C. products which they 
find more cost effective and users friendly. 

Cement, fly ash, asbestos fibre etc. are our main raw materials. Cement & fly ash is available in the proximity of our plants. Our 
industry performance is directly linked to performance of rural/semi-urban economies. The industry witnessed a significant 
slowdown in rural demand due to poor monsoon. Capacity build up over last few years by many players also resulted in excess 
supply. Demand off- take was also weaker than expected due to muted growth in Infrastructure sector. The company has a 
developmental approach and is upgrading technology with automated plant and incorporating Solar Energy project.

Strength, Threats, Risks and Concerns & Business Segment
Through a strong formal system which from time to time & periodically indicates risk areas, UPAL identifies risk prone areas and 
evaluates consequences; initiates risk mitigation strategies and implements corrective actions wherever required.

Our Company is at present having two units – one at Lucknow and another at Dadri. Lucknow unit has three plants whereas Dadri 
Unit has only one plant. The Company has made a strategic shift to play it safer and increase the profitability and has given both the 
units on fixed long term lease at attractive lease amounts.

These initiatives of the Company has enabled the Company to carry out business restructuring in improving its financial position, 
earning capacities, the net worth and result in enhancement of overall shareholder's values. The improved earnings shall be 
available for developing more profitable opportunities & reducing debt.  

Outlook:
While the asbestos sector faces regulatory pressures, the overall outlook for the roofing industry is positive, with growth driven by 
government support, infrastructure development, and a stable economic environment.

Segment-wise performance or Product wise-performance:
In terms of segment-wise performance, the sale of Asbestos Fibre generated revenue of ₹182.52 crore, while lease rentals 
contributed ₹19.04 crore. Additionally, sales of other products amounted to ₹3.39 crore.

Internal control systems and their Adequacy 
For better control of all activities and management information the company has designed and developed various systems of 
controls, procedures over the years. 
The internal audits are being conducted periodically to review all its operational activities, administrative procedures to have proper 
control. The reports on the audits are reviewed and corrective action is taken, if necessary. The existing procedures and systems 
ensure that all the transactions be checked at every level. The reports are also placed periodically before the Audit Committee. 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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During the year, the Company reported a standalone net sales turnover of Rs. 17,763.73 lac, with a profit before tax of Rs. 659.89 lac 
and a net profit of Rs. 547.59 lac. This compares with the previous year's figures of Rs. 17,529.99 lac in net sales turnover, Rs. 
602.82 lac in profit before tax, and Rs. 445.17 lac in net profit.

On a consolidated basis, the Company achieved a net sales turnover of Rs. 18,591.07 lac, a profit before tax of Rs. 663.89 lac, and a 
net profit of Rs. 594.09 lac. It is important to note that comparisons with the previous year are not available due to the acquisition of 
the Wholly Owned Subsidiary on September 2, 2023. The Key financial ratios are provided in Notes 57 and 58 of the Standalone and 
Consolidated Financial Statements, respectively.

Human Resources/Industrial Relations 
Our Company is dedicated to the development of the employees and maintaining a good relationship with them. There have been 
excellent relations between the employees at various levels and the management. During the year under review, the Management 
has made sincere and continuous efforts for the development of an atmosphere of mutual cooperation, confidence and honour duly 
recognizing the rights of the workers. The excellent Industrial Relations at all the manufacturing plants of UPAL continue to be 
cordial. 

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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Annexure-IV

ADITYA & ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secretaries

Office: 307-308, Murli Bhawan, Ashok Marg, Lucknow – 226 001
Mobile : 94536 59707 ; E-mail: csmanishaditya@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,
U. P. ASBESTOS LIMITED,
(CIN - L26942UP1973PLC003743)
PO Mohanlalganj, Lucknow, UP -226301

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by U. P. ASBESTOS LIMITED (“the 
Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 
46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 
limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company.

3. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in 
India, to the extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the 
explanations given to us and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 
regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the respective periods of 
applicability as specified under paragraph 1 above, during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Aditya & Associates 
Company Secretaries

CS Aditya Agrawal
Proprietor

Membership No: FCS 8780
CP: 16366

UDIN: F008780F000931922
P.R.C. No. – 1812/2022

Date: 08.08.2024
Place: Lucknow
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Annexure-V

Declaration of Compliance with code of conduct

(As required under Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the declaration for Code of Conduct)

The Members of 

U.P. Asbestos Limited

This is to certify that as provided under Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and the Senior 

Management personnel have affirmed to the compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the twelve months' period ended on 

March 31, 2024.

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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Annexure VI

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the 
companies (appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 2014

a. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, during the financial year, Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year and the comparison of remuneration of each Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under: 

SL Name of Director/KMP  
and Designation  

Remuneration of 
Director/KMP for 
financial year  
2023-24  

% increase in 
Remuneration in 
the Financial Year 
2023-24  

Ratio of remuneration of  
Director/KMP  to median 
remuneration of 
employees  

1. Amitabh Tayal  
(Managing Director)  

22,52,461.00  0.10  9.92  

2. Priyank Tayal  
(Whole Time Director)

 

27,64,467.00  0.03  12.17  

3.
 

Gaurav Arora
 (Chief Financial Officer)

 

16,02,421.00
 

0.11
 

7.06
 

4.
 

Sakshi Pandey                               
(Company Secretary)

5,43,861.00
 

0.26
 

2.39
 

b. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year ending on 31.03.2024 was: 227061
c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year ending on 31.03.2024: 0.16
d. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2024:177 (excluding the KMP)
e. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 

year i.e. 2023-24 was 8.00% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year was 0.06%.
f. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: N/A
g. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 

remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: N/A
h. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

Information as required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, and forming part of the Director's Report for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2024

Following disclosures are required in respect of following employees:

Top ten employees in terms of salary withdrawn;
a. if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less 

than one Crore and two Lakhs rupees; None
b. if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in the 

aggregate, was not less than eight lakhs fifty thousand rupees per month; None
c. if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year, which in the aggregate, 

or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time 
director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the 
equity shares of the Company; None

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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Annexure –VII

FORM NO. AOC -2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub 
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis- N.A. 
None of the contracts or arrangements or transactions entered by the company with related parties is beyond Arm's length 
basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis. During the year under review, the  
Company did not enter into any material RPT under the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and Listing Regulations.

*NOTE:

1. A detailed description of the Related Party Transactions entered during the year is disclosed as Note 37 of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 36 of the Standalone Financial Statements.

2. Transaction of payment of remuneration is as per the terms approved by shareholders. The advances made to 
employees reflects advances salary entered as per the terms of their condition of service as applicable to all 
employees.

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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ANNEXURE VIII

FORM A: Conservation of Energy

To enhance energy efficiency, your company has undertaken the following initiatives:

a) Installed a 1.1 Megawatt Solar Plant: A solar plant with a capacity of 1.1 megawatts has been set up to harness renewable 
energy, reducing reliance on conventional power sources and lowering overall energy costs.

b) Equipped Electrical Motors with Variable Frequency Drives : All electrical motors have been fitted with variable frequency 
drives. These adjust the motor speed and torque to match the load requirements, leading to significant energy savings and 
improved operational efficiency.

c) Replaced Conventional Lighting with LEDs: The traditional lighting systems have been replaced with LED fixtures. LEDs 
are more energy-efficient, have a longer lifespan, and offer substantial reductions in electricity consumption compared to 
conventional lighting options.

A.  Power and fuel consumption at Factories

 Current Year  
2023-24 

Previous Year  
2022-23 

1. Electricity  

NIL* NIL* 

(a)Purchased  
Unit 

Total Amount  

Rate/unit  
(b) Own Generation  

(i) Through Diesel Generator  

Unit  
Unit per Ltr. Of Dies el Oil 

Cost/unit  
(ii) Through steam turbine/generator  

Units 

Units per  ltr. of fuel oil/gas  
Cost/unit  

2. Coal (specify quality and where used)  

Quantity (tones)  

Total cost  
Average rate  

3. Furnace oil  

Quantity (kl.  ltrs.) 
Total amount  

Average rate  

4. Others/internal generation (please give details) - 
SOLAR 

Quantity  
Total cost  

Rate/unit  

* As the plants are leased, the power and its consumption are managed by the lessee.  
 
FORM B: Foreign Exchange Earnings/Outgo: -

 
The company has made NIL expenditure in Foreign exchange to overseas travelling and interest on Buyers Credit.

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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Annexure-IX

ADITYA & ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secretaries

Office: 307-308, Murli Bhawan, Ashok Marg, Lucknow – 226 001
Mobile : 94536 59707 ; E-mail:csmanishaditya@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.20234

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
U.P. Asbestos Limited
CIN: L26942UP1973PLC003743

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by U.P. Asbestos Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit has been conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 

st31  March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
stfinancial year ended on 31  March, 2024 to ascertain the compliance of various provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder;
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;
5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI 

Act'): -

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(Not applicable to the Company has not issued any shares during the financial year 2023-24)
iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021; (Not applicable to the Company has not issued any shares during the financial year 2023-24)
v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 

applicable to the Company has not issued any shares during the financial year 2023-24)
vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) (Amendment) 

Regulations, 2006 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company has 
not issued any shares during the financial year 2023-24)

vii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24)

viii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Financial Year 2023-24);

6. The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 
7.  Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
8. Employers Liability Act, 1938
9. Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other environmental laws
10. Air (Prevention and Control of pollution) Act, 1981
11. Factories Act, 1948
12. Industrial Dispute Act, 1947
13. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable labour laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited(MSEI) and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We report that during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

l The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

l Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

l Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member's views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instance having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance 
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and standards, etc. referred to above.  

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms an integral part of this report.

For Aditya & Associates 
Company Secretaries

CS Aditya Agrawal
Proprietor

Membership No: FCS 8780
CP: 16366

UDIN: F008780F000931977
P.R.C. No. – 1812/2022

Date: 08.08.2024
Place: Lucknow
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ANNEXURE A

To,

The Members,

U.P. Asbestos Limited

Lucknow

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Aditya & Associates 
Company Secretaries

CS Aditya Agrawal
Proprietor

Membership No: FCS 8780
CP: 16366

UDIN: F008780F000931977
P.R.C. No. – 1812/2022

Date: 08.08.2024
Place: Lucknow
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ANNEXURE-X

Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015

This is to certify that:

st1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31  March, 2024 and that to the 
best of our knowledge and belief:

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct. 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:
i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements; and 
iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over financial 
reporting.

5. We confirm that all Directors and Members of the Senior Management have affirmed compliance with UPAL's Code of 
Business Conduct & Ethics.

Amitabh Tayal         
Managing Director         
DIN: 00556569

Gaurav Arora
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Lucknow 
Date:13.08.2024

29



DIRECTORS' REPORT 

ANNEXURE XI

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a 
reference to the CSR policy and projects or programmes CSR policy is stated herein below:

CSR Policy
        
The Company's programs are guided by Corporate Social Responsibility Policy ('CSR Policy') duly approved by the Board. The 
Company's CSR Policy framework details the mechanisms for undertaking various programs in accordance with section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) for the benefit of the community.

The Company is committed towards its works and its CSR policy by making a big and lasting difference, through sustainable 
measures, by actively contributing to the Social, Economic and Environmental development of the community in which we operate 
ensuring participation from the community and thereby create value for the nation. 

Our CSR initiatives focus on social-economic development of host communities and create social awareness towards the literacy, 
and providing the infrastructure to the poor people, BPL class and down trodden category of the society to avail the basic education 
facility, free of cost or at nominal cost depending upon their socio-economic condition. To pursue these objectives we will continue to:

· Engage actively in eradicating illiteracy and extending educational opportunities. We offer financial support to promote 
education, including special education, while also focusing on empowering children, women, the elderly, and individuals 
with differing abilities through enhanced vocational skills training. Our commitment extends to uplifting the underserved 
segments of society through livelihood enhancement projects. Additionally, we provide essential medical assistance to 
those in need, particularly in rural areas. And now, with our Plantation Drive initiative, we're taking an extra step to nurture 
the environment and foster a greener, healthier world.

· Collaborate with likeminded bodies like voluntary organizations, Charitable Trust, Governments, academic institutes, Non- 
Government Organization in pursuit of our goals.

· Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and publicly report our CSR initiatives.

Web-link where the following are disclosed on the website of the Company:
Composition of CSR committee- NA

§ CSR Policy http://www.upal.in/assets/uploads/content/286_1666941444_CSRPOLICY.PDF
§ CSR projects approved by the Board: http://www.upal.in/home/page?csr-initiative.html

2. Prescribed CSR Expenditure:

The average net profit of the Company over the last three financial years stands at Rs. 622.24 lacs. For the financial year 2023-24, 
the Company was mandated to allocate Rs. 12.44 lacs towards CSR expenditure for the F.Y. 2023-24. 

3. Details of CSR expenditure during the financial year 2023-24.

The board decided to allocate CSR funds partly directly and partly through “Madhyamik Samajik Sanstha (MSS)” a non-profit and 
non- political organization for implementing its CSR activities and other allied activities. The funds were used for various purposes 
such as maintaining Goshalas and Schools, healthcare, sanitation, distributing blankets, providing clean drinking water, education 
and sports facilities, road and drain repair, and environmental protection efforts. Apart from direct expenditure the MSS is entrusted 
with the responsibility to execute the CSR Policy of the Company as approved by the Board to comply with the CSR requirements as 
per the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014.

A responsibility statement of the Board members that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR 
objectives and Policy of the Company.

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 13.55 Lacs.
b) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
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 (Amt. Rs(in lacs))

Sl. 
No.  

Project / 
Implementing 
Agency  

Sector  

1. MSS  Expenses of Maintenance and 
upkeep of Goshala  
Expenses of Maintenance and 
upkeep of Primary Schools  
Health Care and Sanitation 
Programme  
Drinking Water Supply Program  
Education and Sports Program

 
Exp. Of Repair and Maintainance 
of Roads and Drain

 
Environmental Protection 
Program

 

Blanket Distribution Program
 2.

 
Directly to 
Schools 

 

For purchase of water Cooler & 
Coolers in interest of Children & 
Staff of School.

 3.
 

UTKARSH 
GLOBAL 
FOUNDATION

 

Distribution of Water Bottles
 

4.
 

Uttrakhand 
Bridge 
Association

 

Promotion of Bridge Sports
 

Total

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs  

Amount spent : Direct or 
through  implementing 
agency  (Through MSS)  

3.00
 

3.02
 

1.73
 

1.75
 

0.80
 

0.81
 

0.80  0.83  
1.50

 
1.53

 
1.40

 
1.41

 
0.80

 

0.80

 
1.00  

 

1.03

 

1.27  1.27  

1.00  1.00  

0.25  0.25  

13.55 13.55

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the 
Financial Year: No

For U.P. Asbestos Limited

Place: Lucknow  
Date: 13.08.2024 

(Priyank Tayal) 
Whole-time Director 

 (DIN: 00556534) 

(Amitabh Tayal)
Managing Director

(DIN: 00556569)
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ANNEXURE-XII

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
U.P. Asbestos Limited
CIN: L26942UP1973PLC003743
PO Mohanlalganj, Lucknow
Uttar Pradesh - 226301

We have examined the relevant registers records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of U.P. Asbestos 
Limited having CIN: L26942UP1973PLC003743 and having registered office at PO Mohanlalganj, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh-226301 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Company '), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (100) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We 

sthereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31  March 
2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Following are the Director of the Company as on date:

Sl. No.  Name of the Director  DIN  Date of Appointment
1.  Mr. Paras Nath Singh  08470004  10/07/2019  
2.

 
Mr. Q. S. Wajahat

 
01692185

 
25/06/2020

 3.
 

Mr. Amitabh Tayal
 

00556569
 

01/01/1984
 4.

 
Mr. Priyank Tayal

 
00556534

 
23/06/2004

 5. Mrs. Sushma Seth 10293874 02/09/2023

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

For Aditya & Associates 
Company Secretaries

CS Aditya Agrawal
Proprietor

Membership No: FCS 8780
CP: 16366

UDIN: F008780F000468294
P.R.C. No. – 1812/2022

Date: 27.05.2024
Place: Lucknow
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To,
The Members of U.P. Asbestos Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying  financial statements of U.P. Asbestos Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone
stBalance Sheet as at 31  March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow 

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the material accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (here-in-after referred to as “the  financial statements”).standalone

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid  financial statements give the information standalone
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the 

stAct, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31  March, 2024, and its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows 
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Attention is invited to Note 7 of Notes to  Financial Statements wherein the company has given an ageing schedule of Standalone
Trade Receivables outstanding as at year-end. In respect of Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding one year as at 
the balance sheet date, the company has made provision for bad & doubtful debts of Rs. 117.29 lacs. However, in the absence of any 
evidence being produced before us by the management regarding the realizability of such debts, we are unable to comment on the 
short provision, if any, on account of bad and doubtful debts in respect of the same in the financial statements. The impact on the 
profit of the company on account of short provision, if any, for bad & doubtful debts cannot, therefore, be ascertained.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

1. Balance with Revenue Authorities in Note 5(2)(ii) of Notes to  Financial Statements include Rs. 107.83 Lacs Standalone
determined by the management as refundable from Sales Tax Department for various years. Pending completion of 
assessments/ appeals of the company by the revenue authorities, the ultimate outcome of liability against the company/ refund 
due to the company cannot presently be determined. Consequently, no provision for any liability that may result has been 
made in the financial statements. (Also refer Note 39 of Notes to  financial statements)standalone

2. Attention is invited to Note 44 of Notes to  Financial Statements regarding non-confirmation/ non-reconciliation of Standalone
balances with parties. 

3. We draw attention to Note 49 of Notes to  Financial Statements regarding acceptance of payment in respect of Standalone
outstanding trade receivables by the company through RTGS appearing in the financial statements as Cheques in Hand. 

4. We draw attention to Note 50 of Notes to  financial statements regarding the matter contained therein.standalone
 Our opinion is not qualified/ modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the  standalone
financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the  financial standalone
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

HEAD OFF : M-5, GOLE MARKET, 

MAHANAGAR, LUCKNOW - 226006
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The Key Audit Matter

Physical Verification and Valuation of Inventory 
Inventory of asbestos fibre lying in stock at Mohanlalganj, 
Lucknow premises of the company is a part of the Total 
Inventory of the Company.

Consequent to leasing by the company of its manufacturing 
facilities at Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit, the inventory 
belonging to the Company as well as that belonging to the 
lessee is being kept adjoining to each other in the same 
premises.

In view of significant management judgement involved in 
Identification of inventory belonging to the company and 
physically verifying and categorizing the unsaleable items of 
inventory for valuation of the same at lower of cost or net 
realizable value, we determined this area to be an area of 
audit focus, and accordingly, a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The management has identified the inventory of asbestos 
fibre and has represented to us that the same belongs to the 
company. The management has further represented that the 
godown in which the inventory of asbestos fibre is kept is in the 
physical control of the company. We have placed reliance on 
the aforesaid representations of the management. In addition, 
following audit procedures were applied in this area: 

(a) Obtaining an understanding of the areas used by both the 
parties for storing their inventories and identifying the godown 
in which, as represented by the management, inventory 
belonging to the company has been stored.

(b) Obtaining the physical verification report of the inventory 
conducted by the management and comparing the quantity of 
physical stock mentioned in stock audit report with the book 
records.

(c) Obtaining an understanding of the useful life of asbestos 
fibre and manner in which it may become unsaleable due to 
damage or obsolescence. 
(d) Evaluating the sale price of inventory sold subsequent to 
the balance sheet date and the entries passed in the books of 
account and stock records.

Other Matters
1. We have been explained that the Company has leased its manufacturing facilities at both its units i.e. Mohanlalganj, Lucknow 

and Dadri Units to companies under the same group. As part of the lease agreement, the company is also obligated to supply 
asbestos fibre to the lessees at cost price. The agreement between the company and the lessee does not envisage any specific 
terms of payment against supply of asbestos fiber by the company. Consequently, the company carries substantial outstanding 
balances recoverable from the parties under the said Group in the form of Unsecured Trade Receivables. Out of total 
Outstanding Trade Receivables (net of credit balances) of Rs. 4143.01 Lacs as at year-end, the outstanding balance 
recoverable by the company from the said Group is Rs. 3286.61 Lacs. The company, therefore, have a significant exposure in 
the form of unsecured Trade Receivables towards one Group.

2. The comparative financial information of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2023 are based on the previously issued 
Financial Statements audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31st March 2023 dated 24th May 
2023 expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements.

Our opinion is not qualified/ modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the  Financial Statements and the Auditors' Report thereonStandalone

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the  information. The other information comprises the preparation of the other
information included in the Directors' Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report standalone 
thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the  financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of standalone
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above standalone
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the   standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions, if required. 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
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other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, there could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with standards on auditing we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statement, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide the basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override 
of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control in relevance to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls  in place  with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosure made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 
evidence, whether a material uncertainty exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that the material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to related disclosure in the  financial statements or, if such disclosures are standalone
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on audit evidence obtain up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  financial statements, including the disclosures, standalone
and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that standalone
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the  financial statements of the current period and are therefore the Key audit matters. We describe these standalone
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that our matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ̀ A' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
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 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

st  (e) On the basis of the written representations stated to have been received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 and 
sttaken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2024 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ̀ B'.
 (g) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the 

year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.
 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its  financial standalone
statements – Refer Note 30 of Notes to the  financial statements.standalone

 ii. As informed to us, the Company did not enter into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

 iv. a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

  b. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the 
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

  c. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement. 

 v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
  The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023. Based 

on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of 
account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for 
all relevant transactions recorded. Further, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered 
with.

Place : Lucknow

Date : 27.05.2024 UDIN: 24014335BJZZND1173

For S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's ICAI Reg. No. 001545C

(CA. S. N. KAPUR)

Partner

M.No.: 014335
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ANNEXURE “A”

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of 
steven date to the members of U.P. Asbestos Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March,2024)

i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining records of Property, Plant & Equipment. In our opinion, the records maintained by the 
company need to contain particulars of quantity, situation and identification of Property, Plant & Equipment in a manner that 
the entry in the records can be easily identified with the concerned asset. 

  (B) As informed to us, the company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not 
applicable.

(b) As informed to us, the company has devised a program for physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment in a 
phased manner so that all items of Property, Plant & Equipment are verified once every three years. In our opinion the 
frequency of verification is reasonable. However, in the absence of any evidence being produced before us of physical 
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment conducted by the management during the year, we are unable to comment 
whether any material discrepancies were noticed during the course of such verification. 

(c) We have been explained that the title deed of immovable properties is applicable only in respect of land held by the 
company. We have been informed that land is held in the name of the company, however, since the title deeds of land are 
pledged with the bank, hence the photocopy of the title deeds of land was produced before us for verification. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible 
assets or both during the year.

(e) It has been represented to us by the management that no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii)  (a) It has been represented to us by the management that no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of 
inventory were noticed during the course of physical verification conducted by the management at year-end except for 
materials lying with third parties for which no physical verification has been conducted. However, in our opinion, 
consequent to leasing by the company of its manufacturing facilities at Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit and the fact that 
inventory belonging to the Company and that belonging to the lessee is being kept adjoining to each other in the same 
premises, the company ought to have conducted physical verification of inventory at shorter intervals during the year. With 
respect to physical verification conducted by the management at year-end of inventory identified by the management and 
represented to us as belonging to the company, we are of the opinion that the coverage and procedure of physical 
verification of the same is appropriate.

 (b) According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from 
banks or financial institutions on the basis of the security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has made an investment of Rs. 77.99 Lakhs in its subsidiary “Ubuild Better Private Limited” during 
the year (as referred in Note 35 of Notes of Standalone Financial Statements) and has granted unsecured loans during the 
year, details of which are stated below:

(Amount in Rs. lacs)

PARTICULARS
 

Guarantees
 Loans to 

Companies  
Aggregate amount of unsecured loans provided during the year  300.00  92.00  

Balance with reference to the above unsecured loans granted during 
the year and outstanding at the Balance Sheet date  

300.00*    92.00**  

*The total outstanding balance of unsecured loan to 'Ubuild Better Private Limited' amounts to Rs. 327.34 Lakhs as on 31.03.2024 
which includes the above balance.

**The Company has stood guarantees amounting to Rs. 300.00 Lakhs to UCO bank against CC Limit sanctioned to 'Ubuild Better 
Private Limited'
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Particulars Related Party  Other Parties  Total Loans Granted

Aggregate Amount  327.34  0.00  327.34

Percentage    100.00%

(Amount in Rs. lacs)

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans granted and investments 
made, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits 
during the year within the meaning of section 73 to section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules 
framed thereunder. Further, the management is of the opinion that the deposit from dealers (including unclaimed deposits) 
shall not qualify as deposits within the meaning of section 73 to section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and 
the Rules framed thereunder. (Refer Note 47 of Notes to Financial Statements)  

(vi) We have been informed that the Company has made and maintained the prescribed accounts and records pursuant to 
Section 148(1) of the Act. We have been explained that the said records are being updated for current year. We have not, 
however, made detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete 
(Refer note 55 of Notes to Standalone Financial Statements). 

(vii)  (a) On the basis of information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the company, amounts 
deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of the undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to the company are generally being regularly deposited by the company 
with the appropriate authorities. According to the books of accounts and other information and explanations furnished to 
us, we report that there are no undisputed statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year outstanding for a period of 
more than six months from the date they become payable except Rs. 0.14 lacs for the financial year 2010-11 under the 
Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002, Rs. 2.17 lacs and Rs. 0.64 lacs for the financial year 2004-05 and 2012-13 
respectively under the Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 and Rs. 0.18 lacs in respect of service tax under the Finance Act, 1994.

      (b) The information furnished to us by the management regarding the amount involved and the forum where the dispute is 
pending in respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute are given here-in-below: 

Further, as referred in Note 58 of Notes of Standalone Financial Statements, Company has made an investment of Rs. 1.00 Lakh in 
wholly owned subsidiary “MLG Warehousing Private Limited” and transferred the same during the year. 

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not given loans, advances in the nature of loans and guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, the terms and conditions of interest-bearing 
unsecured loans of Rs. 327.34 Lacs granted and guarantee of Rs. 300.00 lakhs provided by the company to a related party is not 
prejudicial to the interests of the company. 

(c)  It has been explained to us that the above unsecured loans and interest thereon are repayable on demand and there is no 
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest. Hence, we are unable to comment on the regularity of receipt of principal 
and interest on the aforesaid loans. 

(d)  As there are no stipulations regarding receipt of principal and interest, we are unable to comment whether principal and interest 
were overdue for recovery. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
there is no loan or advance in the nature of loans granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh 
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans or advances in the nature of loans given to same parties.

(f) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand, the details of which are herein given 
below:
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Name of the       
Statute            

Nature of the     
Dues                

Amount         Period to which        
the amount relates 

   Forum where dispute
is pending    (Rs. in lacs)        

Central Sales     
Tax Act,
1956

Central Sales  
Tax

    6.34       2006-07   Addl. Commissioner (Appeal) 
Lucknow 

         
                             

Central Sales
Tax Act,
1956

 Central 
Sales Tax
alongwith
interest &
Penalty

       

   

97.23     2002-03         

     
Maharashtra Sales
Tax Tribunal

     

       

   125.51      2003-04   Jt Commissioner of
Sales Tax (Appeal), Nagpur
   

                                                                

110.90     2004-05   Jt Commissioner of Sales Tax 
(Appeal), Nagpur
  

     
                                                                                                 

34.51     2005-06   Dy. Commissioner of
Sales Tax (Appeal), Nagpur 
 

     

Entry Tax

  

  

  

  
 

Income Tax

       
Income Tax

The Uttar  
Pradesh Tax

 
on

 
Entry of 

 
Goods Act, 

 2007
  

  
Income Tax 
Act, 1961

   

  Tribunal, Lucknow

  
      

 

Allahabad High Court
(Department appeal)

    
Al lahabad High Court
(Department appeal)

       1.06

       
 

     

176.53 

     
159.55

     2006-07

     
      

    

2012-13 (A.Y.)

    
2013 -14 (A.Y.)

  

 

Excise Duty

                        

  

Cenvat Credit
Penalty

 

Sevice tax

                       

Sales Tax
alongwith 
interest & penalty

Trade Tax

  

  
 

     

Central Exci-
se Act, 1944

  

                        

                     

                                          

BST Act,
1959

U.P. Trade
Tax Act

 

   

  

Allahabad High Court

  

(Department Appeal)

  

Allahabad High Court

   

(Department Appeal)

 

Commissioner (Appeals) 

                       

Custom, CGST & Central Excise 

 

Jt Commissioner of
Sales Tax (Appeal), Nagpur

Tribunal, Lucknow

     

 

       

22.21

  

     

168.03
168.03

   

                                                                  

1.49

16.74

17.17

    

                       

     

02-06-1998

  

     

2005-06 to

     

2009-10

          

2017 

2003-04

2006-07

April to June           

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books 
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

 (c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans 
availed by the company during the year has been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, clause (ix) (e) of the 
Order is not applicable.

 (f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies. Hence, clause (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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      (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) It has been represented to us by the management that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been 
noticed or reported during the year.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government.

 (c) It has been represented to us by the management that no whistle blower complaints have been received during the 
year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an 
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

 (b) We have considered the report of the Internal Auditors of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.
(xv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
(xvi) (a) As informed to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
 (b) As informed to us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 

Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
 (c) As informed to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
 (d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does not have any 

CICs
(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into consideration the issues, 

objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.
(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section 
(5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable.

Place : Lucknow

Date : 27.05.2024 UDIN: 24014335BJZZND1173

For S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's ICAI Reg. No. 001545C

(CA. S. N. KAPUR)

Partner

M.No.: 014335
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ANNEXURE “B”

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Annexure-B referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of 
even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of U P Asbestos Limited (''the company'') as on March 31, 
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI). These responsibilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued 
by the ICAI. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and;

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Disclaimer of Opinion

Attention is invited to Note 48 of Notes to Standalone Financial Statements, wherein it has been stated that the company has 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business and though such 
internal financial controls are yet to be formally documented the same are being followed as part of company's routine functioning. In 
the absence of proper documentation of internal financial controls over financial reporting on criteria based on or considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the ICAI, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis of our opinion whether the 
company had adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2024.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 
the financial statements of the company and the disclaimer does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the company.

Place : Lucknow

Date : 27.05.2024 UDIN: 24014335BJZZND1173

For S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's ICAI Reg. No. 001545C

(CA. S. N. KAPUR)

Partner

M.No.: 014335
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02(a)

02(c)

02(b)

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

 ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Investment Property

(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Others Financial Assets

(e) Other non-current assets

 Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans

(v) Others Financial Assets

(c) Current Income Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Other current assets

Total Assets

 Contd…. 

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS
NOTE 
NO.

As at 31st 
March 2024

As at 31st 
March 2023

                                     5,049.01 

                                        302.38 

                                     6,819.83 

                                          84.36 

                                          33.24 

                                        610.45 

                                        966.31 

                                     4,163.06 

                                     3,522.48 

                                        502.00 

                                        341.87 

                                          75.81 

                                                -   

                                     1,164.06 

                                   23,634.86 

                                     3,653.81 

                                     1,244.96 

                                     6,227.05 

                                            5.47 

                                            7.69 

                                        712.51 

                                     2,066.57 

                                     4,141.70 

                                     3,021.43 

                                          65.58 

                                        982.93 

                                        246.24 

                                            3.33 

                                        837.95 

                                   23,217.22 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
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 Contd…. 

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS
NOTE 
NO.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share capital

(b) Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

(d) Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises (refer note no. 37)

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

                                        911.71 

                                   10,823.66 

                                     8,463.96 

                                          63.35 

                                        515.16 

                                          40.00 

                                     2,378.86 

                                                -   

                                        122.12 

                                          74.25 

                                        193.35 

                                          20.73 

                                          27.71 

                                   23,634.86 

As at 31st 
March 2023

                                        911.71 

                                   10,269.98 

                                     7,757.23 

                                          75.75 

                                        520.35 

                                          58.27 

                                     2,572.31 

                                                -   

                                        385.08 

                                        127.04 

                                        511.14 

                                          28.36 

                                                -   

                                   23,217.22 

As at 31st 
March 2024

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
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In terms of our report of even date

For S.N KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No: 001545C)

See accompanying note nos. 1 to 63 forming part of the standalone financial statements

(CA. S.N. KAPUR)

Partner

M. No. 014335

Date: 27th May 2024

Place: Lucknow

Gaurav Arora
Chief Financial Officer     

Sakshi Pandey               
Company Secretary       

and Compliance Officer          

Amitabh Tayal       
Managing Director

DIN - 00556569

Priyank Tayal
Director

DIN-00556534



 Contd…. 

                             19,692.38 

                                  554.68 

                             20,247.06 

                             16,405.98 

                                  143.20 

                               1,017.23 

                                  476.35 

                                  472.24 

                             19,587.17 

                                  659.89 

                                         -   

                                  659.89 

                                  119.48 

                                    (7.18)

                                  547.59 

                               1,072.17 

                             19,403.69 

                                  479.58 

                             19,883.27 

                             14,028.61 

                                  169.31 

                               1,154.38 

                                  410.37 

                                  861.96 

                             19,280.45 

                                  602.82 

                                         -   

                                  602.82 

                                  170.64 

                                  (12.99)

                                  445.17 

                               2,655.82 

23

24

26

27

28

29

25

I Revenue From Operations

II Other Income

III Total Income (I+II)

IV EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items 
and tax (III- IV)

VI Exceptional Items

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)

VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

IX Profit (Loss) for the year  (VII-VIII)

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS
NOTE 
NO.

As at 31st 
March 2024

As at 31st 
March 2023

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

PARTICULARS
NOTE 
NO.

As at 31st 
March 2024

As at 31st 
March 2023

                                      7.17 

                                      0.90 

                                    (1.99)

                                         -   

                                         -   

                                  553.67 

6.01

6.01

                                    (5.07)

                                    (3.30)

                                      1.41 

                                         -   

                                         -   

                                  438.21 

4.89

4.89

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Re- measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit 

obligation

(b) Gains/(losses) on Fair Value of Equity 
Instruments through other Comprehensive 
Incomes

(c ) Income Tax Effect on above

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Re- measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit 

obligation

(b) Income Tax Effect on above

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the year) Earnings per equity share 

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

XII

X

In terms of our report of even date

For S.N KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No: 001545C)

See accompanying note nos. 1 to 63 forming part of the standalone financial statements

(CA. S.N. KAPUR)

Partner

M. No. 014335

Date: 27th May 2024

Place: Lucknow

Gaurav Arora
Chief Financial Officer     

Sakshi Pandey               
Company Secretary       

and Compliance Officer          

Amitabh Tayal       
Managing Director

DIN - 00556569

Priyank Tayal
Director

DIN-00556534

(Rupees in Lacs)
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

Previous reporting period

B. Other Equity

Securities 

Premium 

Reserve

General 

Reserve

Investment 

Allowance 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Revaluation 

Surplus

Equity  

Instruments 

through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Defined Benefit 

Obligation 

through 

Comprehensive  

Income 

Balance as at 01/04/2022               756.47           12.10               7.64            4,003.84             5,044.45                    8.55                      2.23                      9,835.28 

Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errors

                     -                   -                     -                        -                         -                          -                            -                                   -   

Restated balance at the beginning of
the reporting period

              756.47           12.10               7.64            4,003.84             5,044.45                    8.55                      2.23                      9,835.28 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year                      -                   -                     -                 445.17                       -                          -                            -                           445.17 

Other Comprehensive  
Income/(Losses) for the year

                     -                   -                     -                        -                         -                    (3.30)                    (3.66)                          (6.96)

Total Comprehensive  

Income/(Losses) for the year
                     -                   -                     -                 445.17                       -                    (3.30)                    (3.66)                        438.21 

Transfer to / From Revaluation
Reserve

                     -                   -                     -                        -                    (3.50)                        -                            -                             (3.50)

Balance as at 31/03/2023               756.47           12.10               7.64            4,449.02             5,040.94                    5.25                    (1.43)                   10,269.98 

Other Comprehensive Income

TotalParticulars

Reserves and Surplus

                                                      

Balance at the beginning of the 

current reporting period As at 1 

April 2022
911.71

 

-

 

-

 

Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior period 

errors

Restated balance at the 

beginning of the current 

reporting period

Changes in equity share capital 

during the current year 

Balance at the end of the current 

reporting period As at 31 March 2023

- 911.71

(Rupees in Lacs)
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Current reporting period

In terms of our report of even date

For S.N KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No: 001545C)

(CA. S.N. KAPUR) Gaurav Arora Sakshi Pandey Amitabh Tayal Priyank Tayal

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Managing Director Director

M. No. 014335 and Compliance Officer                DIN - 00556569                            DIN - 00556534

Date: 27th May 2024

Place: Lucknow

See accompanying note nos. 1 to 63 forming part of the standalone financial statements

B -Other Equity

Securities 

Premium 

General 

Reserve

Investment 

Allowance 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Revaluation 

Surplus

Equity  

Instruments 

through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Defined Benefit 

Obligation 

through 

Comprehensive  

Income 

Balance as at 01/04/2023               756.47           12.10               7.64            4,449.02             5,040.94                    5.25                    (1.43)                    10,269.98 

Changes in accounting
policy or prior period errors                      -                   -                     -                        -                         -                          -                            -                                   -   

Restated balance at the beginning
of the reporting period               756.47           12.10               7.64            4,449.02             5,040.94                    5.25                    (1.43)                    10,269.98 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year                      -                   -                     -                 547.59                       -                          -                            -                           547.59 

Other Comprehensive  
Income/(Losses) for the year

                     -                   -                     -                        -                         -                      0.90                      5.18                             6.08 

Total Comprehensive  

Income/(Losses) for the year
                     -                   -                     -                 547.59                       -                      0.90                      5.18                         553.67 

Transfer to / From Revaluation
Reserve

                     -                   -                     -                        -                         -                          -                            -                                   -   

Balance as at 31/03/2024               756.47           12.10               7.64            4,996.61             5,040.94                    6.15                      3.75                    10,823.66 

Particulars Total

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the 

current reporting period As at 1 

April 2023
911.71

 

Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior period 

errors

Restated balance at the 

beginning of the current 

reporting period
-

 
-

 

911.71

Changes in equity share capital 

during the current year 

Balance at the end of the current 

reporting period As at 31 March 2024

-

(Rupees in Lacs)
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Note No.1

1 Company Overview

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

i)

ii)

b) Functional and presentation currency

These Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Company’s functional currency. Rounded off to lacs, 
except as stated otherwise.

c) Revenue Recognition
(i) Sale of goods

d) Property Plant and Equipment

i) Property Plant and Equipment

Rental Income from operating lease where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight line basis over the 
lease terms.

(ii) Rental Income

The Company was incorporated on 18 July, 1973. The company was engaged in the business of manufacturing Asbestos 
Corrugated Sheets, Plain Boards and Profile Sheets. However, now both the manufacturing facilities of the company i.e. 
Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit and Dadri unit has been leased to two companies under the same Group. The manufacturing 
facility at Mohanlalganj, Lucknow has been leased to Navnidhi Continental Private Limited w.e.f 01.01.2022 and Dadri unit 
has been leased to SMSN Continental Private Limited w.e.f. 01.02.2014. The Company is also trading in Paints,Cables, 
Fibre, Cement and Ruber Washers.

These Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on the basis of 
accrual system of accounting, except for certain fixed assets which are revalued and certain financial assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value, in accordance with generally accepted accounting  principles in India and 
complied with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Ind AS enjoins management to make estimates and assumptions related to financial statements, that affect reported 
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and contingent liabilities pertaining to the year. Actual result may differ 
from such estimates. Any revision in accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the period of change and 
material revision, including its impact on financial statements, is reported in the notes to accounts in the year of 
incorporation of revision.

Sales comprise sale of goods dealt with by the company in the ordinary course of its business net of returns, discount and 
Goods & Services Tax (GST). Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when control of the goods has been transferred, 
being when the goods are delivered to the customers depending on the contractual terms and there is no unfulfilled 
obligation that could affect the buyer's acceptance of the products per the terms of the contract and no significant 
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods.

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost (net of recoverable duties & taxes) or revalued cost, less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs, including borrowing costs in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-23 on Borrowing Costs, wherever applicable, in bringing an asset to working condition or 
location for its intended use are capitalised to the cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and 
maintenance, are normally charged to the statements of profit and loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major 
repair and overhaul expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other 
expenses in statement of profit and loss.    

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost of the property, plant and equipment.      

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

ii) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price 
including duties and taxes and any costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use. 
Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible Asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognized.
The Company’s intangible assets comprises assets with finite useful life which are amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the period of their expected useful life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a 
finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Asset Useful life

Computer software 5 years 

iii) Capital Work-in- Progress

Capital Work-in-progress comprises of the cost of assets in the course of construction that are not yet capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management.

iv) Depreciation

i)

ii) The Useful lives of fixed assets is taken as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 which are as follows:-

iii) When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates 
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Depreciation including depreciation on the revalued portion of certain assets  is provided based on useful life of the 
assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013

e) Cash And Cash Equivalents 

f) Borrowing Costs

g) Inventories

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an 
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short term deposits and short term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value.

i) 'Stock in Trade, Stores and Spare parts and Finished Products are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value in 
accordance with Ind AS-2 on Valuation of inventories. Materials in transit and material with third parties are included in 
inventories. 

ii) Cost of Stock in Trade, Stores & spare parts includes material, labour and other overheads and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Stock in Trade, Stores & spare parts is determined on 
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Due allowance is estimated and made for breakage, defective and obsolete items, 
wherever necessary.

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

h) Retirement Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits
Liabilities for salaries and wages including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the Balance Sheet.

ii) Long Term Employee Benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has Defined Contribution Plans for its employees such as Provident Fund and Employees State 
Insurance and contribution to these plans are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss as incurred, as the company 
has no further obligation beyond making the contribution.

Buildings 5/30 Years
Plant & Equipments 15 Years
Electrical Installation and Equipments 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

ii) Defined Benefit Plan

i) The Company provides for gratuity in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company's liability for 
gratuity is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of each year as required by Ind 
AS-19 and is provided for in the financial statements.

ii) 'In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 19 the company has provided for unutilised leave benefit available 
to the employees on the basis of an actuarial valuation made as at the end of each year.

i) Provision For Liabilities And Charges, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets

i) The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the 
applicable IND AS.
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ii)

iii)

iv)

Provisions represent liabilities to the Company for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized 
when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation. Provisions are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are not provided for and are disclosed by way of notes to financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements.

j) Taxation
Current income tax

Deferred tax

k) Earnings per share

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or 
loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with 
prevailing income tax law.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit and loss attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the temporary differences by using the liability method, only to the extent that there is a 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised 
deferred tax assets, if any.

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

l) Cash Flow Statement

m) Segment Reporting

n) Foreign Currency Transactions

o) Impairment of Assets

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit / (loss) 
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or  accruals of past or future cash 
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated 
based on the available information.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. Revenue and expenses are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the 
segment. Inter segment revenue are accounted for based on the cost price. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which 
are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, are included under "Unallocated revenue/ expenses/ assets/ 
liabilities".

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated at the year-end 
exchange rates, and the resultant exchange difference is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary 
foreign currency items are carried at cost.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of assets for any possible impairment. An impairment 
loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
determined as higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating unit). 
Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for 
an asset in prior accounting period may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed to the extent 
that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment 
loss had previously been recognised.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to 
the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting. 

p) Financial instruments 

i) Financial Assets 

A.  Initial recognition and measurement 

B.  Subsequent measurement 

a)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

51



st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

c)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

C.  Other Equity Investments 

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other 
Comprehensive Income’.

D. Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of 
financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). Expected credit losses are 
measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 
The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or 
Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the 
financial instrument) 
For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from 
initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio 
of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking 
estimates are analysed. 
For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in 
credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. 

ii) Financial liabilities 

A. Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring 
nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

B.  Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments.

q) Leases

iii)    Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability 
(or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 which 
supersedes Ind AS 17 is substantially unchanged compared to Ind AS 17. Lessee accounting is in respect of short-term 
leases and the same is considered as recognition exemption for the company from the requirement of the application of Ind 
AS 116. 

r) Investment Property

IND AS -1, Presentation of Financial Statement - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting 
policies rather than their significant accounting policies.The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods 
beginning on or after Apr 1 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant 
in the standalone financial statement.

Investment property are properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Though the 
company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed 
in the notes. Fair values are determined on an evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer based on 
current prices in the active market for similar properties, quantum, area, location, demand, restrictive entry to the complex, 
age of building and trend of fair market.

Gain or loss on disposal of investment properties is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the property and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of the disposal. Transfer to, 
or from, investment property is done at the carrying amount of the property.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Combined 2(a) + 2(b))

(Rs. In Lacs)

AS ON 01/04/2023
ADDITIONS 

MADE DURING 

THE YEAR

DEDUCTIONS 

MADE 

DURING THE 

AS ON 

31/03/2024

AS ON 

01/04/2023

CHARGED 

DURING THE 

YEAR

DEDUCTION
/ ADJUST

-MENT 

AS ON 

31/03/2024

AS ON 

31/03/2024

AS ON 

31/03/2023

Plant & Equipments 9,490.16
                   

1,793.51
             

-
                  

11,283.67
          

5,887.61 389.18 - 6,276.79 5,006.88 3,602.55

Furniture & Fixture 18.38
                        

-
                      

-
                  

18.38
                 

17.10 0.10 - 17.20 1.18 1.28

Vehicles 130.86
                      

-
                      

0.77
                

130.09
               

88.56 6.66 0.62 94.60 35.49 42.30

Office Equipment 78.13

                        

0.13

                    

-

                  

78.26

                 

70.45 2.36 - 72.81 5.45 7.69

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 

EQUIPMENTS 2(a)
9,717.53

                   

1,793.64

             

0.77

                

11,510.40

          

6,063.72 398.30 0.62 6,461.40 5,049.01 3,653.81

PREV. YEAR (2022-23) 2 (a) 9,382.79

                   

387.53

                

52.79

              

9,717.52

            

5,774.66 338.00 48.93 6,063.72 3,653.81 3,608.14

Land 5143.18 418.66 0.00 5561.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5561.84 5143.18

Building 2546.54 252.17 0.00 2798.71 1462.67 78.05 0.00 1540.72 1257.99 1083.87

INVESTMENT PROPERTY - 2 (b) 7,689.72

                   

670.83

                

-

                  

8,360.55

            

1,462.67 78.05 - 1,540.72 6,819.83 6,227.05

PREV. YEAR (2022-23) 2 (b) 7,612.75

                   

76.97

                  

-

                  

7,689.71

            

1,386.83 75.84 - 1,462.67 6,227.04 6,225.91

CURRENT YEAR TOTAL 17,407.25 2,464.47 0.77 19,870.95 7,526.39 476.35 0.62 8,002.12 11,868.84 9,880.86
PREV. YEAR (2022-23) TOTAL 16,995.54 464.50 52.79 17,407.25 7,161.48 413.83 48.93 7,526.38 9,880.86 9,834.05

DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Note:
The fair value of investment properties, as required to be disclosed as per Ind AS 40, is Rs. 13,716.72 lacs.The fair value 
is based on valuations performed by an accredited external Independent valuer on the basis of replacement cost method.
For Lien/ charge against property, plant & equipment & Investment Property refer note no.14 &18.

NOTE ('2c) - Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)

CWIP ageing schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress -
                            

302.38
                

-
                  

-
                     

302.38
Pr. Year (890.34)

                     
(354.62)

               
-

                  
-

                     
(1,244.96)

Total
Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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NOTE NO. 03: FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT : INVESTMENTS

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

1     No of Shares Rs. In Lacs     No of Shares

M/s Uniplas India Ltd. 100 -  

M/s Prakash Industries Ltd. 225 0.38  

M/s Hyderabad Industries Ltd 200 5.21  

M/s Everest Industries Ltd 50 0.52  

M/s Roofit Industries Ltd 200 -  

M/s Visaka Industries Ltd 50 0.26  

6.37
 

    No of Shares Rs. In Lacs     No of Shares

20,10,000 77.99 

77.99 

 Aggregate of Investments   At cost At Market Value   At cost

Total Investment (Quoted) 0.22 6.37  

Total Investment (Unquoted) 77.99 -  

Total 78.21 6.37  

84.36 Grand Total

NAME OF COMPANIES

Investment in Equity Instruments 

Quoted (Fully Paid)

Carried at Fair Value through 
Other Comprehensive Income

M/s Ubuild Better Private Limited - 
Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Unquoted (Fully Paid)

Investment at Cost

NAME OF COMPANIES

100  

225  

200  

 

200  

 

0.22  

-  

0.22  

50

50

Rs. In Lacs

Rs. In Lacs

At Market Value

-

0.12

4.80

0.38

-

0.17

5.47

-

5.47

-

5.47

5.47

Deposit with Banks held  as Margin Money against 
bank guarantee (Including Interest accrued)

Deposit with Banks 

Deposit with Banks against Unclaimed Fixed Deposit

NOTE NO. 04 :FINANCIAL ASSETS-NON CURRENT : OTHER 

 
2 17.13 -

3 - 2.20

33.24 7.69

1 16.11 5.49

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

Capital Advances

Advances other than capital advances

Security Deposits  (Refer Note No. 50) 

Balances with Revenue Authorities

Other Receivables

i

ii

iii

1 58.48

                         

83.56

2

166.72 163.12

367.08 447.66

18.17 18.17

610.45 712.51

NOTE NO. 05   OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
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NOTE NO. 06   INVENTORIES

1 Finished Goods

2 Trading goods

3 Stores & Spares (held for sale)

4 Goods-in Transit (Trading Goods)

-

55.33

106.50

804.48

966.31

 

 

265.22

1,419.40

134.59

247.36

2,066.57
Mode of Valuation

Stores and Spares parts, Trading goods and Finished Products are valued at lower of cost or net realisable  value in accordance with 
Ind AS-2 on Inventories notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

Inventory held at net realizable value amounted to Rs. Nil and Rs.50.73 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively. 
The  write down of inventory for the year ended March 31, 2024 amounted to Rs. Nil and write down on these inventory amounted to 
Rs. 41.41 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Entire inventory has been hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and 
March 31, 2023. For lien/charge against inventories refer note no. 14 and 18.

NOTE NO. 07 : FINANCIAL ASSETS -CURRENT : TRADE RECEIVABLES

A-

- 

4,163.06 

113.11 

4.18

4,280.35 

117.29 

4,163.06

2.01 

4,139.69 

131.00 

22.49

4,295.19 

153.49 

4,141.70

Trade Receivables 

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured;

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;

(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase 
     in Credit Risk; and

(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired.

Less : Allowances for Trade Receivables which 
          have significant increase in Credit Risk

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

Less than 6 
months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than
 3 years Total

                                                 

27.77

                         

108.09

                       

397.36

                      

4,163.06

                                                   

(130.60)

                      

(154.23)

                      

(278.10)

                     

(4,141.70)

                                                                                  

5.29

                           

20.59

                         

87.23

                        

113.11

(28.67)

                        

(33.85)

                        

(68.48)

                       

(131.00)

                                                                                  

-

                                      

-

                             

4.18

                          

4.18

3,459.11

(3,573.09)

-

-

-

170.73

(5.68)

-

-

- (22.49) - (22.49)

3,629.84

(3,578.78)

650.51

(716.41)

Trade Receivable less than 1 year for which no provision is made

Pr Year

Trade Receivable more than 1 year for which provision of Rs. 117.29 lacs has been made

Pr Year

Out of the above Trade Receivables 

(vi) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-credit 
impaired

Pr Year

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) Undisputed

Trade receivables

– considered good

(ii) Undisputed

Trade Receivables

– which have

significant 

increase in credit

risk

Pr Year

Pr Year

Trade Receivables ageing schedule
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NOTE NO. 08   FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT : CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

1 Balance with Banks 320.47 199.87

2 Cash in Hand 2.01 1.56

3 Cheques in Hand (Refer Note No . 49) 3,200.00 2,820.00

3,522.48 3,021.43

NOTE NO. 09   FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT : OTHER BANK BALANCES

1 Deposit with Banks held  as Margin Money 501.28 -

2 - 64.86

3 Earmarked Balances with Banks 0.72 0.72

502.00 65.58

Other Deposit with Banks (Maturity period more 
than 3 month but less than 12 months)

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

(Rupees in Lacs)

NOTE NO. 10 FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT : LOANS
-

12.53

                        

329.34                      
-

                            

-

                            341.87

                      
-

341.87

1
2

3

4

Loans Receivables-Secured & Considered Good

Less : Allowances for Loans Receivables which have 

significant increase in Credit Risk;

Loans Receivables-Unsecured & Considered Good

a. Advances to Employees

Loans Receivables which have significant increase in 

Credit Risk; and

Loans Receivables - credit impaired

b. Loan to Others (Refer Note no 52)

-

15.59

967.34

-

-

982.93

-

982.93

1 4.26

2 41.32

3 -
4 29.46
5 0.77

75.81

Interest Accrued but not due on Deposit with Banks

Interest Accrued and due on Loan to Related Parties 

Interest Accrued Others 
Interest Accrued and due on Loan to Others
Other Receivables
Unsecured & Considered Good 

NOTE NO. 11 FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT : OTHERS

 

16.41

 

41.59

126.02

 

61.45
0.77

246.24

NOTE NO. 12  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

1

961.57
0.84

962.41
0.84

664.95
0.84

665.79

 

0.84

2

3

4

Advance with Suppliers/ Service providers

a. Unsecured & Considered Good
b. Doubtful

Less: Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Advances

Balance with Revenue Authority
Unsecured & Considered Good

Prepaid expenses.
Unsecured & Considered Good 

Security Deposit
Unsecured & Considered Good 

 

 961.57

2.08

187.44

12.97

1,164.06

664.95

 

2.08

 

157.95

12.97

837.95
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Authorised Capital

(a)

(b)

Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital

Forfeited Shares

25,000 (previous year 25,000) Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each redeemable or otherwise entitled to
such rate of annual dividend as the Director may
determine

1,50,00,000(previous year 1,50,00,000) Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10/- each

91,07,193 (previous year 91,07,193) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10 each fully paid up in cash

Amount originally received as allotment money and
calls on account of 33300 equity shares

NOTE NO. 13   SHARE CAPITAL

1

2

3

4 Shares in the Company held by each 
shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Uniglobe Glycols Limited

Mashino Textile Private Limited

Jaiprakash Associates Limited

R and H Power Company Private Limited

Mr. Priyank Tayal

The Rohtak and Hissar Districts 
Electric Supply Company Private Limited

20,57,508.00 22.59 20,57,508.00

15,39,100.00 16.90 15,39,100.00

8,83,350.00 9.70 8,83,350.00

8,40,000.00 9.22 8,40,000.00

6,01,998.00 6.61 6,01,998.00

5,28,700.00 5.81 5,28,700.00

22.59

16.90

9.70

9.22

6.61

5.81

No. of 
Shares

 % holding in 
the shares 

No. of Shares  % holding in 
the shares 

25.00 25.00

1,500.00 1,500.00

1,525.00 1,525.00

910.72 910.72

0.99 0.99

911.71 911.71

There is no change in issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital during the current year and corresponding previous 
year.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

5 Shares held by promoters at the end of the current year

No. of Shares
 % holding in 

the shares 
 % Change during 

the year 

Doon Industrial Fund Pvt. Ltd. 37,500.00

                  

-

Ganga Corporation Pvt Ltd.                                   1,10,150.00

               

-

The Rohtak And Hissar Dist Elec Supl Co Pvt Ltd          8,83,350.00

               

-

Uniglobe Glycols Limited                                    20,57,508.00

             

-

Everest Roofing Private Limited                             4,29,471.00

               

-

Mashino Textile Pvt. Ltd. 15,39,100.00 -

Amitabh Tayal - Huf                                        68,649.00 -

Manju Tayal                                                 97,098.00 -

Amitabh Tayal                                               2,00,098.00 0.73

Priyank Tayal                                               5,28,700.00 -

Avanti Mohta                                                4,54,800.00 -

Mohan Mangalam Trust                                        1,70,850.00

0.41

1.21

9.70

22.59

4.72

16.90

0.75

1.07

2.20

5.81

4.99

1.88 -

3

8

Promoter Name

1

2

10

11

7

12

4

5

6

9

S.No.
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Shares held by promoters at the end of the previous year

No. of Shares
 % holding in 

the shares  

Doon Industrial Fund Pvt. Ltd. 37,500.00

                  

0.41 -
Ganga Corporation Pvt Ltd                                   1,10,150.00 1.21 -
The Rohtak And Hissar Dist Elec Supl Co Pvt Ltd          8,83,350.00 9.70 -
Uniglobe Glycols Limited                                    20,57,508.00 22.59 -
Everest Roofing Private Limited                             4,29,471.00 4.72 -
Mashino Textile Pvt. Ltd. 15,39,100.00 16.90 -
Amitabh Tayal - Huf                                        68,649.00 0.75 -
Manju Tayal                                                 97,098.00 1.07 -
Amitabh Tayal                                               1,33,598.00 1.47 -
Priyank Tayal                                               5,28,700.00 5.81 -
Avanti Mohta                                                4,54,800.00 4.99 -
Mohan Mangalam Trust                                        1,70,850.00 1.88 -12

6
7
8
9

10
11

1
2
3
4
5

Promoter Name
 % Change during 

the year 

(Rupees in Lacs)

NOTE NO. 14 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT : BORROWINGS

PARTICULARS
AS AT 31ST 

MARCH 2024
AS AT 31ST 

MARCH 2023

 CURRENT (Refer 
Note No. 18 (3)) 

NON
CURRENT

 CURRENT (Refer 
Note No. 18 (3)) 

1 Secured Loan

(a) Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institution
(i) Union Bank Of India 

(ii) HDFC Bank

(Secured by hypothecation of vehicle purchased)
(Refer Terms of Repayment (i))

(Secured by hypothecation of vehicle purchased)
(Refer Terms of Repayment (ii & iii) )

NON
CURRENT

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(iv) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
(Secured by first and exclusive hypothecation
charge on all existing and future current assets

(Refer Terms of Repayment (iv) to (ix))

and moveable fixed assets of Lucknow plant and
collaterally secured by first and exclusive
equitable mortgage of company's immovable
properties being of land and building measuring
at 46.68 acres situated at Mohanlalganj, district
Lucknow and by Corporate Guarantee of
Uniglobe Glycols Limited and Ganga Corporation
Private Limited and personal guarantee of
managing director and his wife & whole time
director and his wife of the company and pledge
of 201366 shares of the company by the
managing director and whole time director of the
company).

(v) ICICI Bank Limited

1.30

6.05

372.92

210.24

2.50

17.46                          

4,002.59
                        

                   

736.77

(Refer Terms of Repayment (x) to (xi)

1.27

11.43

4,702.08

1,040.82

                          

1.20

5.60

                          

                      

536.02

124.53
(Secured by first and exclusive equitable
mortgage of company's immovable properties
being of land and building situated at Village
Bishara, Noida, Dadri, U.P).
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(Rupees in Lacs)

 CURRENT (Refer 
Note No. 18 (3)) 

NON
CURRENT

 CURRENT (Refer 
Note No. 18 (3)) 

NON
CURRENT

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2 Unsecured Loan

Loan from Banks

ICICI Bank

(Refer Terms of Repayment (xii) to (xiii)

Loan from Others

(b) Loan from Related Parties :
From Companies
From Others

(Secured by equitable mortgage on the immovable 
property of Managing Director and personal guarantee 
of Managing Director & a Director of the Company 
and Corporate Guarantee of Uniglobe Glycols 
Limited)

236.25

826.76

1,296.71

878.14
823.06

                   
7,757.23

1,448.42

635.38
624.56

8,463.96
                      

99.11

766.46

I Terms of Repayment
i. Union Bank of India Rs. 2.58 Lacs (Rs. 3.70 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.90% p.a. and Repayable in 60 EMI of Rs. 11,995/-  starting from Feb 2021 .

ii. HDFC Bank Rs. 3.98 Lacs (Rs. 5.90 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 7.25 % p.a. Repayable in 48 EMI of Rs. 19,250/- starting From Feb 2022.

iii. HDFC Bank Rs. 13.50 Lacs (17.16 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 7.25 % p.a. Repayable in 60 EMI of Rs. 39,933/- starting From June 2022.

iv. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. NIL (Rs. 689.42 Lacs)
Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 34 EMI of Rs. 23,16,012/- starting from April 2023 . It 
has been paid in full during the year.

v. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. NIL (Rs. 440.00 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 56 EMI of Rs. 9,72,567/- starting from April 2023 It 
has been paid in full during the year.

vi. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 797.68 Lacs (Rs. 1032.25 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 46 EMI of Rs. 26,78,802/- starting from April 2023 .

vii. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 2400.00 Lacs (Rs. 2400.00 Lacs)

viii Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 395.41 Lacs (Rs. NIL)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 120 EMI of Rs. 5,14,311/-  starting from Feb 2024 .

Ix Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 1489.17 Lacs (Rs. NIL)

Terms of Repayment-Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 120 EMI of Rs. 19,28,665/- starting from March 2024 .

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and only interest is payable from april 2023 to jan 2027 thereafter EMI 
of Rs. 50,22,872/- starting from Feb 2027 to jan 2032. 

x. ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 736.77 Lacs (Rs. 861.30 Lacs)
Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.60% p.a. and Repayable in 84 EMI of principal of Rs. 10,37,711/- plus interest 
starting from March 2023 .

xi. ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 514.28 Lacs (Rs. NIL Lacs)
Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.60% p.a. and Repayable in 84 EMI of principal of Rs. 7,14,285/- plus interest 
starting from April 2023 .

xii. ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 388.57 Lacs (Rs. NIL Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.25% p.a. and Repayable in 35 EMI of principal of Rs. 11,42,858/- plus interest 
starting from March 2024 .

xiii. ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 1296.70 Lacs (Rs. 1395.81 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 8.90% p.a. and Repayable in 180 EMI of principal of Rs. 8,25,927/- plus interest 
starting from May 2022 .
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20.13

1 Provisions for Employees Benefit

(a) Gratuity
(b) Leave Encashment 43.22

63.35

NOTE NO. 16   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)

561.77
-

(46.61)

515.16

Less: Deferred Tax Assets
Others

TOTAL

Deferred Tax Liability
Related to Fixed Assets

NOTE NO. 17   OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

1 Security Deposit 40.00

                         

40.00

                         NOTE NO. 18   FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT : BORROWINGS

1 Secured Loan
(a) Working Capital Loan from Banks

(ii) 313.29

2 Unsecured Loan

(a) Loan from Companies 507.00

(b) Loan from Related Parties
(i) From Companies 687.31
(ii) From Others 44.50

3 Current Maturity of Long Term Debts (refer note no. 14) 826.76

2,378.86

32.36
43.39

75.75

 

587.31
-

(66.96)

520.35

58.27

 

58.27

 

 

345.30

972.00

485.55
3.00

766.46

2,572.31

(Secured by first and exclusive hypothecation
charge on all existing and future current assets
and moveable fixed assets of Lucknow plant and
collaterally secured by first and exclusive
equitable mortgage of company's immovable
properties being of land and building measuring
at 46.68 acres situated at Mohanlalganj, district
Lucknow and by Corporate Guarantee of
Uniglobe Glycols Limited and Ganga Corporation
Private Limited and personal guarantee of
managing director and his wife & whole time
director and his wife of the company and pledge
of 201366 shares of the company by the
managing director and whole time director of the
company).

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

NOTE NO. 15 : NON CURRENT PROVISIONS

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

NOTE NO. 19   TRADE PAYABLES

1 -
 

-

2 122.12 385.08

122.12 385.08

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises (refer note no. 37)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
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(Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

-

                                               

-

                             

-

                            

- -

77.67

                                           

-

                             

16.49

                        

27.96 122.12

(301.40) (30.96) (5.21) (47.51) (385.08)

- - - - -
- - - - -

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Pr Year

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME

Particulars

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(i) Undisputed dues

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

NOTE NO. 20   FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT : OTHERS

1 Capital creditors

2 Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings

3 Deposit from Stockists, Distributors, & Contractors etc.

68.10

6.15

-

74.25

 
70.76

 

13.71

42.57

127.04

1 Credit balances of Customers 137.49

                       

332.22

2 Amount due to employees 47.45

                        

49.90

3 Statutory dues/duties, taxes payable 8.41 129.02

193.35 511.14

NOTE NO. 21  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

NOTE NO. 22  PROVISIONS

16.99 17.74

Provisions for Employees Benefit

(a) Bonus

(b) Leave Encashment 3.74 10.62

20.73 28.36

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

NOTE NO. 23   REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
1 Sale of Products 17,763.73                  17,529.99

2 1,928.65
                    

1,873.70

19,692.38 19,403.69

Lease Rent

NOTE NO. 24   OTHER INCOME
1 Interest Income 394.95                       421.84

2 Dividend Income 0.07
                           

0.12

3 2.34

                           

-

4 672.37

 

654.84

Less : Reimbursement of Expenses 515.05

 

157.32

                       

598.20 56.64

5 - 0.98

554.68 479.58

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets

Applicable net gain on foreign 
currency transaction 

Other non- operating Incomes

NOTE NO. 25   CHANGES OF INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

1 265.22
 

2,817.71

1,614.48

 

1,715.23

39.90  41.54

12.38

 

13.32

Stock in hand at the beginning of the year 

Finished Goods -AC Sheet

Trading goods 

Trading Goods - Cable

Trading Goods -Paint
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(Rupees in Lacs)

2 -

 

265.22

859.81 1,614.48

- 39.90

- 12.38

1,072.17 2,655.82

Finished Goods -AC Sheet

Trading goods 

Trading Goods - Cable

Trading Goods -Paint

Decrease / (Increase) in Stock

NOTE NO. 26   EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES

1 Salaries & Wages 612.44 710.67

Less : Reimbursement of Expenses 515.05 97.39
 

598.20 112.47

2 Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 41.53

 

52.92

3 4.28 3.92

143.20 169.31

Staff Welfare expenses

NOTE NO. 27   FINANCE COST

1 Interest Expenses 1,007.52                    1,114.19

2 Other Borrowing Costs 9.71 40.19

1,017.23 1,154.38

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

NOTE NO. 28   DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

476.35 413.87

-

 
3.50

476.35 410.37

Depreciation 

Less: Transferred from revaluation reserve

(Refer Statement of Changes in Equity )

NOTE NO. 29   OTHER EXPENSES

1 14.05                         39.77

2 0.18
                           

0.18

3 1.20

                           

0.64

4 1.10

                           

6.34

5 10.81

                         

9.94

6 183.08

                       

67.95

7 -

                             

70.85

8 174.15

                       

302.55

9 -

                             

77.13

10

3.00

                           

3.00

                          

0.74

                           

1.48

                          

-

                             

3.74

 

-

                            

4.48

11 32.54 20.91

12 37.84 78.38

13 - 170.84

14 13.55 12.00

472.24 861.96

Power & Fuel

Rent

Repairs to Building

Repairs to Machineries

Rates & Taxes

Breakages

Miscellaneous expenses

Transport, Packing & Forwarding exp.

Payments to Auditors

i. As Auditor

ii. For Other Services

iii. For Reimbursement of expenses

Bad debts/Irrecoverable claims written off

Provision for Bad Debts

Loss of Damaged Stock 

Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No.56)

Insurance

 

TOTAL
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NOTE NO. 30   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Claim against the company not acknowledge as debt

(i) Sales Tax

(ii) Entry Tax

(b) Guarantees

(c) Tax matters pending in appeals etc.

(i) Income Tax

(ii) Service & Excise Tax

2 COMMITMENTS

(a) Custom Duty on Raw Material

(b) Capital Commitments

429.65

1.41

315.80

336.08

375.44

-

-

507.80

1.41

15.00

336.08

375.44

-

-

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2024 

AS AT 31ST 
MARCH 2023 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

31. The company has leased its Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit to Navnidhi Continental Private Limited (Lessee) w.e.f. 01.01.2022 

after completion of trial period from 01.09.2021 to 31.12.2021 in terms of its agreement dated 01.01.2022 as modified by 

addendum dated 01.03.2022 to the said agreement. During the trial period the Lessee was allowed to conduct due diligence of 

the company’s assets at its Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit. Consequently, no production was done by the company w.e.f. 

01.09.2021.

32. 'The segment reporting of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment" (specified 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. For management purposes, the Company is classified into business activities 

based on its products and services and has two reportable segments as follows:

 (a)  Leasing & Activities - Incidental to Leasing ; (b)  Sale of Asbestos & Other Products

 Segments have been identified as reportable segments by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). 

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and 

amount allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated expenditure consists of common expenditure incurred for all the 

segments and expenses incurred at corporate level. The assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments 

are shown as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively

 The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company’s accounting policies described in Note 1. 

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Revenue 15,831.11

              

15,010.77

                  

4,021.00 4,450.66 19,852.11 19,461.43

Segment Result 945.47

                   

846.83

                       

327.00 448.34 1,272.47 1,295.17

Interest Expenses 1,007.52 1,114.18

Interest Income 394.95 421.83

Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Item 659.89 602.82

Tax Expenses 112.30 157.65

Net Profit for the year 547.59 445.17

Assets 15,610.22 14,083.84 8,024.64 9,133.38 23,634.86 23,217.22

Liabilities 170.47 257.32 11,729.02 11,778.19 11,899.49 12,035.51

Depreciation 78.05 72.37 398.30 338.00 476.35 410.37

Capital Work-in-Progress 302.38 1,244.96 - - 302.38 1,244.96

Leasing & Activities - Incidental to 
Leasing

Sale of Asbestos & Other Products
TOTAL

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Particulars
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33  'The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets.  The management is of the opinion 

that the recoverable amount of Company’s assets or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset 

belongs as on 31.03.2024 is higher than the carrying amount. As such, the assets of the Company are not impaired in terms 

of Ind AS-36 notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

34  'Asbestos fibre as at year-end has been kept by the company at identified locations in the same premises as that of the 

lessee. The inventory of Asbestos Fibre valued at cost at Rs. 55.33 lacs has been kept in a separate godown under the 

physical control of the company. The company is in the process of disposing off the said inventory of Asbestos Fibre at a Net 

Realisable value which is in higher of the cost of the inventory on which the same has been carried in the financial 

statements.

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

35.   Investment in Subsidiary
% of Holding as at 

31.03.2024
% of Holding as 

at 31.03.2023

Ubuild Better Private Ltd. - Wholly owned Subsidiary 100% NIL

PO Mohanlalganj, Lucknow - 226301

36 Related Party Disclosures

List of Related Parties and Relationship

i) Covered by Control Criteria

Ubuild Better Private Ltd. - Wholly owned Subsidiary 100% NIL

ii) Entities Jointly Controlled By Key Management Personnel

Mashino Textile (P) Ltd.

Everest Roofings (P) Ltd.

The Rohtak and Hissar District Electric Supply Co. (P) Ltd.

Ganga Corporation (P) Ltd

UPAL Hotels (P) Ltd.

MTX Hotels (P) Ltd.

Doon Industrial Fund Private Limited

Ecogreen Developers (P) Ltd.

Uniglobe Glycols Limited

Antarrashtriya Hindi Vidhyapeeth

Amitabh Tayal (HUF)- HUF of Managing Director

% of Holding as at 
31.03.2024

% of Holding as 
at 31.03.2023

Investment in subsidiary is made on the basis of valuation done by external valuer to determine the value of equity share 
for the purpose of transfer of shares.

iii) Key Management Personnel, Close Memeber And Other Executive Officers

Mr. Amitabh Tayal  -  Managing Director

Mr. Priyank Tayal    -  Director

Mrs. Mala Agarwal- Director Resigned on 02/09/2023

Mrs. Sushma Seth- Director Appointmed on 02/09/2023

Mr. Paras Nath - Director 

Mr. Qamar Syed Wajahat - Director

Mrs. Shailly Tayal - Wife of Mr. Priyank Tayal.

Mrs. Manju Tayal-  Wife of Managing Director

Mrs. Avanti Mohta- Daughter of Managing Director

Mr.  Gaurav Arora - Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Sakshi Pandey - Company Secretary 

Note:- Related party relationship is identified by the company.
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Transactions with Related Parties and Outstanding balances as on 31-03-2024

TRANSACTIONS  

ENTITIES 
JOINTLY 

CONTROLLED 
BY KEY 

MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL  

KEY 
MANAGEMENT  

CLOSE 
MEMBER  

WHOLLY 
OWNED 

SUBSIDIA
RY  

TOTAL  
PERSONNEL,  & 

OTHER 
EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER  

  Rs. Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  

EXPENSES        
  

  
Interest Paid  144.73  50.23  

                        
6.16  0.00  201.12 

  
                          

(164.57)  
                                    

(79.73)  
                             

(19.78)  (-)  
                        

(264.08) 
Remuneration Paid  

       
-   

                                     
73.58  

                                 
6.00  0.00  

                            
79.58  

  (-) 
                                    

(71.59)  
                               

(6.00)  (-)  
                           

(77.59) 

Repair & Maintenance  
                                

2.24  0.00  0.00  0.00  
                              

2.24  

  (2.24)  (-) (-) (-)  (2.24) 

INCOME        
  

  

Interest Received  
                                     

-   
                                            

-   
                                     

-   
                             

45.92  
                    

45.92  

  (-) (-) (-) 
                           

(46.21)  
                           

(46.21) 

Rental Income  
                                     

-   
                                            

-   
   

-   42.00  42.00 

  (-) (-) (-) (42.00)  (42.00) 

Manpower Income   -   -   -   -    -  

  (-) (-) (-) (16.58)  (16.58) 

OTHER TRANSACTION        
  

  

Loan Given  
                                     

-   
                                            

-   
                                     

-   92.00  92.00 

  (-) (-) (-) (185.74)  (185.74) 

Loan Received Back  
                                     

-   
                                            

-   
                                     

-   280.00  280.00 

  (-) (-) (-) (-)  (-) 

Loan Received  657.00  432.00  
                                 

2.00  
                                    

-    1091.00 

  (588.00)  (219.00)  (-) (-)  (807.00) 

Loan Repaid  697.00  392.00  200  
                  

-    1289.00 

  (721.96)  (772.94)  (16.40)  (-)  (1511.30) 

OUTSTANDING BALANCES        
  

          
  

  

RECEIVABLES        
  

  

Loan Given  
                                     

-   
                                            

-   
                                     

-   
                           

327.34  
                          

327.34  

  (-) (-) (-)  (515.34)  (515.34) 

Rent  0.00  0.00  0.00                                 3.32 

(-)
 

(-)
 

(-)
 

(-)
 

(-)

Interest
 

0.00
 

0.00
 

0.00
 

                             

41.33 
 

41.33

3.32 

                           

( ) ( ) ( ) (41.59) (41.59)-
 

-
 

-
  

PAYABLES

  
       

Loan

                         

1,337.19 

                                   

621.56 

                              

33.00 0.00 1,991.75 
     

(1377.19) (581.56) (231.00) ( ) (2189.75) -        

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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37. 'There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for  more than 45 
days as at 31.03.2024. This information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company.

i)  Gratuity (As per actuarial valuation as on 31.03.2024)

38 a) Defined Contribution Plan

i) Company's contribution to Government Administered Provident Fund / Family Fund during the year is Rs. 33.17 Lacs 
(Rs. 43.96 Lacs). 

ii) Company's contribution towards Employees State Insurance Fund is Rs.  8.36 Lacs (Rs. 8.96 Lacs).

b)  Defined Benefit Plan

The contribution to provident fund is made to Employees’ Provident Fund managed by Provident Fund Commissioner. 
The contribution towards ESIC is made to Employees State Insurance Corporation. The obligation of the Company is 
limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

31-03-24 31-03-23

306.45 296.61
286.33 264.25
20.12 32.35

                           -                             -   
                           -                             -   

                     20.12                     32.35 

31-03-24 31-03-23

                     23.78                     24.52 
                     19.63                     17.62 

                    (18.48)                    (16.30)

                           -                             -   
                     24.93                     25.85 

31-03-24 31-03-23

                       3.25                      (1.83)
                           -                             -   
                       4.77                      (1.11)
                           -                             -   

                    (13.48)                       4.85 
                      (8.71)                       3.73 

(1.54) (1.34)
                      (7.17)                       5.07 
                      (3.93)                       3.25 

Effect of Change in demographic assumptions [D]
Effect of experience adjustments [E]
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses ( C+ D +E )
Return on plan assets (excluding interest)
Total remeasurements recognized in OCI
Amount recognized in OCI, End of Period

 Amounts in Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit
Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)
Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(b)
Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Past Service Cost
(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/ Curtailments/Acquisitions/Divestitures
Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefit

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of Period
Remeasurements due to :
Effect of Change in financial assumptions [C]

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

The employees’ Gratuity Fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of obligation is 
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of 
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the 
final obligation.

                     19.63                     17.62 
                           -                             -   

                      (8.71)                       3.73 
                           -                             -   

                    (24.85)                    (11.39)
                           -                             -   
                           -                             -   
                           -                             -   
                           -                             -   

                   306.44                   296.61 

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture
Actual Benefits Paid
Past Service Cost
Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates
Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements
Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period

Interest Cost

31-03-24 31-03-23

                   296.61                   262.12 
                     23.78                     24.52 

Change in Present Value of Benefit Obligation during the Period

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period
Current Service Cost
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31-03-24 31-03-23

                   264.25                   230.69 
                     18.48                     16.30 
                     30.00                     30.00 
                           -                             -   

                    (24.85)                    (11.39)
(1.54) (1.34)

                           -                             -   
                           -                             -   
                           -                             -   

                   286.33                   264.25 

31-03-24 31-03-23

0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%

100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%

Category of Assets

Govt. of India Securities (Central and State)
High quality corporate bonds (incl PSU Bonds)
Equity shares of listed companies
Real Estate / Property
Cash (including Special Deposits)
Other (including assets under Schemes of Ins.)
Total

Decrease
                         318.94 

4.07%
                         295.63 

-3.53%

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)                                                                                          306.45 

Sensitivity Analysis 31-03-24
Increase

Discount Rate                                                    294.74 
Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO -3.82%

Sensitivity Analysis

31-03-24

Salary Growth Rate                                                    317.55 
Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.62%

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements
Fair Value of Plan Assets, End of Period

31-03-24 31-03-23

 -  - 
                     20.12                     32.35 
                     20.12                     32.35 

Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation

Current Liability
Non Current Liability
Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the Period

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period
Interest Income Plan Asset
Actual Enterprise's Contributions
Actual Plan Participants' Contributions
Actual Benefits Paid
Actuarial Gains/(Losses)
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

31-03-24 31-03-23

6.95% 7.15%

8.00% 8.00%

6.95% 7.15%

5.00% 5.00%

IAL Mortality 
(2012-14) Ult.

IAL Mortality 
(2012-14) Ult.

Financial Assumptions

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Expected Return on Assets

Withdrawl Rate

Mortality rates

ii)  Leave Encashment plan (As per actuarial valuation as on 31.03.2024)

31-03-24 31-03-23

46.96 54.01
-

46.96 54.01
-

-

46.96 54.01

31-03-24 31-03-23

                       3.74                     10.62 

                     43.22                     43.39 

                     46.96                     54.01 

Current / Non Current Bifurcation

Current Liability

Non Current Liability

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Amount in Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Fair value of plan Assets

Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(B)

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

-

-

-

(Rupees in Lacs)
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st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

31-03-24 31-03-23

5.13 7.09

31-03-23 31-03-22

to to

31-03-24 31-03-23

54.01 55.50

5.13 7.09

(12.19) (8.58)

- -

46.96 54.01

31-03-24 31-03-23

186 189

36,17,991 35,88,311

44.98 44.29

13.04 12.02

6,520 6,942

35.05 36.73

Actual Benefits Paid

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Closing Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability

Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheet

Membership Data

Number of Members

Total Monthly Salary (INR)

Average Age (Years)

Average Past Service (Years)

Total Leave Balance (Days)

Average Leave Balance

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefit
Expense"

Opening Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability

Total Expense/(Income) Recognised in P&L

31-03-24 31-03-23

46.96 54.01

- -

46.96 54.01

- -

- -

46.96 54.01

31-03-23
to

31-03-24

31-03-22
to

31-03-23

Current Service Cost 5.85 7.73

Interest Cost 3.43 3.64

Expected Return on Plan Assets - -

Past Service Cost - -

Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains) (4.14) (4.28)

(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/
Curtailments/Acquisitions/Divestitures

- -

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 59(B) - -

5.13 7.09

- -

- -

- -

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (f) ]

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (m) ]

Table 1 : Amounts in Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Fair value of plan Assets

Table 3 : Actual Return on Plan Assets

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets

Actual Return on Plan Assets

Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(B)

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Table 2 : Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee

Benefit Expense"

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (g) ]

31-03-23
to

31-03-24

31-03-22
to

31-03-23

(Rupees in Lacs)
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54.01 55.50

5.85 7.73

3.43 3.64

- -

(4.14) (4.28)

- -

(12.19) (8.58)

- -

- -

- -

- -

46.96 54.01

Table 4 : Change in Present value of Benefit Obligation during the Period

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Actual Benefits Paid

Past Service Cost

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (c) ]

31-03-23
to

31-03-24

31-03-22
to

31-03-23

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

-

9.56

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

10.62

43.39

54.01

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

31-03-24 31-03-23

3.74

43.22

46.96

31-03-24 31-03-23

-

9.24

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (e) ]

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (q) ]

Fair Value of Plan Assets, End of Period

Table 6 : Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation

Current Liability

Non Current Liability

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

[ Reference : Revised Companies' Schedule IV ]

Table 7 : Other Items

Expected Contributions for the next financial year

Decrement adjusted estimated tenure of Actuarial liability

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actual Enterprise's Contributions

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actual Benefits Paid

Actuarial Gains/(Losses)

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Table 5 : Change in Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period
31-03-23

to
31-03-24

31-03-22
to

31-03-23

31-03-24 31-03-23 31-03-22 31-03-21 31-03-20

DBO 46.96 54.01 55.50 56.22 52.09

Plan Assets - - - -

(Surplus) / Deficit 46.96 54.01 55.50 56.22 52.09

Exp Adj - Plan Assets Gain/(Loss) - - - -

Assumptions (Gain)/Loss 0.78 (0.20) (1.75) (1.03) 4.42

Exp Adj - Plan
Liabilities (Gain)/Loss

(4.92) (4.08) (0.35) (0.35) (1.26)

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (4.14) (4.28) (2.10) (0.69) 3.16

Table 8 : History of DBO, Asset values, Surplus / Deficit & Experience Gains / Losses

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (p) ]

-

-
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[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (j), (k) ]

Table 9 : Category of Assets
Govt. of India Securities (Central and State)

High quality corporate bonds (incl PSU Bonds)

Equity shares of listed companies

Real Estate / Property

Cash (including Special Deposits)

Other (including assets under Schemes of Ins.)

Total

31-03-24 31-03-23
0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

31-03-23 31-03-22
to to

31-03-24 31-03-23

(4.14) (4.28)

- -

(4.14) (4.28)

31-03-23 31-03-22
to to

31-03-24 31-03-23

- -

- -

- -

- -

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Decrease

Discount Rate 48.99

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO 0.04

Salary Growth Rate 45.06

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO (0.04)

[ Reference : Ind AS 19 para 120A (n) ]

31-03-24

3.74

2.86

5.44

2.40

4.90

20.21

Sensitivity Analysis

31-03-24

46.96

Table 12 : Sensitivity Analysis 31-03-24

Past Service cost recognized in the period

Closing Non Vested Past Service Cost

Recognition of Actuarial Gains/Losses

Ind AS19 does not give any option to defer recognition of actuarial gains & losses. All the actuarial gains/losses
arising during the reporting period have been recognized in full through Statement of Profit & Loss.
[ Reference : Ind AS 19 (para) 129A ]

Table 10 : Recognition of Actuarial Gain / Loss

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on DBO

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on Plan Assets

Total (Gain)/Loss recognized during the period

Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss, End of Year

Table 11 : Recognition of Past Service Cost

Opening Non Vested Past Service Cost

New Past Service cost arising in the period

Table 13 : Expected CashFlows

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6 to 10

Increase

45.05

(0.04)

48.96

0.04
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39. 'The Sales Tax and Value Added Tax assessments/appeals under the provisions of respective State Acts and the Central Sales 
Tax under the provision of the Central Sales Tax Act, 1957 for certain past years are pending. Pending completion of such 
assessments/appeals/acceptance of refund claim, amount of Rs.107.83 lacs (Rs.169.26 lacs) determined as refundable from 
the departments has been treated as unsecured and considered good under Balance with Revenue Authorities [Refer Note 
No. 5 (2) (ii). However liability, if any, would be ascertained either at the time of filing of returns/ revised returns, wherever 
required, for the relevant assessment years or on finalization of assessments/appeals by the concerned authorities.

40. Advance Income Tax & Fringe Benefit Tax (Net of Provisions) of Rs. 14.59  lacs (Rs. 14.59 lacs) in respect of which 
reconciliation with the assessment/appellate order is in progress for some assessment years. The aforesaid amount is subject 
to adjustment on the basis of the aforesaid reconciliation.

41. 'In the F Y 2008-09, the company has revalued its entire lands situated at Mohanlalganj Lucknow and at Village Bishara, Dadri, 
Gautam Buddh Nagar . The aforesaid lands have been revalued at fair market value by external valuers on the basis of the 
enquiries made by the valuers of the prevailing market price of similar properties in the vicinity and giving weightage to the 
peculiar situation of the aforesaid lands. Revalued amount of lands at Mohanlalganj Lucknow and Village Bishara, Dadri, 
Gautam Buddh Nagar had been recognized in the financial statement by increasing the existing value of the land by Rs. 
4926.01 Lacs and crediting the increase in the net book value to the owner’s interest under the head revaluation reserve.

42. 'The State Government of Rajasthan has withdrawn benefit available to the company under Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act 
2003 on sale of A C Sheet containing Fly Ash more than 25% by weight. A writ petition of the company against this withdrawl of 
benefit before Hon'ble Rajasthan Highcourt, Jaipur Bench, Jaipur has been decided against the company. Civil Appeals of the 
company against the order of The Hon'ble Rajasthan Highcourt, Jaipur Bench, Jaipur are pending before Hon’ble Supreme 
Court. However, on conservative basis demands raised against the company has been charged to revenue in the years in 
which the same were paid by the company.

43. 'Selling price, discounts, commission and breakage compensation is determined by negotiation with customers. Such 
negotiation done telephonically / in meeting is evidenced by approval of the management of the company. The company has, 
during the year, accounted for the discount, commission, breakages on this basis. Since payments from customers are 
received in lump-sum and the balance confirmation sent by the company are generally not responded  by the customers, the 
balances in the accounts  of customers are subject to the reconciliation, confirmation and consequent adjustment, if any.

44. Balances of Trade Receivables (except few parties), Trade Payables , balances with customers & employees included in Other 
current liabilities, non current liabilities, Other current financial liabilities, balances with creditors etc. included in other financial 
liabilities, other current and non current assets and advances to employees and State Bank of India, Dadri Branch, are subject 
to reconciliation, confirmation and consequent adjustments, if any.

45. Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objective and policies
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on  
the  balance sheet.  Details of  significant accounting  policies, including  the criteria  for recognition,  the basis  of measurement and 
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are 
disclosed in Note 1.

I      Financial assets and liabilities as at

FVTPL       FVTOCI       Amortised  Cost Carrying Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents                        -                         -   3,522.48
 

3,522.48

                       -                         -   502.00
 

502.00

                       -   6.37
 

                                -   84.36

                       -                         -   341.87

 
341.87

                       -                         -   4,163.06

 

4,163.06

                       -                         -   -

 

-

                       -                         -   276.61

 

276.61

                       -                         -   1,050.35

 

1,050.35

                       -   6.37 9,856.37 9,940.73

Other bank balances

Non-Current trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 2024

Financial Assets

Non Current investments

Loans- current

Current trade receivables

Other Non-current financial assets

Other Current financial assets

Fair Value

 
3,522.48

 
502.00

 
84.36

 
341.87

 

4,163.06

 

-

 

276.61

 

1,050.35

9,940.73
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                       -                         -                        8,463.97 8,463.97

 

8,479.04

                       -                         -                        2,378.86 2,378.86

 

2,378.86

                       -                         -                           122.12 122.12

 

122.12

                       -                         -                             40.00 40.00

 

40.00

                       -                         -                           259.20 259.20 259.20

                       -                         -   11,264.15 11,264.15 11,279.22

Other Current financial liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings- Non Current

Borrowings- Current

Trade payables

Other Non-Current financial liabilities
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FVTPL       FVTOCI       Amortised  Cost Carrying Value Fair Value

                       -                         -   3,021.43

 

3,021.43

 

3,021.43

                       -                         -   65.58

 

65.58

 

65.58

                       -   5.47

 

                                -   5.47

 

5.47

                       -                         -   982.93

 

982.93

 

982.93

                       -                         -   4,141.70

 

4,141.70

 

4,141.70

                       -                         -   -

 

-

 

-

                       -                         -   272.54

 

272.54

 

272.54

                       -                         -   924.16

 

924.16

 

924.16

                       -   5.47

 

9,408.34

 

9,413.81

 

9,413.81

                       -                         -                        7,757.23 7,757.23

 

7,780.30

                       -                         -                        2,572.31 2,572.31

 

2,572.31

                       -                         -                           385.08 385.08 385.08

                       -                         -                             58.27 58.27 58.27

                       -                         -                           509.16 509.16 509.16

                       -                         -   11,282.05 11,282.05 11,305.12

Non-Current trade receivables

Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Current trade receivables

Other Non-current financial assets

Other Current financial assets

March 31, 2023

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Non Current investments

Loans- current

Borrowings- Non Current

Borrowings- Current

Trade payables

Other Non-Current financial liabilities

Other Current financial liabilities

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Fair Value Hierarchy
The table shown below analyses finanacial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been 
defined below:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Total

 Financial liabilities 

Total

 Level 1                     Level 2    Level 3 

                          84.36                                  -                                       -   

                          84.36                                  -                                       -   

                                -                                    -                                       -   

                                -                                    -                                       -   

 March 31, 2024 

 Level 1                     Level 2    Level 3 

                                 -                                       -   

                                 -                                       -   

                                 -                                       -   

                            5.47 

                            5.47 
                                -   

                                -                                    -                                       -   

 Level 1            Level 2             Level 3 

                                -                                       -   

                                -                                       -   

 March 31, 2023 

Total

Financial Instruments

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Total
 Financial liabilities 

The below table summarises the fair value of financial liabilities which are carried at amortised cost as at March 31, 
2024, and March, 31 2023:

Financial Instruments

March 31, 2024
Non Current & Current Borrowings

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Total

March 31, 2023
Non Current & Current Borrowings

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Total
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The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:

• Non-current borrowings including current maturity of long term borrowings: Fair value has been determined by the Company based 
on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, and the risk characteristics of the financed project.

• Other  non-current  financial  assets  and  liabilities:  Fair  value  is  calculated  using  a  discounted  cash  flow  model  with  market 
assumptions, unless the carrying value is considered to approximate to fair value.

'• Trade  receivables,  cash  and  cash  equivalents,  other  bank  balances,  loans,  other  current  financial  assets,  current  
borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities: Approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments. Fair  value of investments are on the basis of quoted prices in active market on the balance sheet.

There has been no transfer between Level 1 & Level 2 during the above periods
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value or future cash flows arising out of change in the price of a financial 
instrument. These include change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and 
other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.

The company manages market risk through a risk management committee engaged in, inter alia, evaluation and identification of risk 
factors with the object of governing/mitigating them according to Company’s objectives and declared policies in specific context of 
impact thereof on various segments of financial instruments. The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk management policy 
on a quarterly basis.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 
The company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

Foreign currency risk
The company does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk.
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Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the 
company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic 
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the 
company compares the risk of default occuring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial 
recognition. The company considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in a repayment 
plan with the company. 

The company is monitoring production, realization, demand of the products and continous payment to the company by the lessee in 
order to mitigate the risk involved due to high outstaning balance in a single go, hence the Company’s concentration of risk with 
respect to trade receivables is low.

Liquidity Risk
The Company's Current assets aggregate to Rs.10735.60  lacs (Rs.11365.72 lacs) including Cash & cash equivalents and other 
bank balance balances of Rs.4024.49 lacs (Rs.3087.01 lacs) against an aggregate Current liability of Rs. 2817.03 lacs (Rs. 3623.92 
lacs ); Non-current liabilities amounting to Rs. 9073.35 lacs (Rs. 8411.59 lacs) on the reporting date. Further, while the company's 
total equity stands Rs. 11744.48 lacs (Rs. 11181.69 lacs), it has borrowing of Rs. 10842.82 lacs (Rs.10329.54 lacs). In such 
circumstances, liquidity risk or the risk that the company may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due does not 
exist.

46. The Company as lessor
 Rental Income from operating lease is in respect of Land, Building and Plant & Machinery at the Dadri Unit and Mohanlalganj, 

Lucknow Unit of the Company. The Dadri Unit has been leased out by the company for a period of 15 years w.e.f. 01.04.2019 
and Mohanlalganj, Lucknow Unit for a period of 10 years w.e.f. 01.01.2022 (registered agreement entered into for 10 years for 
land and building and for 5 years for plant and machinery which shall be further registered after 5 years after updating the list of 
Plant & Machinery). The lease rental is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.   
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 The aggregate of future minimum lease payments in respect of Non-Cancellable leasing arrangement required to be disclosed 
as per Ind AS-116 as under:

 The Company as lessee

 The company’s leasing arrangements are in respect of short-term leases for obtaining premises such as godowns, offices, etc. 
and the same is recognized as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term.

47. The company has not accepted any deposits during the year within the meaning of section 73 to section 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder.

48. The company has adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business including adherence to company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required by the Companies Act, 2013. However, such internal controls are being followed as a part of company’s routine 
functioning and are yet to be formally documented. The company is in the process of documenting its processes which ensure 
adequate internal financial controls so as to be able to demonstrate the existence and effective implementation of such control.

49. The company has received cheques of Rs. 3200 lacs from M/s Navnidhi Continental Private Limited in the month of March, 
2024 against outstanding Trade Receivables. The same has been disclosed under the head Cheques-in-Hand in Note 08 of 
the financial statements. On insistence of the party, the company instead of depositing the aforesaid cheques for realizing its 
payment, accepted payment from the party through RTGS. However, the amount corresponding to such cheques of Rs. 2488 
lacs were actually paid by the party through RTGS after the balance sheet date till 27th May’2024. 

a. Rs. 

b. Rs. 

c. Rs. Later than five years 

1,996.81 Lacs

 8,703.36 Lacs 

Not Later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years up to 31.03.2029

 9,265.02 Lacs 
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50. Deposit Payment (Refer Note no.5(2)(i) includes security deposit of Rs. 100 lacs ( Rs. 100 lacs )  to M/s Brij Bhushan 
Enterprises LLP given by the company for facilitating regular supply of Raw Material Cement.

51. Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties.

Type of Borrower

Promoter

Directors

                       (2.60)

Repayable on demand

(Rs. In Lacs)

Amount of loan or advance in the 

nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total

Loans and Advances

in the nature of loans

                                                 -   

                                                 -   

0.24%

99.76%

                                                       -   

                                                       -   

                                                   0.80 KMPs

(0.27%)

                                              (515.34) (52.57%)

Related Parties                                               327.34 

52. Particulars of Loan , Guarantees and Investments under section 186:

SL 

No.

Details of Borrower Opening 

Balance as on 

01/04/2023

Loan Given
During the year

Unsecured 

Loan Received 

back during 

the year

Total amount 

Outstanding at 

the end of F.Y 

2023-24

  100.00 Interest 
(Gross): 12.00

 NIL  - 1
Interest (Gross): 

 5.60

2  150.00  NIL 
 - 

Interest (Gross):                            
18.00

Interest (Gross):                            
8.48

3 Ubuild Better Private 

Limited
  515.34

Interest (Gross):                            
46.21 

 NIL 

                  100 

                  150.00 

             188.00   327.34
Interest (Gross):                            

45.91 

4 Prabhat Ramesh Land 

Developers LLP
  200.00

Interest (Gross):                            
24.00 

 NIL              200.00 
  -

Interest (Gross):                            
6.64 

(Rupees in lacs)

Purpose for which the 

loan is to be utilized by 

the receipient

For Business Operation 

Purposes

For Business Operation 

Purposes

For Business Operation 

Purposes

Castmet Packagings 

Private Limited

Shri Ghata Mehndipur 

Balaji LLP

For Business Operation 

Purposes

74



53. Managerial Remuneration:

(a) Paid/provided for during the year to the directors 2023-24
 (Rs. lacs)

2022-23
 (Rs. lacs)

(i) Salary & Allowance 46.20               46.20

(ii) Commission - -

(iii) Perquisites 4.29                 3.97

50.49 - 50.17
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54. Earnings per share (EPS)

Net profit/(loss) after tax for the year ( Rs in Lacs) 

Weighted number of ordinary shares for basic EPS 

Nominal value of ordinary share (in Rs. per share) 

Basic and Diluted earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. per share) 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

547.59 445.17

9107193 9107193

10/- 10/-

6.01 4.90
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The Company maintains cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Whereas the cost records for 
Financial Year 2023-24 are in the process of updation, the cost records for financial year 2022-23 have been prepared and 
audited by the Cost Auditors of the company. 

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% 
of its average net profit for the immediately Preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) 12.44 10.41

ii) 13.55 12

iii) -

                     

-

                    

iv) -

                     

-

                    

v) NA NA

vi)

Maintenance of 

Goshalas and 

Schools, Health 

care, Sanitation, 

Blanket 

distribution, 

Drinking water 

supply, 

Education and 

Sports facilities, 

Road and Drain 

Repair, 

Environmental 

Protection.

Developmemnt 

of model villages 

by holistic 

approach with a 

focus to 

promoting of 

ecosystem in the 

block 

Mohanlalganj, of 

District Lucknow 

in the state of 

U.P.

vii)

NA NA

viii)

NA NA

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the 
provision

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Amount of expenditure incurred

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Particulars As at

Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related parties transaction, e.g. contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant accounting standards(1) 
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57 Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

(1) Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest+other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.

(2) Equity Share Capital + Other Equity + Total Debt - Revaluation Surplus - Other Comprehensive Income

58. The Company formed wholly owned subsidiary company MLG Warehousing & Industrial Park Pvt Ltd on 12th May 2023. 
However, the Company transferred its 100% shareholding on 28th Jun'2023.

59. The Company has managed to reduce the outstanding debtors of more than one year to Rs. 716.41 lacs in the financial year 
2022- 2023 and further reduced to Rs. 650.51 lacs in the year ended 31st Mar'2024 The Company is hopeful of recovering the 
balance amount in the near future.

60. As per Ind AS -109, the company is carrying the financial liabilities at amortized cost using effective interest method, hence the 
value of term loans have been decreased by the transaction cost i.e. the processing fee to comply with the said Ind AS -109. 
The details of term loans are given below :

(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars Fair Value Carrying Value
5470.85 5454.88

(4561.68) (4538.61)Term loans 

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March 
2024

31st March 
2023

VarianceUnit Reason for 
Variance 

Current Ratio 

Debt-Equity Ratio

Debt Service

coverage Ratio

Return on Equity 
(ROE)

Trade receivables
turnover ratio 

Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Inventory Turnover 
Ratio 

Net capital turnover 

ratio 

Net Profit Ratio 

Return on capital 

employed (ROCE)

Return on Investment (ROI)

Quoted 

Current  Assets 

Total Debt 

Earnings available for 
(1)debt service

Net Profits after taxes 

Revenue 

Purchases of goods 
and other expenses 

Sales 

Revenue 

Net Profit 

Earning before 
interest and taxes 

Income generated 
from investment 

Current liabilities 

Shhareholder's Equity

Debt Service 

Average 
Shareholder's Equity 

Average Trade 
Receivable 

Average Trade 
Payables 

Average Inventory

Working Capital

Revenue 

(2)Capital Employed

Investments 

Times 

Times 

Times 

%

Times 

Times 

Times 

Times 

%

%

%

3.81

1.63

1.28

4.78%

4.74

66.56

11.71

2.56

2.70%

9.57%

0.00%

3.14

1.70

0.94

7.25%

4.84

50.41

4.58

2.57

2.24%

10.67%

0.00%

21.51%

-3.85%

36.35%

-34.12%

-2.05%

32.02%

155.87%

-0.44%

20.80%

-10.33%

0.00%

Changed primarily 

due to increase in 

earnings 

Changed primarily 

due to increase in 

Profit.

Repayment of Trade

Payables has 

resulted in an 

improvement in the 

ratio 

Changed primarily 

due to better 

inventory 

management 

-

-

-

-

st Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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viii

ix

x

xi

xii

xiii

xiv

62 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to make it comparable with current year's figures.

63 Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.

b) provide any gurantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There are no transactions that has been surrendered or disclosed by the Company as income during the

year in the tax assessments in the Income tax Act, 1961. As such, the question of recording of the same in 
the books of accounts does not arise.

The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 
230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period in the 
current as well as in the previous year.

The Company has complied with the number of the layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the

Companies Act read with the Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules 2017.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s) or entity (es) including

foreign entities (intermediates) with the understanding that the intermediary shall :

The Company has not received any fund from any person (s) or entity (ies) including foreign entities (Funding 
party) with the understanding that the company shall -

a) directy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)  or

a) directy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsever by or on 
    behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)  or 
b) provide any gurantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the period / year.

61.   ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

i

ii

iii

iv

v

vi

vii

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deed is not held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

On the basis of available information, there is are not ransactions with struck-off companies under section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,1956, during current and previous years.

There are no intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2024 or as at March 31, 2023.

The Company do not have any Benami property. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any Benami property.

Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks during the year are in 
agreement with the books of accounts.

The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or lender during the year.
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-                          0
(Pursuant to Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange) (Rs. In Lacs)

              Rs.              Rs.               Rs.              Rs.

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AS PER 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

659.89

                   
602.82

   Adjustment for: 

   Depreciation and amortisation expense ( Net of Excess Depreciation written back)

                  
   Finance cost

               
Provision for doubtful debts/ Bad Debts Written off

                    
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

                     
   Foreign Exchange (+)Loss / (-)Gain

                         
   (Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed assets (Net)

                      

   Interest Earned

                  

   Dividend Earned

                      

1,173.77

                

1,233.39

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,833.66

                

1,836.21

   Adjustment for:

   Increase (-) / Decrease in Trade and other Receivables (243.50)

              

(1,995.84)

   Increase (-) / Decrease in Inventories 1,100.26

                

2,696.19

   Increase / Decrease (-) in Trade Payables, current liabilities and provisions (691.34)

                    

165.42

                    

(27.03) 673.32

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 1,999.08

                

2,509.53

   Direct Tax Refund  (Net of Tax Paid) (18.38)

                  

(278.40)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,980.70

                

2,231.13

   Exceptional Item -

                          

-

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER EXCEPTIONAL ITEM 1,980.70

                

2,231.13

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Loan and Advances 638.00

                     

(92.21)

Advances for Property Plant and Equipments 25.08

                     

(67.51)

   Purchase of Property Plant and Equipments (1,521.93)

               

(1,190.25)

   Proceeds from sale of Property Plant and Equipments 0.18

                        

4.90

   Interest Received 394.95

                    

421.83

   Dividend Received 0.08

                        

0.13

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (541.63)

                  

(923.11)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing and other borrowings (net of repayment) 513.29

                  

(305.70)

   Finance cost (1,017.23)

               

(1,154.38)

   Foreign Exchange (-)Loss / (+)Gain 2.34

                          

-

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (501.60) (1,460.08)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 937.47 (152.06)

CASH AND BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,087.01 3,239.07

CASH AND BANK BALANCE AS AT END OF THE YEAR 4,024.48 3,087.01

 2023-24  2022-23

st
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31  March 2024

476.35
1,017.23

70.39
7.17

(2.34)
-

(394.95)
(0.08)

410.37
1,154.38

96.65
(5.07)

(0.98)
(421.83)

(0.13)

Investment is Subsidiary (77.99)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To,
The Members of U.P. Asbestos Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of U.P. Asbestos Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
(financial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2024, and their consolidated net profit (financial performance including other 
comprehensive income), their consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Attention is invited to Note 10 of Notes to  Financial Statements wherein the company has given an ageing schedule of Consolidated
Trade Receivables outstanding as at year-end. In respect of Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding one year as at 
the balance sheet date, the company has made provision for bad & doubtful debts of Rs. 117.29 lacs. However, in the absence of any 
evidence being produced before us by the management regarding the realizability of such debts, we are unable to comment on the 
short provision, if any, on account of bad and doubtful debts in respect of the same in the financial statements. The impact on the 
profit of the company on account of short provision, if any, for bad & doubtful debts cannot, therefore, be ascertained.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matters

Considering the requirement of Standard on Auditing (SA 600) on 'Using the work of Another Auditor' including materiality, we draw 
attention to the following matters in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements:
1. Balance with Revenue Authorities in Note 8 (2) (ii) of Notes to  Financial Statements include Rs. 107.83 Lacs Consolidated

determined by the management as refundable from Sales Tax Department for various years. Pending completion of 
assessments/ appeals of the company by the revenue authorities, the ultimate outcome of liability against the company/ refund 
due to the company cannot presently be determined. Consequently, no provision for any liability that may result has been made 
in the financial statements. (Also refer Note 40 of Notes to  financial statements)consolidated

2. Attention is invited to Note 45 of Notes to  Financial Statements regarding non-confirmation/ non-reconciliation of Consolidated
balances with parties. 

3. We draw attention to Note 50 of Notes to Financial Statements regarding acceptance of payment in respect of Consolidated 
outstanding trade receivables by the company through RTGS appearing in the financial statements as Cheques in Hand.

4. We draw attention to Note 51 of Notes to Financial Statements regarding the matter contained therein.Consolidated 
 Our opinion is not qualified/ modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

HEAD OFF : M-5, GOLE MARKET, 

MAHANAGAR, LUCKNOW - 226006
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consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. The below mentioned key audit 
matters pertains to Holdin report :-g Company as the other auditor of the component has not given any key audit matters in their 

The Key Audit Matter
Physical Verification and Valuation of Inventory 
Inventory of asbestos fibre lying in stock at Mohanlalganj, 
Lucknow premises of the Holding company is a part of the 
Total Inventory of the Holding Company.

Consequent to leasing by the Holding company of its 
manufacturing facilities at Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit, the 
inventory belonging to the Holding Company as well as that 
belonging to the lessee is being kept adjoining to each other in 
the same premises.

In view of significant management judgement involved in 
Identification of inventory belonging to the company and 
physically verifying and categorizing the unsaleable items of 
inventory for valuation of the same at lower of cost or net 
realizable value, we determined this area to be an area of 
audit focus, and accordingly, a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
The management has identified the inventory of asbestos 
fibre and has represented to us that the same belongs to the 
company. The management has further represented that the 
godown in which the inventory of asbestos fibre is kept is in the 
physical control of the company. We have placed reliance on 
the aforesaid representations of the management. In addition, 
following audit procedures were applied in this area: 
(a) Obtaining an understanding of the areas used by both the 

parties for storing their inventories and identifying the 
godown in which, as represented by the management, 
inventory belonging to the company has been stored.

(b) Obtaining the physical verification report of the inventory 
conducted by the management and comparing the 
quantity of physical stock mentioned in stock audit report 
with the book records.

(c) Obtaining an understanding of the useful life of asbestos 
fibre and manner in which it may become unsaleable due 
to damage or obsolescence. 

(d) Evaluating the sale price of inventory sold subsequent to 
the balance sheet date and the entries passed in the 
books of account and stock records.

Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of subsidiary company included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statement, whose financial statements reflects total Assets of Rs.875.85 Lakhs; total Revenues of Rs. 1516.08 Lakhs and Net 
Cash Inflows amounting to Rs. 27.84 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. The financial statements of subsidiary company have been audited by its  respective independent auditor whose 
report has been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statement, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor and the procedures performed by us are as 
stated in Auditors' Responsibility section after considering the requirement of Standard on Auditing (SA 600) on 'Using the work 
of Another Auditor' including materiality.

2. We have been explained that the Holding Company has leased its manufacturing facilities at both its units i.e. Mohanlalganj, 
Lucknow and Dadri Units to companies under the same group. As part of the lease agreement, the Holding company is also 
obligated to supply asbestos fibre to the lessees at cost price. The agreement between the Holding company and the lessee 
does not envisage any specific terms of payment against supply of asbestos fiber by the Holding company. Consequently, the 
Holding company carries substantial outstanding balances recoverable from the parties under the said Group in the form of 
Unsecured Trade Receivables. Out of total Outstanding Trade Receivables (net of credit balances) of Rs. 4143.01 Lacs as at 
year-end, the outstanding balance recoverable by the Holding company from the said Group is Rs. 3286.61 Lacs. The Holding 
company, therefore, have a significant exposure in the form of unsecured Trade Receivables towards one Group. 

 3. The comparative financial information of the Holding company for the year ended 31st March, 2023 are based on the 
previously issued Financial Statements audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31st March 2023 
dated 24th May 2023 expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the  information. The other information preparation of the other
comprises the information included in the Director's Report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified consolidated
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions, if required.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
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position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated Statement of changes in equity 
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind 
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group & for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control in relevance to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls  in place and the  with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
operating effectiveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosure made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  financial statements, including the disclosures, consolidated
and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves consolidated
fair presentation.

· Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such business activities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the business activities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As per the clause (xxi) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report the following qualified/adverse remarks reported in CARO reports issued 

stby us and other auditor of the subsidiary company included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  
March, 2024:-

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditor on financial 
statement of subsidiary referred to in Other Matter paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that : 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

 (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid  financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Consolidated
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations stated to have been received from the directors of Holding Company as on 
st st31 March, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2024 

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the 

Holding Company and its subsidiary and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure A.

 (g) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Holding Company and its subsidiary has paid remuneration 
to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with 
Schedule V of the Act.

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

 i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position 
of the Group – Note 33 of Notes to the  financial statements.consolidated

 ii. As informed to us, the Holding Company and its subsidiary did not enter into any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

 iii. As explained to us, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiary.

 iv. a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is company incorporated in India, 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such 
subsidiary that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company or any of such subsidiary to or in 
any other person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

  a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is company incorporated in India, 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such 
subsidiary that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the company or any of such 
subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

  b. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances 
performed by us and that performed by the auditor of subsidiary, which is company incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has 
caused us or the other auditor to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) contain 
any material mis-statement. 

 v. The Holding Company and its subsidiary has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

S 

No.  

Name  CIN  Holding 

Company/ 

Subsidiar y  

Clause number of the 

CARO report which is 

qualified or adverse  

1. 
UBuild Better Private 

Limited  
U26990UP2020PTC126768

 
Subsidiary

 
Clause 3(ix)(d)
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 vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023.
  Based on our examination which included test checks, and as communicated by the respective auditor of subsidiary, 

except for the instance mentioned below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India have 
used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

  In case of a subsidiary incorporated in India, as communicated by the auditor of such subsidiary, the feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility was maintained and it reveal the date when the transaction was modified, however it does not 
reveal what changes have been made in the transaction. 

  
  Further, the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year for the respective accounting 

softwares and we did not come across any instance of the aforesaid audit trail feature being tampered with.

Place : Lucknow

Date : 27.05.2024 UDIN : 24014335BJZZNC2997

For S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's ICAI Reg. No. 001545C

(CA. S. N. KAPUR)

Partner

M.No.: 014335
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ANNEXURE “A”
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Annexure-A referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of 
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub 
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we 
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of U P Asbestos Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the 
Group”), as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal control with reference to 
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility      
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary 
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the 'Other Matters' paragraph is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statement includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and;

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may 
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become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion
Attention is invited to Note 49 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, wherein it has been stated that the company has 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business and though such 
internal financial controls are yet to be formally documented the same are being followed as part of company's routine functioning. In 
the absence of proper documentation of internal financial controls over financial reporting on criteria based on or considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the ICAI, we the auditor of Holding Company and the auditor of subsidiary Company are unable   to obtain   sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis of our opinion whether the Group had adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements of the company and the disclaimer does not affect our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements of the company.                                                                    

Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding company, in so far as it related to the subsidiary, is based on the 
corresponding report of the auditor of such company incorporated in India.

Our report is not modified in respect of above matter.

Place : Lucknow

Date : 27.05.2024 UDIN : 24014335BJZZNC2997

For S.N. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's ICAI Reg. No. 001545C

(CA. S. N. KAPUR)

Partner

M.No.: 014335
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

2(a)

03

2(b)

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

 ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Investment Property

(d) Goodwill 

(e) Other Intangible assets

(f) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Others Financial Assets

(g) Other non-current assets

 Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans

(v) Others Financial Assets

(c) Other current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share capital

(b) Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

(d) Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(refer note no. 38)

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

                                       5,159.67 

                                          302.38 

                                       6,819.82 

                                              5.09 

                                              6.76 

                                              6.37 

                                            33.24 

                                          627.04 

                                       1,398.69 

                                       4,253.79 

                                       3,550.32 

                                          502.00 

                                            16.59 

                                            84.99 

                                       1,259.85 

                                     24,026.60 

                                          911.71 

                                     10,864.08 

                                       8,465.24 

                                            64.81 

                                          479.16 

                                            40.00 

                                       2,682.27 

                                                  -   

                                          186.32 

                                            74.25 

                                          213.13 

                                            21.76 

                                            23.87 

                                     24,026.60 

 Contd…. 

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

Total Income (I+II)

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-

IV)

Exceptional Items

Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

Profit (Loss) for the year  (VII-VIII)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

(a) Re- measurement gains/(losses) on 

defined benefit obligation

(b) Gains/(losses) on Fair Value of Equity 

Instruments through other Comprehensive 

Incomes

(c) Income Tax Effect on above

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Re- measurement gains/(losses) on 

defined benefit obligation

(b) Income Tax Effect on above

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

(IX+X) (Comprising Profit /(Loss) and Other

Comprehensive Income for the year)

Earnings per equity share 

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

I

II

III

IV

V

VI

VII

VIII

IX

XI

X

XII

26

27

29

30

31

32

28

                    20,590.06 

                         531.29 

                    21,121.35 

                    17,223.26 

                         173.88 

                      1,035.89 

                         484.62 

                         499.57 

                    20,457.46 

                         663.89 

                                 -   

                         663.89 

                         119.80 

                          (43.39)

                         587.48 

                             7.91 

                             0.90 

                            (2.20)

                                 -   

                                 -   

                         594.09 

6.45

6.45

                      1,040.24 

In terms of our report of even date
For S.N KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 001545C)

See accompanying note nos. 1 to 63 forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(CA. S.N. KAPUR)
Partner

M. No. 014335

Date: 27th May 2024
Place: Lucknow

Gaurav Arora
Chief Financial Officer     

Sakshi Pandey               
Company Secretary       

and Compliance Officer          

Amitabh Tayal       
Managing Director

DIN - 00556569

Priyank Tayal
Director

DIN-00556534
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)
A. Equity Share Capital

Current reporting period

Securities 

Premium 

General 

Reserve

Investment 

Allowance 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Revaluation 

Surplus

Equity  

Instruments 

through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Defined Benefit 

Obligation 

through 

Comprehensive  

Income 

Balance as at 01/04/2023               756.47           12.10               7.64            4,449.02             5,040.94                    5.25                    (1.43)                    10,269.98 

Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of
the reporting period

              756.47           12.10               7.64            4,449.02             5,040.94                    5.25                    (1.43)                    10,269.98 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year                      -                   -                     -                 587.48                       -                          -                            -                           587.48 

Other Comprehensive  
Income/(Losses) for the year

                     -                   -                     -                        -                         -                      0.90                      5.71                             6.61 

Total Comprehensive  

Income/(Losses) for the year
                     -                   -                     -                 587.48                       -                      0.90                      5.71                         594.09 

Transfer to / From Revaluation
Reserve

                     -                   -                     -                        -                         -                          -                            -                                   -   

Balance as at 31/03/2024               756.47           12.10               7.64            5,036.51             5,040.94                    6.15                      4.28                    10,864.08 

TotalParticulars

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

B. Other Equity

Balance at the beginning of the 

current reporting period As at 1 

April 2023
911.71

 
-

 
-

 

Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior period 

errors

Restated balance at the 

beginning of the current 

reporting period

Changes in equity share capital 

during the current year 

Balance at the end of the current 

reporting period As at 31 March 2024

-
 

911.71
                                                     

In terms of our report of even date
For S.N KAPUR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 001545C)

See accompanying note nos. 1 to 63 forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(CA. S.N. KAPUR)
Partner

M. No. 014335

Date: 27th May 2024
Place: Lucknow

Gaurav Arora
Chief Financial Officer     

Sakshi Pandey               
Company Secretary       

and Compliance Officer          

Amitabh Tayal       
Managing Director

DIN - 00556569

Priyank Tayal
Director

DIN-00556534
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Note No.1
 1. Group Overview
  The Company was incorporated on 18 July, 1973. The company was engaged in the business of manufacturing Asbestos 

Corrugated Sheets, Plain Boards and Profile Sheets. However, now both the manufacturing facilities of the company i.e. 
Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit and Dadri unit has been leased to two companies under the same Group. The manufacturing 
facility at Mohanlalganj, Lucknow has been leased to Navnidhi Continental Private Limited w.e.f 01.01.2022 and Dadri unit 
has been leased to SMSN Continental Private Limited w.e.f. 01.02.2014. The Company is also trading in Paints,Cables, 
Fibre, Cement and Ruber Washers.

  The company together with its subsidiary Ubuild Better Pvt. Ltd. and its subsidiary Ubuild Better Distribution Pvt. Ltd. is 
hereinafter referred to as "the Group". 

  These Groups' consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2024 were approved by the Board of Directors on 
May 27, 2024.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
 i) These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on the 

basis of accrual system of accounting, except for certain fixed assets which are revalued and certain financial assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value, in accordance with generally accepted accounting  principles in India and complied 
with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 ii) Ind AS enjoins management to make estimates and assumptions related to consolidated financial statements, that affect 
reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and contingent liabilities pertaining to the year. Actual result may 
differ from such estimates. Any revision in accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the period of change and 
material revision, including its impact on consolidated financial statements, is reported in the notes to accounts in the year of 
incorporation of revision.

b) Basis of consolidation
  The Company consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 

statements of the Company and its subsidiary. Subsidiary is consolidated from the date control commences until the date 
control ceases.

  The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and 
transactions including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. These financial 
statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Non-controlling interests which 
represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by 
the Group, are excluded.

c) Functional and presentation currency
  These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Group’s functional currency. Rounded 

off to lacs, except as stated otherwise.

d) Revenue Recognition
 (i)  Sale of goods
  Sales comprise sale of goods dealt with by the Group in the ordinary course of its business net of returns, discount and Goods 

& Services Tax (GST). Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when control of the goods has been transferred, being 
when the goods are delivered to the customers depending on the contractual terms and there is no unfulfilled obligation that 
could affect the buyer's acceptance of the products per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty exists 
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods.

 (ii) Rental Income
  Rental Income from operating lease where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight line basis over the lease 

term.
e) Property Plant and Equipment
 i) Property Plant and Equipment
 Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost (net of recoverable duties & taxes) or revalued cost, less  

accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs, including borrowing costs in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS)-23 on Borrowing Costs, wherever applicable, in bringing an asset to working condition or location for its 
intended use are capitalised to the cost of the property, plant and equipment.

 
 Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, 

are normally charged to the statements of profit and loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major repair and overhaul 
expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.
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 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other 
expenses in statement of profit and loss.    

 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment 
recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the 
property, plant and equipment.

 ii) Intangible Assets
 Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price including 

duties and taxes and any costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use. Subsequently, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

 
 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible Asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

 
 The Group’s intangible assets comprises assets with finite useful life which are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period 

of their expected useful life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

 iii) Capital Work-in- Progress
 Capital Work-in-progress comprises of the cost of assets in the course of construction that are not yet capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management.

 iv) Depreciation
 i) 'Depreciation including depreciation on the revalued portion of certain assets  is provided based on useful life of the assets as 

prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
 ii) The Useful lives of fixed assets is taken as per Schedule II of Companies Act ,2013 which are as follows:-
 iii) When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them  

separately based on their specific useful lives.

f) Cash And Cash Equivalents 
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short term deposits and short term highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

g) Borrowing Costs

Asset Useful life

Computer software   5 years 

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds.

h) Inventories
 i) 'Stock in Trade, Stores and Spare parts and Finished Products are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value in 

accordance with Ind AS-2 on Valuation of inventories. Materials in transit and material with third parties are included in 
inventories. 

 ii) Stock in Trade, Stores & spare parts is determined on first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Due allowance is estimated and made 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
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Buildings 5/30 Years

Plant & Equipments 15 Years

Electrical Installation and Equipments

 

10 Years

Office Equipments  5 Years

Computers

 

3 Years

Furniture & Fixture 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years



for breakage, defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.

i) Retirement Benefits
 i) Short Term Employee Benefits
 Liabilities for salaries and wages including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months 

after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up 
to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The 
liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the Balance Sheet.

 ii) Long Term Employee Benefits
 A) Defined Contribution Plan
  The Group has Defined Contribution Plans for its employees such as Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance and 

contribution to these plans are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss as incurred, as the Group has no further obligation 
beyond making the contribution.

 B) Defined Benefit Plan
 i) The Group provides for gratuity in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Group's liability for gratuity is 

actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of each year as required by Ind AS-19 and is 
provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

 ii) 'In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 19 the Group has provided for unutilised leave benefit available to the 
employees on the basis of an actuarial valuation made as at the end of each year.

j) Provision For Liabilities And Charges, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets
 i) The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the 

applicable IND AS.
 ii) Provisions represent liabilities to the Group for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the 

Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

iii) Contingent liabilities are not provided for and are disclosed by way of notes to  consolidated financial statements.

iv) Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

K) Taxation
 Current income tax
 Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or 

loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with 
prevailing income tax law.

 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is recognised for all the temporary differences by using the liability method, only to the extent that there is a 

reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Group reassesses unrecognised deferred tax 
assets, if any.

I) Earnings per share
 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 

the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Cash Flow Statement
 Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit / (loss) before tax 

is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or  accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available 
information.

n) Segment Reporting
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. Revenue and expenses are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the 
segment. Inter segment revenue are accounted for based on the cost price. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which are 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, are included under "Unallocated revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities".

o) Foreign Currency Transactions
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated at the year-end exchange 
rates, and the resultant exchange difference is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency 
items are carried at cost. 

p) Impairment of Assets
 At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of assets for any possible impairment. An impairment loss is 

recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as 
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating unit). Assessment is done at each 
Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting 
period may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the assets carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.

B.  Subsequent measurement 

a)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the 
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive   income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

c)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

C.  Other Equity Investments 

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Group has elected to present the value changes in 
‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, 
are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using 
trade date accounting. 

q) Financial instruments 

i) Financial Assets 

A.  Initial recognition and measurement 
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The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the 
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or 

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the 
life of the financial instrument) 

For trade receivables Group applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. The Group uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on 
the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes 
in the forward looking estimates are analysed. 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 

D. Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment
of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). 



For other assets, the Group uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant
increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. 

ii) Financial liabilities 

A. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of 
recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

B.  Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing 
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 which 
supersedes Ind AS 17 is substantially unchanged compared to Ind AS 17. Lessee accounting is in respect of short-term leases 
and the same is considered as recognition exemption for the Group from the requirement of the application of Ind AS 116. 

s) Investment Property

r) Leases
  

iii)    Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it 
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a 
financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged 
or cancelled or expires.

Investment property are properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Though the 
Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the 
notes. Fair values are determined on an evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer based on current 
prices in the active market for similar properties, quantum, area, location, demand, restrictive entry to the complex, age of 
building and trend of fair market.

Gain or loss on disposal of investment properties is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the property and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of the disposal. Transfer to, or 
from, investment property is done at the carrying amount of the property.

IND AS -1, Presentation of Financial Statement - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting 
policies rather than their significant accounting policies.The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods 
beginning on or after Apr 1 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant 
in the standalone financial statement.
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(Rupees in Lacs)
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NOTE NO. 02 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Combined 2(a) + 2(b))

AS ON 01/04/2023
ADDITIONS MADE 

DURING THE YEAR

DEDUCTIONS 

MADE DURING 

THE YEAR

AS ON 
31/03/2024

AS ON 
01/04/2023

CHARGED 

DURING THE 

YEAR

DEDUCTION/ 

ADJUSTMENT
AS ON 

31/03/2024
AS ON 

31/03/2024
AS ON 

31/03/2023

Plant & Equipments 9,500.89
                   
1,793.51

                      
-

                     
11,294.40

                 
5,888.63 389.86 - 6,278.49 5,015.91 3,612.26

Furniture & Fixture 109.61

                      

20.14

                           

-

                     

129.75

                      

26.62 9.33 - 35.95 93.80 82.99

Vehicles 136.70

                      

-

                               

0.77

                    

135.93

                      

88.97 7.35 0.62 95.70 40.23 47.74

Office Equipment 86.55

                        

0.73

                             

-

                     

87.28

                        

73.17 4.38 - 77.55 9.73 13.39

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENTS 2(a)

9,833.75

                   

1,814.38

                      

0.77

                    

11,647.36

                 

6,077.39 410.92 0.62 6,487.69 5,159.67 3,756.38

Land 5143.18 418.66 0.00 5561.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5561.84 5143.18

Building 2546.53 252.17 0.00 2798.70 1462.67 78.05 0.00 1540.72 1257.98 1083.86

INVESTMENT PROPERTY - 2 (b) 7,689.71 670.83 - 8,360.54 1,462.67 78.05 - 1,540.72 6,819.82 6,227.04

CURRENT YEAR TOTAL 17,523.46 2,485.21 0.77 20,007.90 7,540.06 488.97 0.62 8,028.41 11,979.49 9,983.42

NET BLOCK

DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION

Note:
The fair value of investment properties, as required to be disclosed as per Ind AS 40, is Rs. 13,716.72 lacs.The fair value is based on 
valuations performed by an accredited external Independent valuer on the basis of replacement cost method.
For Lien/ charge against property, plant & equipment & Investment Property refer note no. 17 & 21.

NOTE No.: 3 - Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)

CWIP ageing schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress -                            302.38                         -                     -                            302.38                     

Total
Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP

NOTE 4 No.: 4 - Goodwill

As at 31.03.2024
0

5.09

5.09

Carrying value at the beginning

Goodwill on Acquision

Carryiing value at the end

Particulars

NOTE 4 No.: 5 - Intangible Assets

Net carrying amount 

as on 31.03.2023

Additions during the 

Year

Disposal during 

the Year

Amortisation 

for the Year

Net carrying amount 

as on 31.03.2024

Intangible Assests

Software -
                            

7.00 -
                     

0.24 7.24
                         



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

NOTE NO. 06: FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT : INVESTMENTS

Investment in Equity Instruments 

Quoted (Fully Paid)

Carried at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income

1     No of Shares

100
225
200

50
200

50

  At cost At Market Value

0.22

0.22

Rs. In Lacs

                     

                     
                     

                       

                     

                       

-
0.38
5.21
0.52

-
0.26

6.37

6.37

6.37

M/s Uniplas India Ltd.
M/s Prakash Industries Ltd.
M/s Hyderabad Industries Ltd
M/s Everest Industries Ltd
M/s Roofit Industries Ltd
M/s Visaka Industries Ltd

 Aggregate of Investments

Total Investment (Quoted)

Total

NAME OF COMPANIES

NOTE NO. 07 : FINANCIAL ASSETS-NON CURRENT : OTHER 
1 16.11

2

Deposit with Banks held  as Margin Money against bank guarantee

(Including Interest accrued)

Deposit with Banks 17.13

33.24

1 58.48

2

183.22

367.08

Capital Advances

Advances other than capital advances

i Security Deposits  (Refer Note No. 51) 

ii Balances with Revenue Authorities

iii Other Receivables 18.26

627.04

NOTE NO. 08 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

NOTE NO. 09 : INVENTORIES

Mode of Valuation

1 Trading goods 487.71
2 Stores & Spares (held for sale) 106.50

3 Goods-in Transit (Trading Goods) 804.48

1,398.69

Stores and Spares parts, Trading goods and Finished Products are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value in accordance with 
Ind AS-2 on Inventories notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

Entire inventory has been hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and March 
31, 2023. For lien/charge against inventories refer note no. 17 and 21.

NOTE NO. 10 : FINANCIAL ASSETS-CURRENT : TRADE RECEIVABLES

A-

-

4,253.79(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;

Trade Receivables 

(a)Trade Receivables considered good - Secured;
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113.11

4.18

4,371.08

117.29

4,253.79

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Less : Allowances for Trade Receivables which have 

significant increase in Credit Risk

(c)  Trade Receivables which have significant increase in 

Credit Risk; and

(d)  Trade Receivables - credit impaired.

(Rupees in Lacs)

Less than
6 months

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

3,518.02        178.10                                         52.22                    108.09                 397.36 4,253.79

(3,573.09)

       

(5.68)

                                            

(130.60)

               

(154.22)

              

(278.10) (4,141.70)

-

                      

-

                                                            

5.29

                     

20.59

                  

87.23 113.11

(28.67)

                 

(33.85)

                

(68.48) (131.00)

-

                      

-

                                                            

-

                             

-

                     

4.18 4.18

-

                      

-

                                                            

(22.49)

                        

- (22.49)

3,696.12

674.96Trade Receivable more than 1 year for which provision of Rs. 117.29 lacs has been made

Pr Year

Out of the above Trade Receivables 

Trade Receivable less than 1 year for which no provision is made

(vi) Disputed
Trade Receivables
– credit impaired

(ii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables
– which have
significant 
increase in credit risk

Pr Year

(i) Undisputed
Trade receivables
– considered good

Pr Year

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

NOTE NO. 11 : FINANCIAL ASSETS-CURRENT : CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

1 Balance with Banks

2 Cash in Hand

3 Cheques in Hand (Refer Note No . 50)

343.31

7.01

3,200.00

3,550.32

NOTE NO. 12 : FINANCIAL ASSETS-CURRENT : OTHER BANK BALANCES

1 Deposit with Banks held  as Margin Money 501.28

2 Earmarked Balances with Banks 0.72

502.00
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4.26

29.46

51.27

84.99

Unsecured & Considered Good 

Interest Accrued and due on Loan to Others

Other Receivables

Interest Accrued but not due on Deposit with Banks

1

2

a 14.59

b 2.00

3 -

4 -

16.59
-

16.59

Less : Allowances for Loans Receivables which have 

significant increase in Credit Risk;

Loans Receivables which have significant increase in 

Credit Risk; and

Loans Receivables - credit impaired

Loan to Others (Refer Note no 53)

Advances to Employees

Loans Receivables - Secured & Considered Good

Loans Receivables - Unsecured & Considered Good

NOTE NO. 13 : FINANCIAL ASSETS -CURRENT : LOANS

NOTE NO. 14 : FINANCIAL ASSETS -CURRENT : OTHERS

1

2

3

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH - 2024

NOTE NO. 15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

1 Advance with Suppliers/ Service providers

a. Unsecured & Considered Good 981.80

                

b. Doubtful 0.84

                    

982.64
Less: Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Advances 0.84 981.80

2 Balance with Revenue Authority

Unsecured & Considered Good 76.69

3 Prepaid expenses.

Unsecured & Considered Good 187.89

4 Security Deposit 12.97

Unsecured & Considered Good 

5 Gold / Silver Coin 0.50

1,259.85
NOTE NO. 16 : SHARE CAPITAL

1 Authorised Capital

(a) 25.00

(b) 1,500.00

1,525.00

2 Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital

910.72

Forfeited Shares

0.99

911.71

Amount originally received as allotment money and

calls on account of 33300 equity shares

25,000 (previous year 25,000) Preference Shares of

Rs. 100/- each redeemable or otherwise entitled to

such rate of annual dividend as the Director may

determine

1,50,00,000(previous year 1,50,00,000) Equity Shares 

of Rs. 10/- each

91,07,193 (previous year 91,07,193) Equity Shares of

Rs. 10 each fully paid up in cash
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(Rupees in Lacs)

3

4 No. of Shares  % holding in the 

shares 

(a) Uniglobe Glycols Limited 20,57,508.00 22.59

(b) Mashino Textile Private Limited 15,39,100.00 16.90

(c) 8,83,350.00 9.70

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder 

holding more than 5% shares

The Rohtak and Hissar Districts Electric Supply 

There is no change in issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital during the current year and corresponding previous 
year.

Company Private Limited

(d) Jaiprakash Associates Limited 8,40,000.00 9.22

(e) R and H Power Company Private Limited 6,01,998.00 6.61

(f) Mr. Priyank Tayal 5,28,700.00 5.81

5 Shares held by promoters at the end of the current year

37,500.00

1,10,150.00

8,83,350.00

20,57,508.00

4,29,471.00

15,39,100.00

68,649.00

97,098.00

2,00,098.00

5,28,700.00

4,54,800.00

1,70,850.00

           

         

         

       

         

       

           

 

0.41

1.21

9.70

22.59

4.72

16.90

 

0.75

1.07

2.20

5.81

4.99

1.88

                    

-

                    

-

                    

-

                  

-

                    

-

                  

-

                    

-

-

0.73

-

-

-

11 Avanti Mohta                                                

12 Mohan Mangalam Trust                                        

9 Amitabh Tayal                                               

10 Priyank Tayal                                               

7 Amitabh Tayal - Huf                                        

8 Manju Tayal                                                 

5 Everest Roofing Pvt. Ltd.                        

6 Mashino Textile Pvt. Ltd.

3 The Rohtak And Hissar Dist Elec 

Supl Co Pvt Ltd          

4 Uniglobe Glycols Limited                                    

1 Doon Industrial Fund Pvt. Limited                                

2 Ganga Corporation Pvt. Ltd.                                

No. of Shares  % holding in 

the shares 

 % 

Change 

during 

the year 

S. No Promoter Name

NOTE NO. 17 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT : BORROWINGS

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

 Current 
(Refer Note 

No. 
21 (3)) 

Non-Current

1.30

                    

1.27

7.63 12.71

1 Secured Loan

(a) Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institution

(i) Union Bank Of India 

(Refer Terms of Repayment (i))

(ii) HDFC Bank

(Refer Terms of Repayment (ii & iii) and xiv)

(Secured by hypothecation of vehicle purchased)

(Secured by hypothecation of vehicle purchased)
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372.92

                

4,702.08(iv) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

(Secured by first and exclusive hypothecation

charge on all existing and future current assets

and moveable fixed assets of Lucknow plant and

collaterally secured by first and exclusive

equitable mortgage of company's immovable

properties being of land and building measuring

at 46.68 acres situated at Mohanlalganj, district

Lucknow and by Corporate Guarantee of

Uniglobe Glycols Limited and Ganga Corporation

Private Limited and personal guarantee of

managing director and his wife & whole time

210.24

                

1,040.82

236.25 1,448.42

635.38

624.56

828.34 8,465.24

director and his wife of the company and pledge

of 201366 shares of the company by the

managing director and whole time director of the

company).

(Refer Terms of Repayment (iv) to (ix))

(v) ICICI Bank Limited

(Refer Terms of Repayment (x) to (xi)

2 Unsecured Loan

Loan from Banks

ICICI Bank

(Refer Terms of Repayment (xii) to (xiii)

Loan from Others

(b) Loan from Related Parties :

From Companies

From Others

(Secured by equitable mortgage on the immovable 

property of Managing Director and personal guarantee 

of Managing Director & a Director of the Company 

and Corporate Guarantee of Uniglobe Glycols 

Limited)

(Secured by first and exclusive equitable

mortgage of company's immovable properties

being of land and building situated at Village

Bishara, Noida, Dadri, U.P).

I Terms of Repayment

i.

ii.

iii. HDFC Bank Rs. 13.50 Lacs (17.16 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 7.25 % p.a. Repayable in 60 EMI of Rs. 39,933/- 
starting From June 2022.

Union Bank of India Rs. 2.58 Lacs (Rs. 3.70 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.90% p.a. and Repayable in 60 EMI of Rs. 11,995/- 
starting from Feb 2021 .

HDFC Bank Rs. 3.98 Lacs (Rs. 5.90 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 7.25 % p.a. Repayable in 48 EMI of Rs. 19,250/- 
starting From Feb 2022.

99



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

iv.

v.

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. NIL (Rs. 689.42 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 34 EMI of Rs. 23,16,012/- 
starting from April 2023 . It has been paid in full during the year.

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. NIL (Rs. 440.00 Lacs)
Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 56 EMI of Rs. 9,72,567/- 
starting from April 2023 It has been paid in full during the year.

vi.

vii.

viii

Ix

x.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

xiv

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 8.25 % p.a. Repayable in 39 EMI of Rs. 14,660/- starting From Oct 2022.

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 2400.00 Lacs (Rs. 2400.00 Lacs)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 797.68 Lacs (Rs. 1032.25 Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 46 EMI of Rs. 26,78,802/- 
starting from April 2023 .

ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 736.77 Lacs (Rs. 861.30 Lacs)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 395.41 Lacs (Rs. NIL)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 120 EMI of Rs. 5,14,311/- starting from Feb 
2024 .

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.60% p.a. and Repayable in 84 EMI of principal of Rs. 10,37,711/- plus 
interest starting from March 2023 .

 ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 514.28 Lacs (Rs. NIL Lacs) 

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.60% p.a. and Repayable in 84 EMI of principal of Rs. 7,14,285/- plus 
interest starting from April 2023 .

 ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 1296.70 Lacs (Rs. 1395.81 Lacs) 

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 8.90% p.a. and Repayable in 180 EMI of principal of Rs. 8,25,927/- plus 
interest starting from May 2022.

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and only interest is payable from april 2023 to
 jan 2027 thereafter EMI of Rs. 50,22,872/- starting from Feb 2027 to jan 2032.

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limted Rs. 1489.17 Lacs (Rs. NIL)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.35% p.a. and Repayable in 120 EMI of Rs. 19,28,665/- starting from 
March 2024 .

ICICI Bank Limited Rs. 388.57 Lacs (Rs. NIL Lacs)

Terms of Repayment - Rate of Interest @ 9.25% p.a. and Repayable in 35 EMI of principal of Rs. 11,42,858/- plus 
interest starting from March 2024 .

HDFC Bank Rs. 2.86 Lacs (Rs. 4.31 Lacs)

(Rupees in Lacs)

NOTE NO. 18 : NON CURRENT PROVISIONS

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

1 Provisions for Employees Benefit

(a) Gratuity 21.59

(b) Leave Encashment 43.22

64.81

NOTE NO. 19 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)

561.77

(36.00)

(46.61)

479.16

Others

Deferred Tax Liability

Related to Fixed Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

TOTAL
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NOTE NO. 20 : OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

1 Security Deposit

NOTE NO. 21 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT : BORROWINGS

1 Secured Loan

(a) Working Capital Loan from Banks

(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
(Secured by first and exclusive hypothecation
charge on all existing and future current assets
and moveable fixed assets of Lucknow plant and
collaterally secured by first and exclusive
equitable mortgage of company's immovable
properties being of land and building measuring
at 46.68 acres situated at Mohanlalganj, district
Lucknow and by Corporate Guarantee of
Uniglobe Glycols Limited and Ganga Corporation
Private Limited and personal guarantee of
managing director and his wife & whole time
director and his wife of the company and pledge
of 201366 shares of the company by the
managing director and whole time director of the
company).

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

(ii)

2 Unsecured Loan

(a) Loan from Companies

(b) Loan from Related Parties

(i) From Companies

(ii) From Others

3 Current Maturity of Long Term Debts (refer note no. 17)

(Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of 
entire stock, book-debts, and other current 
assets both present & future and by Corporate. 
Guarantee of UP Asbestos Limited and personal 
guarantee of  directors of the company).

UCO Bank

NOTE NO. 22 : TRADE PAYABLES

1

2

40.00

40.00

313.29

301.33

507.00

687.31

45.00

828.34

2,682.27

-

186.32

186.32

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises (refer note no. 38)
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Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More 
than 3 
years

- - - -

137.74 3.75 16.86 27.97

(30.96) (5.21) (47.50)

- - - -

- - - -

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

(i) Undisputed dues

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

Pr Year

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

             

                     

Total

186.32

-

-

-

 

NOTE NO. 23 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT : OTHERS

1 Capital creditors

2 Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings

                                              

NOTE NO. 24 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
1 Credit balances of Customers

2 Amount due to employees

3 Statutory dues/duties, taxes payable

4 Other Liabilities

NOTE NO. 25 : PROVISIONS

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

1 Provisions for Employees Benefit
(a) Bonus
(b) Leave Encashment

NOTE NO. 26 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
1 Sale of Products
2

3

68.10

6.15

74.25

                     

143.18

51.50

14.23

4.22

213.13

                     
18.02
3.74

21.76

18,591.07
94.67

1,904.32

20,590.06

NOTE NO. 27 : OTHER INCOME

1 Interest Income

2 Dividend Income

3

4

Less : Reimbursement of Expenses

368.58

0.07

2.34

675.35

515.05 160.30

531.29

Other Operating Income (net of expenses)

Lease Rent

Applicable net gain on foreign currency transaction 

Other non- operating Incomes

NOTE NO. 28 : CHANGES OF INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

Stock in hand at the beginning of the year 

1 265.22

2,014.92

39.90

12.38

Finished Goods -AC Sheet

Trading goods 

Trading Goods - Cable

Trading Goods -Paint

(Rupees in Lacs)

102



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Less : Stock in hand at the end of the year 

2 Finished Goods -AC Sheet -
Trading goods 1,292.18
Trading Goods - Cable -
Trading Goods -Paint -

Decrease / (Increase) in Stock 1,040.24

NOTE NO. 29 : EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES

1 Salaries & Wages 122.31

2 Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 46.06

3 5.51

173.88

Staff Welfare expenses

(Rupees in Lacs)

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

NOTE NO. 30 : FINANCE COST
1 Interest Expenses 1,017.52
2 Other Borrowing Costs 18.37

1,035.89

NOTE NO. 31 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
484.62Depreciation 

484.62

NOTE NO. 32 : OTHER EXPENSES
18.76

0.46
1.20
3.42

11.65
183.08

1.95
187.17

3.96

3.25

0.74

- 3.99

32.54
37.84
13.55

499.57

1 Power & Fuel
2 Rent
3 Repairs to Building
4 Repairs to Machineries
5
6 Rates & Taxes
7 Breakages
8 Miscellaneous expenses
9 Transport, Packing & Forwarding exp.

10 Payments to Auditors

i. As Auditor

ii. For Other Services

iii. For Reimbursement of expenses

11 Bad debts/Irrecoverable claims written off
12 Provision for Bad Debts
13 Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No.57)

Insurance

NOTE NO. 32A : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Claim against the company not acknowledge as debt

(i) Sales Tax

(ii) Entry Tax

(b) Guarantees

(c) Tax matters pending in appeals etc.

(i) Income Tax

(ii) Service & Excise Tax

2 COMMITMENTS
(a) Custom Duty on Raw Material

(b) Capital Commitments                     

429.65

1.41

15.80

336.08

375.44

-

-
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

33

34

The Group has leased its Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit to Navnidhi Continental Private Limited (Lessee) w.e.f. 01.01.2022 
after completion of trial period from 01.09.2021 to 31.12.2021 in terms of its agreement dated 01.01.2022 as modified by 
addendum dated 01.03.2022 to the said agreement. During the trial period the Lessee was allowed to conduct due 
diligence of the company’s assets at its Mohanlalganj, Lucknow unit. Consequently, no production was done by the 
company w.e.f. 01.09.2021.

'The segment reporting of the Group has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment" ( specified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, . For management purposes, the Goup is classified into business activities 
based on its products and services and has two reportable segments as follows:
(a)  Leasing & Activities - Incidental to Leasing ; (b)  Sale of Asbestos & Other Products; (c) Trading of Building Material
Segments have been identified as reportable segments by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). 
Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and 
amount allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated expenditure consists of common expenditure incurred for all the 
segments and expenses incurred at corporate level. The assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the 
segments are shown as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 1. 

Leasing & Activities - 
Incidental to Leasing

Sale of Asbestos  
& Other Products Building Material

Rs. Rs.

CURRENT YEAR CURRENT YEAR CURRENT YEAR
Revenue 15,805.79 4,021.00

Segment Result 912.48 327.00

Interest Expenses

Interest Income

Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Item

Tax Expenses

Net Profit for the year

Assets 15,238.86 8,024.64

Liabilities 170.00 11,730.49

Depreciation 78.05 398.30

Capital Work-in-Progress - 302.38

Particulars
Trading of TOTAL

Rs. Rs.

CURRENT YEAR
924.98 20,751.77

73.35 1,312.83

1,017.52

368.58

663.89

76.41

587.48

763.10 24,026.60

351.32 12,251.81

8.27 484.62

- 302.38

'The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the assets.  The management is of the opinion that the 
recoverable amount of Group’s assets or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs as 
on 31.03.2024 is higher than the carrying amount. As such, the assets of the Group are not impaired in terms of Ind AS-36 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

35

(Rupees in Lacs)

'Asbestos fibre as at year-end has been kept by the Group at identified locations in the same premises as that of the lessee. The 
inventory of Asbestos Fibre valued at cost at Rs. 55.33 lacs has been kept in a separate godown under the physical control of the 
Group. The Group is in the process of disposing off the said inventory of Asbestos Fibre at a Net Realisable value which is in higher 
of the cost of the inventory on which the same has been carried in the financial statements.

36

37 Related Party Disclosures

List of Related Parties and Relationship

i) Covered by Control Criteria

Ubuild Better Private Ltd. - Wholly owned Subsidiary 
(from 02/09/2023)

Ubuild Better Distribution Private Ltd. - Step Down Subsidiary

% of Holding as at 
31.03.2024

100%
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ii) ENTITIES JOINTLY CONTROLLED BY KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Mashino Textile (P) Ltd.

Everest Roofings (P) Ltd.

The Rohtak  and Hissar District Electric Supply Co. (P) Ltd. 

Ganga Corporation (P) Ltd.

UPAL Hotels (P) Ltd.

MTX Hotels (P) Ltd.

Doon Industrial Fund Private Limited

Ecogreen Developers (P) Ltd.

Uniglobe Glycols Limited

Antarrashtriya Hindi Vidhyapeeth

Amitabh Tayal (HUF)- HUF of Managing Director

iii) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL, CLOSE MEMEBER AND OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Mr. Amitabh Tayal  -  Managing Director

Mr. Priyank Tayal    -  Director

Mrs. Mala Agarwal- Director Resigned on 02/09/2023

Mrs. Sushma Seth- Director Appointed on 02/09/2023

Mr. Paras Nath - Director 

Mr. Qamar Syed Wajahat - Director

Mrs. Shailly Tayal - Wife of Mr. Priyank Tayal.

Mrs. Manju Tayal-  Wife of Managing Director

Mrs. Avanti Mohta- Daughter of Managing Director

Mr. Gaurav Arora - Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Sakshi Pandey - Company Secretary 

Note:- Related party relationship is identified by the group.

                                       

                                             

                                           

                                       

Transactions with Related Parties and Outstanding balances as on 31-03-2024

KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL,  & OTHER 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Rs.

EXPENSES

Interest Paid

Remuneration Paid

Repair & Maintenance

OTHER TRANSACTION

Loan Received

Loan Repaid

OUTSTANDING BALANCES

PAYABLES

Loan

144.73

-

2.24

657.00

697.00

1,337.19

Rs.

50.23

73.58

-

432.00

392.00

621.56

Rs.

6.16

6.00

-

2.00

200.00

33.00

Rs.

201.12

79.58

2.24

1,091.00

1,289.00

1,991.75

                  

                  

                    

ENTITIES JOINTLY 
CONTROLLED 

BY KEY MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL

CLOSE MEMBER TOTAL
TRANSACTIONS

(Rupees in Lacs)
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i) Group's contribution to Government Administered Provident Fund / Family Fund during the year is Rs. 36.78 Lacs.

ii) Group's contribution towards Employees State Insurance Fund is Rs. 8.96 Lacs.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The contribution to provident fund is made to Employees’ Provident Fund managed by Provident Fund 
Commissioner. The contribution towards ESIC is made to Employees State Insurance Corporation. The obligation 
of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

'There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Group owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 
days as at 31.03.2024. This information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information 
available with the Group.      

38

a)   Defined Contribution Plan39

The employees’ Gratuity Fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of 
obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes 
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation.

i)  Gratuity (As per actuarial valuation as on 31.03.2024) - Parent Company

Effect of Change in demographic assumptions [D]

Effect of experience adjustments [E]

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses ( C+ D +E )

Return on plan assets (excluding interest)

Total remeasurements recognized in OCI

Amount recognized in OCI, End of Period

 Amounts in Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(b)

Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Past Service Cost

(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/ Curtailments/Acquisitions/Divestitures

Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefit

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of Period

Remeasurements due to :

Effect of Change in financial assumptions [C]

31-03-24

306.45

286.33

20.12

                           -   

                           -   

                     20.12 

31-03-24

                     23.78 

                     19.63 

                    (18.48)

                           -   

                     24.93 

31-03-24

                       3.25 

                           -   

                       4.77 

                           -   

                    (13.48)

                      (8.71)

(1.54)

                      (7.17)

                      (3.93)

(Rupees in Lacs)

Change in Present Value of Benefit Obligation during the Period

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period

Current Service Cost

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

Interest Cost

31-03-24

                   296.61 

                     23.78 

                     19.63 

                           -   

                      (8.71)
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Change in Present Value of Benefit Obligation during the Period

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period

Current Service Cost

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the Period

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period

Interest Income Plan Asset

Actual Enterprise's Contributions

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actual Benefits Paid

Actuarial Gains/(Losses)

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Actual Benefits Paid

Past Service Cost

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period

Interest Cost

31-03-24

                   296.61 

                     23.78 

                     19.63 

                           -   

                      (8.71)

                           -   

                    (24.85)

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                   306.45 

31-03-24

                   264.25 

                     18.48 

                     30.00 

                           -   

                    (24.85)

(1.54)

(Rupees in Lacs)

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Fair Value of Plan Assets, End of Period

Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Category of Assets

Govt. of India Securities (Central and State)

High quality corporate bonds (incl PSU Bonds)

Equity shares of listed companies

Real Estate / Property

Cash (including Special Deposits)

Other (including assets under Schemes of Ins.)

Total

Current Liability

Non Current Liability

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                   286.33 

31-03-24

 - 

                     20.12 

                     20.12 

31-03-24

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

Decrease

                                318.94 

4.07%

                                295.63 

-3.53%

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Sensitivity Analysis

Discount Rate

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Salary Growth Rate

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Increase

                                                                                                 306.45 

31-03-24

                                                   294.74 

-3.82%

31-03-24

                                                   317.55 

3.62%
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Financial Assumptions

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Expected Return on Assets

Withdrawl Rate

Mortality rates

6.95%

8.00%

6.95%

5.00%

IAL Mortality 

(2012-14) Ult.

31-03-24

ii) Gratuity (As per actuarial valuation as on 31.03.2024) - Subsidiary  Company

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(b)

Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

 Amounts in Balance Sheet 31-03-24

1.46

-

1.46

                           -   

                           -   

                       1.46 

(Rupees in Lacs)

Remeasurements due to :

Effect of Change in financial assumptions [C]

Effect of Change in demographic assumptions [D]

Effect of experience adjustments [E]

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses ( C+ D +E )

Return on plan assets (excluding interest)

Total remeasurements recognized in OCI

Amount recognized in OCI, End of Period

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Past Service Cost

(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/ Curtailments/Acquisitions/Divestitures

Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefits"

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of Period

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

31-03-24

                       0.95 

                       0.08 

                       1.03 

31-03-24

                      (0.74)

                      (0.74)

-

                      (0.74)

                      (0.74)

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Actual Benefits Paid

Past Service Cost

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Change in Present Value of Benefit Obligation during the Period 31-03-24

                       1.16 

                       0.95 

                       0.08 

                      (0.74)

                       1.46 

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   
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(Rupees in Lacs)

Actuarial Gains/(Losses)

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Fair Value of Plan Assets, End of Period

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the Period

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period

Interest Income Plan Asset

Actual Enterprise's Contributions

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions

Actual Benefits Paid

31-03-24

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

                           -   

Decrease

                                    1.56 

7.10%

                                    1.36 

-6.31%

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Salary Growth Rate

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Sensitivity Analysis

Discount Rate

Sensitivity Analysis

Expected Return on Assets

Withdrawl Rate

Mortality rates

Financial Assumptions

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

31-03-24

6.95%

8.00%

0.00%

5.00%

IAL Mortality 

(2012-14) Ult.

-6.48%

                                                       1.55 

6.58%

31-03-24

                                                                                                     1.46 

31-03-24

Increase

                                                       1.36 

Category of Assets

Govt. of India Securities (Central and State)

High quality corporate bonds (incl PSU Bonds)

Equity shares of listed companies

Real Estate / Property

Cash (including Special Deposits)

Other (including assets under Schemes of Ins.)

Total

31-03-24

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation

Current Liability

Non Current Liability

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

31-03-24

                       0.00 

                       1.45 

                       1.46 
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iii) Leave Encashment plan  (As per actuarial valuation as on 31.03.2024) - Parent Company

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Current / Non Current Bifurcation

Current Liability

Non Current Liability

Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Amount in Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Fair value of plan Assets

Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(B)

31-03-24

-

-

-

31-03-24

46.96

46.96

46.96

                       3.74 

                     43.22 

                     46.96 

(Rupees in Lacs)

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (f) ]

Total Leave Balance (Days)

Average Leave Balance

Table 1 : Amounts in Balance Sheet
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
Fair value of plan Assets
Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit
Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit)
Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(B)
Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Total Expense/(Income) Recognised in P&L

Actual Benefits Paid

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Closing Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability

Membership Data

Number of Members

Total Monthly Salary (INR)

Average Age (Years)

Average Past Service (Years)

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefit
Expense"

Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheet

Opening Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability

31-03-24

31-03-23

31-03-24

31-03-24

186.00

               36,17,991.00 

6,520.00

31-03-24

5.13

to

54.01

5.13

(12.19)

-

46.96

44.98

13.04

35.05

46.96
-

46.96
-
-

46.96
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(Rupees in Lacs)

Table 3 : Actual Return on Plan Assets

Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets

Actual Return on Plan Assets
[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (m) ]

31-03-23

31-03-24

to

-
-
-

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Past Service Cost
Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains)
(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/
Curtailments/Acquisitions/Divestitures

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 59(B)

Table 2 : Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee

Benefit Expense"

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (g) ]

31-03-23

31-03-24

to

5.85
3.43

-
-

(4.14)
-

-

5.13

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions
Actual Benefits Paid
Actuarial Gains/(Losses)
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture
Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Fair Value of Plan Assets, End of Period

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (e) ]

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates
Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements

Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (c) ]

Table 5 : Change in Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actual Enterprise's Contributions

Table 4 : Change in Present value of Benefit Obligation during the Period

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Actual Plan Participants' Contributions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture
Actual Benefits Paid
Past Service Cost

31-03-23
to

31-03-24

54.01
5.85
3.43

-
(4.14)

-
(12.19)

-
-
-
-

46.96

31-03-23
to

31-03-24

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
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31-03-24 31-03-23 31-03-22 31-03-21 31-03-20

DBO 46.96 54.01 55.50 56.22 52.09

Plan Assets - - - - -

(Surplus) / Deficit 46.96 54.01 55.50 56.22 52.09

Exp Adj - Plan Assets Gain/(Loss) - - - - -

Assumptions (Gain)/Loss 0.78 (0.20) (1.75) (1.03) 4.42

Exp Adj - Plan
Liabilities (Gain)/Loss

(4.92) (4.08) (0.35) (0.35) (1.26)

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (4.14) (4.28) (2.10) (0.69) 3.16

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (p) ]

Current Liability
Non Current Liability
Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet
[ Reference : Revised Companies' Schedule IV ]

Table 7 : Other Items
Expected Contributions for the next financial year
Decrement adjusted estimated tenure of Actuarial liability
[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (q) ]

Table 8 : History of DBO, Asset values, Surplus / Deficit & Experience Gains / Losses

Table 6 : Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation 31-03-24
3.74

43.22
46.96

31-03-24
-

9.24

(Rupees in Lacs)

[ Reference : Ind AS19 para 120A (j), (k) ]

Table 9 : Category of Assets
Govt. of India Securities (Central and State)
High quality corporate bonds (incl PSU Bonds)
Equity shares of listed companies
Real Estate / Property
Cash (including Special Deposits)
Other (including assets under Schemes of Ins.)

Total

31-03-24
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Ind AS19 does not give any option to defer recognition of actuarial gains & losses. All the actuarial 
gains/losses arising during the reporting period have been recognized in full through Statement of 
Profit & Loss.

Past Service cost recognized in the period

Closing Non Vested Past Service Cost

Recognition of Actuarial Gains/Losses

[ Reference : Ind AS 19 (para) 129A ]

Table 10 : Recognition of Actuarial Gain / Loss

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on DBO

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on Plan Assets

Total (Gain)/Loss recognized during the period

Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss, End of Year

Table 11 : Recognition of Past Service Cost

Opening Non Vested Past Service Cost

New Past Service cost arising in the period

31-03-23

to

31-03-24

(4.14)

-

(4.14)

31-03-23

to

31-03-24

-

-

-

-

Sensitivity Analysis

112



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Rupees in Lacs)

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Discount Rate

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Salary Growth Rate

Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO

[ Reference : Ind AS 19 para 120A (n) ]

Year 5

Year 6 to 10

Table 13 : Expected CashFlows

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Table 12 : Sensitivity Analysis

31-03-24

3.74

2.86

5.44

2.40

4.90

20.21

45.05

-4.05%

48.96

4.27%

31-03-24

46.96

31-03-24

IncreaseDecrease

48.99

4.34%

45.06

-4.03%

40

41

42

43

'The Sales Tax and Value Added Tax assessments/appeals under the provisions of respective State Acts and the Central 
Sales Tax under the provision of the Central Sales Tax Act, 1957 for certain past years are pending. Pending completion of 
such assessments/appeals/acceptance of refund claim, amount of Rs.107.83 lacs determined as refundable from the 
departments has been treated as unsecured and considered good under Balance with Revenue Authorities [Refer Note No. 8 
(2) (ii)]. However liability, if any, would be ascertained either at the time of filing of returns/ revised returns, wherever required, 
for the relevant assessment years or on finalization of assessments/appeals by the concerned authorities.

Advance Income Tax & Fringe Benefit Tax (Net of Provisions) of Rs. 14.59  lacs in respect of which reconciliation with the 
assessment/appellate order is in progress for some assessment years. The aforesaid amount is subject to adjustment on the 
basis of the aforesaid reconciliation.

'In the F Y 2008-09, the Group has revalued its entire lands situated at Mohanlalganj Lucknow and at Village Bishara, Dadri, 
Gautam Buddh Nagar . The aforesaid lands have been revalued at fair market value by external valuers on the basis of the 
enquiries made by the valuers of the prevailing market price of similar properties in the vicinity and giving weightage to the 
peculiar situation of the aforesaid lands. Revalued amount of lands at Mohanlalganj Lucknow and Village Bishara, Dadri, 
Gautam Buddh Nagar had been recognized in the consolidated financial statement by increasing the existing value of the land 
by Rs. 4926.01 Lacs and crediting the increase in the net book value to the owner’s interest under the head revaluation 
reserve.

'The State Government of Rajasthan has withdrawn benefit available to the Company under Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act 
2003 on sale of A C Sheet containing Fly Ash more than 25% by weight. A writ petition of the company against this withdrawl of 
benefit before Hon'ble Rajasthan Highcourt, Jaipur Bench, Jaipur has been decided against the company. Civil Appeals of the 
company against the order of The Hon'ble Rajasthan Highcourt, Jaipur Bench, Jaipur are pending before Hon’ble Supreme 
Court. However, on conservative basis demands raised against the company has been charged to revenue in the years in 
which the same were paid by the company. 

44

45

'Selling price, discounts, commission and breakage compensation is determined by negotiation with customers. Such 
negotiation done telephonically / in meeting is evidenced by approval of the management of the Group. The Group has, during 
the year, accounted for the discount, commission, breakages on this basis. Since payments from customers are received in 
lump-sum and the balance confirmation sent by the Group are generally not responded  by the customers, the balances in the 
accounts  of customers are subject to the reconciliation, confirmation and consequent adjustment, if any.   

Balances of Trade Receivables (except few parties), Trade Payables , balances with customers & employees included in 
Other current liabilities, non current liabilities, Other current financial liabilities, balances with creditors etc.included in other 
financial liabilities, other current and non current assets and advances to employees are subject to reconciliation, 
confirmation and consequent adjustments, if any.

46.      Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objective and policies

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional information on  the  
balance sheet.  Details of  significant accounting  policies, including  the criteria  for recognition,  the basis  of measurement and the 
basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed 
in Note 1.
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(Rupees in Lacs)
I      Financial assets and liabilities as at

FVTPL       FVTOCI       Amortised  Cost Carrying Value Fair Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents                        -                         -   3,550.32
 

3,550.32
 

3,550.32

                       -                         -   502.00
 

502.00
 
502.00

                       -   6.37

 
                                -   6.37

 
6.37

                        -                         -   16.59

 

16.59

 

16.59

                        -                         -   4,253.79

 

4,253.79

 

4,253.79

                        -                         -   -

 

-

 

-

 
                       -                         -   293.20

 

293.20

 

293.20

 
                       -                         -   1,079.76

 

1,079.76

 

1,079.76

 

                       -   6.37

 

9,695.66

 

9,702.03

 

9,702.03

                        -                         -                        8,465.24 8,465.24

 

8,481.59

                       -                         -                        2,682.27 2,682.27

 

2,682.27

                       -                         -                           186.32 186.32

 

186.32

                       -                         -                             40.00 40.00 40.00

                       -                         -                           273.15 273.15 273.15

                       -                         -   11,646.98 11,646.98 11,663.33

Other bank balances

Non-Current trade receivables

Particulars
March 31, 2024

Financial Assets

Other Current financial liabilities

Non Current investments

Loans- current

Current trade receivables

Other Non-current financial assets

Other Current financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings- Non Current

Borrowings- Current

Trade payables

Other Non-Current financial liabilities

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been 
defined below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Financial Instruments

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Total
 Financial liabilities 

Total

The below table summarises the fair value of financial liabilities which are carried at amortised cost as at March 31, 2024. 

Financial Instruments

March 31, 2024
Non Current & Current Borrowings

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Total

 Level 1                     Level 2    Level 3 

                            6.37                                  -                                       -   

                            6.37                                  -                                       -   

                                -                                    -                                       -   

                                -                                    -                                       -   

 Level 1            Level 2             Level 3 

 March 31, 2024 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:

• Non-current borrowings including current maturity of long term borrowings: Fair value has been determined by the Group based on 
parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, and the risk characteristics of the financed project.

• Other  non-current  financial  assets  and  liabilities:  Fair  value  is  calculated  using  a  discounted  cash  flow  model  with  market 
assumptions, unless the carrying value is considered to approximate to fair value.

'• Trade  receivables,  cash  and  cash  equivalents,  other  bank  balances,  loans,  other  current  financial  assets,  current  
borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities: Approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments. Fair  value of investments are on the basis of quoted prices in active market on the balance sheet.
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There has been no transfer between Level 1 & Level 2 during the above periods

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value or future cash flows arising out of change in the price of a financial 
instrument. These include change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and 
other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.

The Group manages market risk through a risk management committee engaged in, inter alia, evaluation and identification of risk 
factors with the object of governing/mitigating them according to Group’s objectives and declared policies in specific context of 
impact thereof on various segments of financial instruments. The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk management policy 
on a quarterly basis.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 

The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

Foreign currency risk
The Group does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the 
Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic 
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the 
Group compares the risk of default occuring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial 
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in a repayment 
plan with the Group. 

The Group is monitoring production, realization, demand of the products and continous payment to the Group by the lessee in order 
to mitigate the risk involved due to high outstaning balance in a single go, hence the Group’s concentration of risk with respect to 
trade receivables is low.

Liquidity Risk
The Group's Current assets aggregate to Rs. 11,066.24 lacs including Cash & cash equivalents and other bank balance balances of 
Rs. 3550.32 lacs against an aggregate Current liability of Rs. 3201.60 lacs; Non-current liabilities amounting to Rs. 9049.21 lacs on 
the reporting date. Further, while the Group's total equity stands Rs. 11775.79 lacs, it has borrowing of Rs. 11147.51 lacs. In such 
circumstances, liquidity risk or the risk that the Group may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due does not 
exist.

47 The Group as lessor  

Rental Income from operating lease is in respect of Land, Building and Plant & Machinery at the Dadri Unit and Mohanlalganj, 
Lucknow Unit of the Group. The Dadri Unit has been leased out by the Group for a period of 15 years w.e.f. 01.04.2019 and 
Mohanlalganj, Lucknow Unit for a period of 10 years w.e.f. 01.01.2022 (registered agreement entered into for 10 years for land 
and building and for 5 years for plant and machinery which shall be further registered after 5 years after updating the list of Plant 
& Machinery). The lease rental is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.  

The aggregate of future minimum lease payments in respect of Non-Cancellable leasing arrangement required to be disclosed 
as per Ind AS-116 as under:

a.

b.

c. Later than five years 

Not Later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years up to 31.03.2029

Rs.     1,950.57 Lacs

Rs.     8,488.48 Lacs

Rs.     8,648.69 Lacs

The Group as lessee  

The Group’s leasing arrangements are in respect of short-term leases for obtaining premises such as godowns, offices, etc. and 
the same is recognized as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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48 The Group has not accepted any deposits during the year within the meaning of section 73 to section 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. 

49 The Group has adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business including adherence to Group’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required by the Companies Act, 2013. However, such internal controls are being followed as a part of Group’s routine 
functioning and are yet to be formally documented. The Group is in the process of documenting its processes which ensure 
adequate internal financial controls so as to be able to demonstrate the existence and effective implementation of such control.

50 The Group has received cheques of Rs. 3200 lacs from M/s Navnidhi Continental Private Limited in the month of March, 2024 
against outstanding Trade Receivables. The same has been disclosed under the head Cheques-in-Hand in Note 11(3) of the 
consolidated financial statements. On insistence of the party, the Group instead of depositing the aforesaid cheques for 
realizing its payment, accepted payment from the party through RTGS. However, the amount corresponding to such cheques of 
Rs. 2488 lacs were actually paid by the party through RTGS after the balance sheet date till 27th May’2024. 

51 Deposit Payment (Refer Note no.8(2)(i) includes security deposit of Rs. 100 lacs to M/s Brij Bhushan Enterprises LLP given by 
the Group for facilitating regular supply of Raw Material Cement.

52 Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

SL 
No.

Details of Borrower Opening 
Balance as on 

01/04/2023

Loan Given During 
the year

Unsecured 
Loan Received 

back during 
the year

Total amount 
Outstanding at 
the end of F.Y 

2023-24

  100.00  NIL                   100.00  - 

1
Interest (Gross): 

 12.00
Interest (Gross): 

 5.60

2
 150.00  NIL                   150.00  - 

Interest (Gross):                            
18.00

Interest (Gross):                            
8.48

3
Prabhat Ramesh Land 

Developers LLP

  200.00

Interest (Gross):                            
24.00 

 NIL 

                  200.00 
  -

Interest (Gross):                            
6.64 

(Rs. in lacs)

Purpose for which the 
loan is to be utilized by 

the receipient

For Business Operation 
Purposes

For Business Operation 
Purposes

Castmet Packagings 
Private Limited

Shri Ghata Mehndipur 

Balaji LLP

For Business Operation 
Purposes

53. Particulars of Loan , Guarantees and Investments under section 186:

Type of Borrower

Promoter

Directors

Related Parties

Repayable on demand
(Rs. in Lacs)

Amount of loan or advance in the 
nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total
Loans and Advances
in the nature of loans

                                                 -   

                                                 -   

100.00%

                                                 -   

                                                       -   

                                                       -   

                                                   0.80 KMPs

                                                       -   

116



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

55 Earnings per share (EPS)

54 Managerial Remuneration:

(a) Paid/provided for during the year to the directors 2023-24
 (Rs. lacs)

(i) Salary & Allowance 46.20

(ii) Commission -
(ii) Perquisites 4.29

50.49

31-Mar-24

Net profit/(loss) after tax for the year ( Rs in Lacs) 587.48

Weighted number of ordinary shares for basic EPS 9107193

Nominal value of ordinary share (in Rs. per share) 10/-

Basic and Diluted earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. per share) 6.45

Particulars 

56 The Group maintains cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Whereas the cost records for 
Financial Year 2023-24 are in the process of updation, the cost records for financial year 2022-23 have been prepared and 
audited by the Cost Auditors of the Group. 

57 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a group, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its 
average net profit for the immediately Preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.

Goshalas and Schools, 

Health care, Sanitation, 

Blanket distribution, 

Drinking water supply, 

Education and Sports 

facilities, Road and 

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

viii)
Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred 
by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in 
the provision

Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year

Amount of expenditure incurred

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Particulars

Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related parties transaction, e.g. contribution to a 
trust controlled by the Group in relation to CSR expenditure 
as per relevant accounting standards(1) 

As at

March 31, 2024

12.44

13.55

-

-

NA

Maintenance of 

Drain Repair, 

Environmental 

Protection.

NA

NA
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58 Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March 
2024

Unit

Current Ratio 

Debt-Equity Ratio

Debt Service

coverage Ratio

Return on Equity 
(ROE)

Trade receivables
turnover ratio 

Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Inventory Turnover 
Ratio 

Net capital turnover 

ratio 

Net Profit Ratio 

Return on capital 

employed (ROCE)

Return on Investment (ROI)

Quoted 

Current  Assets 

Total Debt 

Earnings available for 
(1)

debt service

Net Profits after taxes 

Revenue 

Purchases of goods 
and other expenses 

Sales 

Revenue 

Net Profit 

Earning before 
interest and taxes 

Income generated 
from investment 

Current liabilities 

Shareholder's Equity

Debt Service 

Average 
Shareholder's Equity 

Average Trade 
Receivable 

Average Trade 
Payables 

Average Inventory

Working Capital

Revenue 

(2)
Capital Employed

Investments 

Times 

Times 

Times 

%

Times 

Times 

Times 

Times 

%

%

%

3.46

1.67

1.31

4.99%

4.91

62.03

10.73

2.69

2.78%

9.51%

0.00%

(1) Net profit after taxes+ Non-cash operating expenses + Interest+other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.

(2) Equity Share Capital+ Other Equity -Revaluation Surplus-Other Comprehensive Income

59

60

(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars Fair Value Carrying Value

Term loans 5470.85 5454.88

The Group has managed to reduce the outstanding debtors of more than one year to Rs. 716.41 lacs in 
the financial year 2022- 2023 and further reduced to Rs. 650.51 lacs in the year ended 31st Mar' 2024 
The Company is hopeful of recovering the balance amount in the near future.

As per Ind AS -109, the Group is carrying the financial liabilities at amortized cost using effective interest 
method, hence the value of term loans have been decreased by the transaction cost i.e. the processing 
fee to comply with the said Ind AS -109. The details of term loans are given below :

61 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

i

ii

iii
iv

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deed is not held in the name of the Group.

The Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

There are no intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2024.

The Group do not have any Benami property. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against 
the Group for holding any Benami property.
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v

vi

vii

viii

ix

x

xi

xii

xiii

xiv

62 Since this is the first year of consolidation of the company, hence, figures of previous year has not been given.

63 Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.

The Group does not have any Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group has not received any fund from any person (s) or entity (ies) including foreign entities 
(Funding party) with the understanding that the Group shall -

a) directy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any gurantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

a) directy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries)  or
b) provide any gurantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period in the current 
as well as in the previous year.

The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the period / year.

Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks during the year are in agreement with the 
books of accounts.

The Group is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or lender during the year.

On the basis of available information, there is are no transactions with struck-off companies under section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, during current and previous years.

The Group has complied with the number of the layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act read 
with the Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules 2017.

The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s) or entity (es) including foreign entities 
(intermediates) with the understanding that the intermediary shall :

There are no transactions that has been surrendered or disclosed by the Group as income during the year in the tax 
assessments in the Income tax Act, 1961. As such, the question of recording of the same in the books of accounts does not 
arise.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024
(Pursuant to Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange)

(Rupees in Lacs)

              Rs.              Rs.

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AS PER STATEMENT 
OF PROFIT & LOSS

663.89              

   Adjustment for: 

   Depreciation and amortisation expense ( Net of Excess Depreciation written back) 484.62
                  

   Finance cost 1,035.89
               

Provision for doubtful debts/ Bad Debts Written off 70.39
                    

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 7.91
                      

   Foreign Exchange (+)Loss / (-)Gain (2.34)
                    

   Interest Earned (368.58)
                

   Dividend Earned (0.08)
                    

1,227.81
           

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,891.70

              Adjustment for:

   Increase (-) / Decrease in Trade and other Receivables 99.22

                       Increase (-) / Decrease in Inventories 667.88

                     Increase / Decrease (-) in Trade Payables, current liabilities and provisions (585.37)

                

181.73

              CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2,073.43

              Direct Tax Refund  (Net of Tax Paid) (92.58)

              NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,980.85

              Exceptional Item ( Profit on Sale of Equity Shares) -

                   NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER EXCEPTIONAL ITEM 1,980.85

           B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Loan and Advances 450.00

              
Other Non Currant Assets 8.84

                  
Advances for Property Plant and Equipments 25.08

                
   Purchase of Property Plant and Equipments (1,652.74)

         
   Proceeds from sale of Property Plant and Equipments 0.18

                  
   Interest Received 368.58

              
   Dividend Received 0.08

                  
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (799.98)

            
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing and other borrowings (net of repayment) 817.99

              

   Finance cost (1,035.89)

         

   Foreign Exchange (-)Loss / (+)Gain 2.34

                  

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (215.56)

            
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 965.31

              

CASH AND BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,087.01

CASH AND BANK BALANCE AS AT END OF THE YEAR 4,052.32

 2023-24 
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